LM G 4 ArM 2D

Financial Report

and Audited Consolidated

Financial Statements

for the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

vivendi




Tuesday, February 25 2014

VIVENDI

Socigté anonyme with a Management Board and a Supervisory Board with a share capital of €7,367,854,620 50
Head Office 42 avenue de Friedland — 75380 PARIS CEDEX 08 — FRANCE

IMPORTANT NOTICE READERS ARE STRONGLY ADVISED TO READ THE IMPORTANT DISCLAIMERS AT THE END OF THIS
FINANCIAL REPORT.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements fer the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Vivend: /2




Tuesday February 25, 2014

SELECTED KEY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA c. 5
| -2013 FINANCIAL REPORT. . e eveeseenns s o 7
1 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS.. ..... ... W7
11 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS IN 2013 7
12 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE DECEMBER 31, 2013 10
2 EARNINGS ANALYSIS ... oo eeree =+ - cemer covties wrae t v et o ven e s s 11
21 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS 11
22 EARNINGS REVIEW 12
3 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS ANALYSIS..ccccocivii vr + cee v o serssvsrmimmmesnsisssrs aen o s s ur 13
4 BUSINESS SEGMENT PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS. .. ..o sremmessnens en s om © emrreseresenars « on sesvtsbbabats = ses sesses 15
41 ReveNUES, EBITA, AND CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT 17
42 COMMENTS ON THE OPERATING PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS SESMENTS 18
5 TREASURY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES. .........c.cccccvevnvve o venee < rrrmrrrasssarasaen e e esssreses sn e s serseeseseastesse . 27
51 SUMMARY OF VIVENDI'S EXPOSURE TO CREDIT AND LIQUIDITY RISKS 27
52 FINANCIAL NET DEBT CHANGES 24
53 ANALYSIS OF FINANGCIAL NET DEBT CHANGES 30
54 CHANGES IN FINANCINGS AN
6 FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS....ccouimnunns © b seesaesst LS e es vewssssmersem it e eveevememreresns e e e 2
7 OTHER DISCLAIMERS - © b ¢ v sememers ssssessesat 2
Il - APPENDICES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA 3
1 EBITA (ADJUSTED EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND INCOME TAXES) AND ADJUSTED NET INCOME 33
2 REVENUES AND EBITA BY BUSINESS SEGMENT - 2013 AND 2012 QUARTERLY DATA 35
Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2013 Vivend /3




{ll - CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013 ................ .

STATUTORY AUDITORS" REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS......... . .. . . s e S —

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME.... ...
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION. ..

e 38
............. a0
............ !
42

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ... T —

. 43

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY . ...cccevmvenrsnensnnns

.44

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS...........

NOTE 1 ACCOUNTING FOLICIES AND YALUATION METHODS

NOTE 2 MAJOR CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

NOTE 3 SEGMENT DATA

NOTE 4 EBIT

NOTE 5 FINANCIAL CHARGES AND INCOME

NOTE 6 INCOME TAXES

NOTE 7 DISCONTINUED OPERATICNS

NOTE 8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

NOTE9 CHARGES AND INCOME DJRECTLY RECOGNIZED IN EQUITY
NOTE10  GOODWILL

NOTE 17 CONTENT ASSETS AND COMMITMENTS

NOTE12  OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTE13  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTE14  INTANGIBLE AND TANGIBLE ASSETS OF TELECOM DPERATIONS
NOTE15  INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY AFFILIATES

NOTE16  FINANCIAL ASSETS

NOTE17  NET WORKING CAPITAL

NOTE 18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

NOTE 13  EQUITY

NOTE20  PROVISIONS

NOTE 21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

NOTE22Z  SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

NOTE23  BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

NOTE24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS
NOTE25  CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOTE26 ~ TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

NOTE27  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
NOTE28  LITIGATION

NOTE23  MAJOR CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES OR ENTITIES ACCOUNTED UNDER EQUITY METHOD
NOTE30  STATUTORY AUDITORS FEES

NOTE 31 AUDIT EXEMPTIONS FOR UMG SUBSIDIARIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM
NOTE32  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

NOTE33  ADJUSTMENT OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATICGN

Financral Report and Aucited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

a6
45
63
66
70
72
73
77
81
82
83
87
89
90
91
7]
. 9
9
94
g5
96
a7
102
106
110
118
119
120
126
134
135
136
137
137

Vivend: /4




Selected key consolidated financial data

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Year ended December 31
2013 2012 (a) 201 2010 2009

Consolidated data
Revenues (b) 2213 22577 28813 28878 27132
EBITA (b} {c} 2433 3163 5860 57268 5390
Earnings attributable 1o Vivend: SA shareowners 1967 179 2 681 Z2,198 B30
Adpusted net income (¢} 1540 1705 2952 2698 2585
Financial Net Debt (c) 1097 13419 12,027 8073 9566
Total equity 13030 1291 22070 78173 25,988

of which Vivendi SA shareowners’ equity 17457 18325 19447 24058 2m7
Cash flow from operations, before capital expendrtures net (CFFO before capex net) 4077 5189 8,034 8569 7,799
Capital expenditures net (capex net)(d) {2 624) (3 876} {3 340) (3357) {2 562)
Cash flow from operations (CFFO} (c) 1453 1213 4694 5212 5237
Financial investments {151) (1731} {636) (1397) {3050)
Financral dvestments 34483 204 4701 1982 97
Dividends paud with respect to previous fiscal year 135 1245 1731 172 1639 (e)
Per share data
Weighted average number of shares cutstanding (f} 13306 12989 17814 12738 12447
Adjusted net iIncome per shars (f) 116 131 230 212 208
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the penod (excluding treasury shares) {f} 13396 13225 12874 12787 12703
Equity per share attributable to Vivendi SA shareawners (f) 1303 1386 11 1881 1733
Dividends per share paid with respect to previous fiscal year 100 1.00 140 140 140

I mithons of euros, number of shares n mulhons, data per share i euros

a  As from the second quarter of 2013, in compliance with {FRS 5 (Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations), as a
result of the plans to sell Activision Bhzzard and Maroc Telecom group {please refer to Section 11), Activision Blizzard and Maroc
Telecom group have been reported in the 2013 and 2012 Consohdated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as
discontinued operations {please refer to Section 1 13 3 of this Financial Report and to Note 7 to the Consolidated Financral Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2013} On October 11, 2013, Vivend: deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of
its interest In addition, the contribution of Maroc Telecom group to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as of December 31, 2013 has been grouped under the lines “Assets of discontinued businesses™ and "Liabilities associated with assets
of discontinued businesses”

Moreaver, data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adjusted following the application of amended IAS 19 {Employee
Benefits), whose apphcation 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1. 2013 with retrospective effect from
January 1, 2012 {please refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013}

These adjustments are presented in Appendix 1 to the Financial Report and in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2013

Data presented with respect to fiscal years from 2009 to 2011 corresponds to histoncal data and has not been adjusted

b Ananalysis of revenues and EBITA by operating segment in 2013 and 2012 1s presented in Section 4 1 of this Financial Report and 1n
Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2013

¢ Vivend: considers that the non-GAAP measures of EBITA, Adwsted net income, Financial Net Debt, and Cash flow from operations
{CFFO) are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance Each of these indicators 1s defined in the appropniate
section of this Financial Report or i its Appendix These indicators should be considered in addition to, and net as a substitute for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes, ar as described in this Financial Report It should be noted that other companies may define and calculate these indicators
differently from Vivendi thereby affecting comparabiity

d  Relates to cash used for capital expenditures net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

¢ The dwdend distribution with respect to fiscal year 2008 totalled €1,633 mullion, of which €904 milion was paid in shares {with no
impact on cash) and €735 million was paid in cash

f  The number of shares, adjusted net income per share, and the equity per share, atiributable to Vwvend: SA shareowners have been
adjusted for all perieds previously published in order to reflect the dilution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012 of
one bonus share for each 30 shares held, in accordance with IAS 33 (Earmings Per Share)
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Nota

In accordance with European Commission Regulation (EC) 808/2004 (Article 28} which sets out the disclosure obligations for issuers of securnities
listed on a regulated market within the European Union {implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the ' Prospectus Regulation”), the following items are
incorporated by reference

e 2012 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors” Report presented in pages 168 to 319 of the “"Document de Reference™ No D 13-0170, filed on March 18, 2013 with the
French Autorite des Marchés Financiers {AMF), and in pages 168 to 319 of the English translation of this "Document de Réference”, and

e 2011 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 130 to 266 of the “Document de Référence” No D 12-0175, filed on March 19, 2012 with the
French Autonité des Marchés Financiers (AMF), and in pages 128 to 264 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence
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I - 2013 Financial Report

Preliminary comments:

On February 19, 2014, during a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Annual Financial
Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 Hawving considered the Audit Committee’s
recommendation given at its meeting held on February 18, 2014, the Supervisory Board, at 1ts meeting held on February 21, 2014, reviewed
the Annual Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, as approved by the
Management Board on February 19, 2014

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors
with no qualified opimion The Statutory Auditors” Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 1s included in the preamble to the
Financial Statements

1 Significant events

1.1 Significant events in 2013

1.1.1 Ongoing strategic review

As publicly announced to shareholders on several occasions in 2012 and 2013, Vivend's Management Board and Supervisory Board are
carrying out a review of the group’s strategic development In 2013, Vivend: sold most of 1ts interest in Activision Blizzard and entered into a
definitive agreement with Etisalat to sell its interest in Margc Telecom The group has decided to focus on its media and content activities,
which hold leading positions and are taking advantage of the growing digital market It has strengthened its presence in Canal+ France, now
fully owned Vivend: 15 also reshaping SFR The operator has begun to benefit from its transformation plan, by re-taking the commercial lead
and by reducing costs SFR has also entered into an agreement to share part of its mobile network with Bouygues Telecom, allowing 1t to
offer better coverage and strengthened service quality to (ts customers Based on this, the group aims to position the future Vivend: as a
dynamic player in media and content With SFR, 1t intends to participate in the reorganization of the telecommunication sector in France,
exploring actively all potential opportunities

Duning the second half of 2013, the group reached important strategic milestones

« on October 17, 2013, Vivend completed the sale of 88% of its interest in Activision Blizzard for $8 2 billion {or €6 bithon), in cash
In addition, Vivend: retained 83 millien Activision Blizzard shares, representing 11 9% of Activision Bhizzard's outstanding share
capital, which are subject to a staggered 15-month lock-up period,

» on November 4, 2013, Vivend: entered inte a definitive agreement with Etisalat for the sale of Vivend's 3% interest in Maroc
Telecom group for €4 2 billien in cash, including a €310 milion dividend distribution with respect to fiscal year 2012, according to
the financial terms known to date Completion of this transaction is contingent upon the satisfaction of certain closing conditions,
including receipt of required regulatory approvals in Morocco and the countries in which Maroc Telecom group operates, as well
as finahzation of the shareholders’ agreement between Etisalat and the Kingdom of Morocco This transaction 1s expected to be
completed dunng the first months of 2014, and

¢ on November 5 2013, Vivendi acquired Lagardere Group's 20% interest in Canal+ France for €1,020 miilion in cash

As a result of the sale of Activision Blizzard, Vivendi has begun to significantly reduce its debt during the fourth quarter of 2013 by
implementing a US dollar and euro bend repurchase pregram in an aggregate amount of €3 billion, thus gaining greater financial flexibility
(please refer to Section 5)

1.1.2 Planned demerger of the group

On November 26, 2013, Vivendi's Supervisory Board approved the group’s planned demerger to form two separate companies {1} a new
international media group based in France, with very strong positions in music (as the worldwide leader), in European cinema, 1n pay-TV in
France, Africa, Vietnam, and Poland, and in the Internet and associated services in Brazil, and (1) SFR The decision to implement this project
could be taken in the near future and, if approprate, submitted to the General Shareholders’ Meeting for approval on June 24, 2014

Vivend considers that the conditions for the application of IFRS 5 to the proposed demeiger in the 2013 Financial Statements are not met
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1.1.3  Sales of Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group

1.1.31 Activision Blizzard

On October 11, 2013, Yivendi completed the sale of B8% of its interest in Activision Blizzard, or 600 64 million shares priced at $13 60 per
share, for $8,169 million {€6,044 million} in cash

The key terms of this sale are as follows

« through the acquisition of a Vivendi subsidiary, Activision Blizzard repurchased 428 68 million shares at $13 60 per share for a cash
consideration of $5,830 milhon,

+ concomitantly, Vivend: sald 171 97 million Activiston Blizzard shares at $13 60 per share for a cash consideration of $2.339 million
to an investor group {ASAC [l LP} led by Mr Robert Kotick, Activision Blizzard’s Chief Executive Officer, and Mr Brian Kelly, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors ASAC Il LP owns approximately 24 7% of the outstanding share capital {following the
repurchase of 428 68 million shares by Actvision Blizzard),

e pursuant to the simultaneous closings of both sales on Gctober 11, 2013, Vivend retained 83 million Actwvision Blizzard shares,
representing 11 9% of Activision Blizzard's outstanding share capital ({following the repurchase of 428 68 million shares by
Actvision Bhizzard) Vivend's remaiming ownership interest 1s subject to a staggered 15-month lock-up period as described in Note
7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 The sale proceeds from the remaining
ownership interest are estimated at a total of $1,129 millien {€832 million), assuming the hypothesis of $13 60 per share and at
$1.480 million (€1,078 million), assuming the hypothesis of Activision Blizzard's share price on December 31, 2013 of $17 83 per
share, and

» the agreement governing the transaction includes certain continuing commitments given by the parties (please refer to Note 7 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013}

Deconsolidation of Activision Blizzard as from October 11, 2013

As from October 11, 2013, as a result of the sale of 600 64 million shares of, or a 5346% interest in Actwvision Blizzard, Vivend: lost control
of and deconsolidated Activision Bhzzard In the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, the remaining
83 miliion Activision Blizzard shares have been recorded as assets held for sale, subject to the staggered lock-up period

Capital gain on divestiture

From an accounting perspective and in accordance with IFRS, Vivend: 1s considered to have sold 100% of 1ts interest in Activision Blizzard
following the loss of control of this subsidiary The gain on sale has been determined as the difference between the value of 100% of the
Activision Blizzard shares owned by Vivend: at a price of $13 60 per share {less costs to sell) (€6.851 million) and the value of Activision
Blizzard's net assets attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners, as recorded in Vivendr's Consolidated Financial Statements at the date of the
loss of contral {€4,491 million} Moreover, in accordance with {FRS, foreign currency translation adjustments attnbutable to Vivendi SA
shareowners in relation te Activision Blizzard have been reclassified to profit or loss, 1, a gain of €555 million Thus the total capital gain
on the divestiture which amounted to €2,315 million with no tax impact, has been recognized in the Consolidated Statements under the line
“Earnings from discontinued operations”

1132 Maroc Telecom group

On November 4, 2013, Vivend: entered into a definitive agreement with Etisalat, with whom excluswve negotiations had begun on July 22
2013, regarding the sale of Vivendi's 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group The key terms of this agreement known to date are as follows
« the agreement values the interest tin Maroc Telecom group at MAD 92 6 per share or sale proceeds to Vivend! of approximately
€4 2 billion 1n cash including a €310 million dividend distribution with respect to fiscal year 2012, according to the financial terms
known to date Taking into account Maroc Telecom group’s net debt, the transaction reflects a proportional enterprise valug of
€4 5 billion for Vivend:’s interest, equal to an EBITDA multiple of 6 2x, and
« the completion of this transaction 1s contingent upon the satisfaction of certain closing conditions, including receipt of required
regulatory approvals in Morocco and the countries in which Maroc Telecom group operates, as well as finalization of the
shareholders’ agreement between Etisalat and the Kingdom of Morocco This transaction 1s expected to be completed during the
first months of 2014

1133 Accounting imphications in the Consolidated Financial Statements

As from the second quarter of 2013, and in comphance with IFRS 5 taking into account the anticipated closing dates of the effective sales,
Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in Vivend:'s Conselidated Statement of Earnings, Statement of Cash Flows,
and Statement of Financial Position as discontinued operations
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In practice, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported as follows

o ther contribution, until the effective sale, of any, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-
controlling interests) has been grouped under the line “Earnings from discontinued operations™ Their share of net income has
been excluded from Vivend:’s adusted net income, and

» therr contribution, until the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivend’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped
under the line "Cash flows from discontinued operations” Their cash flow from operations {CFFQ), cash flow from operations
before capital expenditures, net (CFFO before capex, net), and cash flow from operations after interest and income taxes (CFAIT)
have been excluded from Vivendi's CFFQ, CFFO before capex, net, and CFAIT

In accordance with IFRS 5, these adjusiments have been apphed to all penods presented in the Consohidated Finaneial Statements {2013 and
2012} to ensure consistency of information

Mareover, the contnibution of Marec Telecom group to each line of Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of December
31, 2013 has been grouped under the hines “assets of discontinued businesses” and “liabilities associated with assets of discontinued
businesses” Its Financial Net Debt was excluded from Vivend:'s Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013

Please refer to Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

1.1.4 Acquisition of Lagardére group’s non-controlling interest in Canal+ France

On November 5, 2013, Vivendi acquired Lagardére Group's 20% interest in Canal+ France, for €1,020 million in cash In accordance with IFRS 10,
Vivend: recorded this transaction as an acquisition of a non-controlling interest The difference between the consideration paid and the carrying
value of the acquired noncontrolling interest was recorded as a deduction from equity attrbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners (-€636 million) In
addition, Vivendi and Lagardere Group have settled all disputes between them {please refer to Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013) Thereafter, Canal+ France S A was merged with and into Canal+ Group S A, pursuant
to a simplified merger, with retroactive effect to January 1, 2013

115 Completion of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group
(UMG)

As a reminder, on September 28, 2012 Vivendi and UMG completed the acquisition of 100% of the recorded music business of EMI Group
Global Limited (EMI Recorded Musicl EMI Recorded Music has been fully cansolidated since that date The purchase price, in enterprise
value, amounted to £1,130million (€1,404 million) The authonization by the European Commission was notably conditional upon the
divestment of the Parlophone, Now, and Mute labels In accordance with IFRS 5, Vivendi reported these assets as assets held for sale at
market value {less costs to sell), in the Statements of Financial Position, until completion of the sale

On February 7, 2013, Vivend: and UMG announced that they had entered into an agreement for the sale of Parlophone Label Group to
Warner Music Group for an enterprise value of £487 mullion to be paid in cash Follewing the approval by the European Commission on May
15, 2013, the sale of Parlophone Label Group was completed on July 1, 2013 and Vivendi receved consideration of £501 million
{€591 million}, including the provisional estimated contractual price adjustments (£14 million)

Moregver, the divestments of Sanctuary, Now, and Mute were completed

The aggregate amount of divestments made in compliance with the conditions imposed by the regulatory autharities in connection with the
acguisition of EMI Recorded Music was £543 million, less costs to sell {approximately €679 million, including €39 million in gains on foreign
exchange hedging and a censideration of €19 million remaining payable as of December 31, 2013)

1.1.6 Agreement to share a part of SFR's mobile access networks

On January 31, 2014 SFR and Bouygues Telecom entered into a strategic agreement to share a part of their mobile access netwarks, following a
period of negotiations announced in July 2013 They will roll out a new shared network in an area covening 57% of the French population This
agreement will enable both operators to improve their mobile coverage and generate significant savings over time

The agreement 1s based on two principles
» the creation of a joint company, to manage the shared base station assets, and
e entry by the operators into 2 RAN-sharing service agreement covening 26, 3G, and 4G services in the shared area

This network-sharing agreement 1s similar to numerous arrangements already existing 1n other European countries Each operator will retain
its own innovation capacity as well as complete commercial and pricing (ndependence

The network-shanng agreement took effect upon the sigrung of the agreement and the shared netwaork 1s expected to be completed by the
end of 2017

From an accounting perspective, this agreement had no impact on the accounts for fiscal year 2013
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1.1.7  Acquisitions by Canal+ Group
Acquisition of a 51% nterest in Mediaserv

On July 12, 2013, Canal+ Overseas entered into an agreement with Loret Group to acquire a 51% majonty interest in Mediasery, an
overseas telecom operator On February 10, 2014, the Freach Competition Authonty approved this acguisition, which was completed on
February 13, 2014

Acquisition of a 60% interest in Red Production Company

On December 5, 2013, Studiocanal acquired a 60% majonty interest in Red Production Company, a British company which produces
television senes

Acquisition of an additional interest 1n N-Vision

On Novemnber 30, 2012, Canal+ Group acquired a 40% interest in N-Vision, which indirectly holds a 52% interest in TVN On December 18,
2013, 1 accordance with the shareholders’ agreement, ITI exercised its put option to sell to Canal+ Group a 9% interest in N-Vision's share
capital and voting nights for €62 mullion, paid in cash in February 2014 Canal+ Group's ownership interest in N-Vision thus increased to 43%

1.1.8 Financial Net Debt change

For a detailed description of the new financings set up in 2013 as well as the redemptions following the closing of the Activision Bhizzard sale,
please refer to Section 5 For a detailed description of the maturities of the bonds and bank credit facilities as of December 31, 2013, please
refer to Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

1.2 Significant events since December 31, 2013

The significant events that have occurred since December 31, 2013 were as follows

»  onJanuary 14, 2014, Canal+ Group won the exclusive broadcasting nights to the national French Rugby Championship “TOP 14" for
five seasons (2014-2015 to 2018-2019) These rights relate to all of the TOP 14 matches, across all media and all territories,

« on January 31 2014, SFR and Bouygues Telecom entered into a strateqic agreement to share a part of theirr mobile access
networks, and

s onFebruary 13, 2014, Vivend| entered into exclusive negotiations with Belgacom to acquire 100% of «ts subsidiary Telindus France
Group. a leader on the French markets of telecommunication integration and networks Once signed, the transaction will be
submutted to the French competrtion autharity approval
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2 Earnings analysis

Prelimmary comments
As from the second quarter of 2013, in comphance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported m Vivend's
Consolidated Statement of Farmings as discontinued operations In prachce, income and charges from these two businesses have been
reported as follows
- ther contnbution unt) the effective divestiture, o any, to each hine of Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of Earmings {before non-
controlling interests) has been grouped under the line "Earmings from discantinued operations”,
- paccordance with IFAS 5, these adiustments have been applied to all pertods presented to ensure consistency of information, and
- their share of net income has been excluded fram Vivend's adjusted net imncome
On October 11, 2013, Vivend: deconsolidated Activiston Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest

Moreover, data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adjusted following the apphcation of amended IAS 19, whose
apphication 1s mandatory in the European Umon begmmng on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012
{please refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013)

These adjustments are presented in Appendix 1 to this Financial Report and n Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2013

2.1 Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Adjusted Statement of

Earnings
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS ADJUSTED STATEMENY OF EARNINGS
Year ended December 3t Year ended December 31
2013 2012 {a) 2013 20124{a)
Revenues 22134 25sn 2135 22577 Revenues
Cost of revenues {12 988) 12 672) {12 988) [12672) Cost of revenues
Margin from operations 9147 4,905 9,147 9905 Margin from operations
Selkng general and administrative expenses excluding Selling general and administrative expenses excluding
amortization of intangible assets acquared through business amortization of ntangible assets acquired through business
combinations 16 443) {6 469) 6443) 16469) combinations
Restructuning charges and other operating charges and Restructuring chasges and ather operating charges and
ngome {21 [273) (211) {273} ncome
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations 1462 1436)
Impaimment losses on intangible assets acquired through
business cambinaticns 12 437) {760}
Reserve accrual celated to the Liberty Media Corporation
Itgatuan i the United States - \E L)
Cther income 88 13
Other charges {57) {236)
EBIT {435) 805 2433 3163 EBITA
Income: from equnty affiliates [33) 138 {33) {38) Income from equity atfiliates
Interest (528) (544} 1528) 344 Interest
Income from investments 67 7 67 7 Income from ivestrrents
Cther financial incoma 51 37
Other financial charges {561) (204}
Earnings from continuing operations before provision {1,439) 15939 2588 Adjusted earmings from continuing operstions before
for income taxes provision for mcomo taxes
Provigion for income taxes M7 {604) (282) {766} Prowision for income taxes
Earnings from continuing operetions {1,856) {541}
Earmings from discontinued operations 4635 1505
Earnings 2119 964 1,657 1,822 Adjusted net income befare non-controiling interssts
Of which Of which
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners 1.967 179 1,540 1705 Adjusted nst mcome
Non-controlling interests 812 8% 117 117 Non-controlling interests
Earnings attributable ta Vivend: SA shareowners per
share - hasc (in suros) 148 014 116 131 Adjusted netincoms per share - basic (in suros)
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per
share - diluted {in euros}) 147 01 115 131 Adjusted netincome per share - diluted (in suros)

In millions of euros except per share amounts

a  Data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adiusted following the application of IFRS & and amended IAS 19 (please refer
to the preliminary camments above)
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2.2 Earnings review

Adjusted net income analysis

Adjusted net income was £1,540 million {or €1 16 per share?), compared to €1,705 million {or €1 31 per share) in 2012 This €165 mullion
decrease (-9 7%) resulted primanly from

e @ €730 million decrease in EBITA to a total of €2,433 million {compared to £€3,163 million in 2012} This change mainly reflected the
decline in the performances of SFR (-€527 million}, GVT (-€83 million, pnmarily due to the decline in value of the Brazilian Reall,
Canal+ Group {-€52 million, including the increase in transition costs related to D8/D17 and “n” for -€39 mullion), and Universal
Music Group {-€15 million, including the increase in restructuning charges for -€35 million and integration costs related to EM|
Recerded Music for -€8 million}) Moreover, this change included the costs related to the launch of Watchever in Germany
{-€66 mlkion},
a €5 million increase attributable to the change in income from equity affiliates,
a €16 mllion decrease In interest,
a €60 mullion increase 1n income from investments, and
a €484 milhion decrease in income tax expense. mainly reflecting the impact of the decline in the group’s business segments’
taxable income {+€193 million), primanly due to SFR, the favorable impact of certain non-recurning items {+£149 million), and the
increase in the current tax savings related to Vivend) SA’s tax group System (+€50 million), primanly due to Canal+ Group

Breakdown of the main items from the Statement of Earnings

Revenues were £22,135 million, compared to £22,577 million i 2012 (-2 0%, or +0 2% at constant currency) For a breakdown of revenues
by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Costs of revenues amounted to £12,988 million, compared to £12,672 mitiion 1n 2012, a €316 million increase {+2 5%}
Margmn from operations decreased by €758 million, to €9,147 million, compared to €9,905 million n 2012 (-7 7%)

Selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding the amartization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to 6,443 million, compared to €6,469 milkon in 2012, a €26 miflion decrease (-0 4%)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included ether in the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
administrative expenses BDepreciation and amortization, excluding amortzation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted %o €2,207 milhon {compared o €2,079 rithon n 2012), an addrionat €128 milhon charge (45 2%} This change mainly resulted from the
increase in the depreciation of telecommunication network assets of SFR and GVT

Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income amounted to a net charge of €271 million, compared to a net charge
of €273 milion n 2012 In 2013, restructuring charges were €208 million {compared to €273 milhion in 2012) and included €114 million
incurred by UMG {compared to £79 millien in 2012} and €33 million incurred by SFR {compared ta €187 million 1n 2012} In 2013, transition
costs incurred by Canal+ Group and UMG amounted to €50 million {of which €43 million related to “n” and €7 millian related to D8/D17,
compared to €11 milhon 1n 2012) and €27 million (compared to €19 million 1n 2012) respectively Moreaver, in 2012, ather operating charges
mchuded the €66 million fine ordered agamst SFR by the French Competition Authonty in December 2012

EBITA was €2,433 million, compared to €3,163 milhion in 2012, a €730 millicn decrease (-23 1%, or -20 6% at constant currency) For a
breakdown of EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations was €462 million, compared to €436 million 10 2012, a
£26 million increase {+6 0%}, mainly related to the amortization of music nghts and catalogs acquired by Universal Music Group from EMI
Recorded Music on September 28, 2012

Impawment losses on wntangible assets acquired through business combinations amounted to €2,437 mullion, compared to
€760 million in 2012 In 2013, they refiected the impairment of SFR's goodwill {€2,431 mullion} In 2012, they related to the impairment of
Canal+ France's goodwill {€665 million) and certain goodwilt and music catalogs of Universal Music Group {£94 million)

As of December 31, 2012, based on the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012 1n relation to the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the
United States, which was confirmed by the court in New York on January 9, 2013 and entered into the record by the judge on January 17,
2013, Vivend accrued a reserve for the full amount of the judgment (€945 million), representing €765 million 1n damages and €180 mullion 1n
pre-judgment nterest covering the peried from December 16, 2001 to January 17, 2013, at the rate of one-year US Treasury notes As of
December 31, 2013, this £945 mullion reserve as well as the €100 millien reserve recogruzed at year-end 2610 n relation to the Secunties

Z For the details of adjusted net income per shara pleasa refer to Appendix 1 to this Financial Report
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Class Action in the United States were unchanged Please refer to Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013

Other incame amounted to €88 million, compared to €19 million 1n 2012 [n 2013, it notably included the gain related to Universal Music
Group's 2 8% interest dilution in Vevo (€18 million)

Other charges amounted to €57 million, compared to €236 million in 2012 {n 2012, they mainly included the €119 million impairment loss
on Canal+ Group's interest in N-Vision in Poland and €63 million in acquisition costs {EMI Recorded Music, and the strategic partnership in
Poland)

EBIT was a €435 milhon loss, compared to a €805 million gan 1n 2012, an unfavorable change of €1,240 milion, mainly reflecting the
decrease in 2013 EBITA {-€730 mdlign), as well as the impairment of SFR's goodwill (€2,431 million) as of December 31, 2013, partially
offset by the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Media Corporation Iitigation in the United States (€945 million} and the impairment of
Canal+ France's goodwill (665 million} as of December 31, 2012

Income from equity affiliates was a €33 millron charge, compared to a €38 million charge in 2012

Interest was an expense of €528 million, compared to €544 million in 2012, a €16 million decrease (-2 9%)

In 2013, interest expense on borrowings amounted to €553 million, compared to €572 million 1n 2012 This change was mainly attnbutable
to the decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings to 3 38% {compared to 3 46% n 2012) and to the stability in the average
outstanding borrowings of €16 3billion 1n 2013 (compared to €165 bullion in 2012} Indeed, the impact on the average outstanding
borrowings of the sales of Activision Bhizzard on October 14, 2013 {€6 billian} and of Parlophone Label Group on July 1, 2013 (€0 7 billion),
was offset by the impact of the acquisitions of EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 (€1 4 billion) and of Lagardére’s interest in
Canal+ France on November 5, 2013 {€1 bithon)

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to €25 million, compared to €28 million in 2012, a €3 million decrease

Income from investments amounted to €67 million, compared to €7 million 1n 2012 It included interest and dividends recewved from
uncensolidated companies, notably including a €54 million dividend recewved by UMG from Beats in 2013

Other financial charges and income amounted to a net charge of €510 million, compared to a net charge of €167 million in 2012 They
mainly included premiums and costs related to the early bond redemptions made during the fourth quarter of 2013 following the sale of the
majority of Vivendr's interest in Activision Blizzard (-€207 million) as well as the -€186 milion foreign exchange loss {compared to a
€76 million foreign exchange loss in 2012} on GVT's intercompany euro loan from Vivend), due to the decline in value of the Brazihan Real
Please refer to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,2013

Income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €282 million, compared to a net charge of €766 million in 2012, a
€484 million decrease This change mainly reflected the impact of the decline n the group’s business segments’ taxable income
{+€199 mullion], pnmarily due to SFR, the favorable impact of certain non-recurring rtems (+€149 million), which reflected the change, during
the penod, in the assessment of risks related to previous years’ income taxes, and the increase n current tax savings related to Vivendi SA's
tax group System (+€50 million), pnmanly related to Canal+ Group The effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income was 14 3%,
compared to 29 2% in 2012 Excluding the favorable impact of certain non-recurming items, the effective tax rate on adjusted net income was
20 8% 1n 2013 {compared to 28 3% n 2012)

In addition, provision for income taxes was a net charge of €417 mullion, compared to a net charge of €604 rmullion in 2012, a €187 million
decrease In addition to the factors explaining the decrease in income taxes reported to adjusted net income, this change reflected the
addsonal contribution af 3% on Vivend: SA's dividend for fiscal year 2012 (€40 mullion) as well as the change in deferred tax savings related
to Vivendi SA's tax group System, which was a €161 million charge in 2013 {compared to a €48 million charge in 2012)

Earnings from discontinued operations (before non-controlling interests) amounted to €4,63% million, compared to €1,505 million n
2012 In 2013, 1t included the capital gain on the divestiture of Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013 (€2,915 million} and the change in
value, since that date, of the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares still owned by Vivend) as of December 31, 2013 {gain of €245 million)
Moreover, eamings from discontinued operations included Activision Blizzard's earnings unti} the effective date of divestiture (€692 million,
compared to €873 million in 2012), as well as Maroc Telecom group’s earnings {€783 million 1n 2013, compared to €632 milhon n 2012} In
2013, these earmings also took into account the discontinuation of the amortization of tangible and intangible assets of these two
businesses since July 1, 2013 in accordance with accounting standards (+€270 million impact i 2013)

Please refer to Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

Earnings attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €812 million, compared to €785 million in 2012, a €27 million increase
(+3 4%) It pnmanly included Maroc Telecom group’s non-controlling interests (€435 million 1n 2013, compared to €335 millien 1n 2012} and
Activision Blizzard's non-controlling interests (€269 millian from January 1, 2013 to October 11, 2013, compared to €337 million 1n 2012}

Adjusted net income attributable to non-contralling interests amounted to £117 miltion, unchanged compared to December 31, 2012,
and primantly included Lagardére’s non-controlling interest in Canal+ Group until November 5, 2013
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In 2013, earnings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners amounted to €1,967 rwihon {or €1 48 per share), compared to €173 million
{or €0 14 per share) in 2012, a €1,788 million increase  This change mainly reflected n 2013, the capital gain on the divestiture of Activision
Blizzard (€2,915 million), partially offset by the impairment of SFR's goodwill (-€2,431 million), and 1n 2012, the reserve acerual in relation to
the Liberty Media Corporation litigatien in the United States {-€945 million) and the impairment of Canal+ France's goodwill (-€665 miflion)

The reconciliation of earnings attributahle to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income 15 further described 1n Appendix 1
to thrs Financial Repert In 2013, this reconcihation primanly included the capital gain on the divestiture of Activision Blizzard
{+€2,915 millien), the change 1n value of the 83 million shares in Actvision Blizzard still owned by Vivend: as of December 31, 2013 {gain of
€245 million), Activision Blizzard's earnings until Cctober 11, 2013 {+£423 million, after non-controlling interests) and Maroc Telecom group's
earnings 1n 2013 {+€348 million, after nen-controlling interests), offset by the impairment of SFR's goodwall (-€2.431 million), the
amortization and impairment of intangible assets acquired through business combinations {-€320 millien, after taxes), as well as other
financial charges, net (€510 million) In 2012, this reconciliation primanily included earnings from Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom
group {+€833 million, after non-controlling :nterests), the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Media Corporation 1iigation in the United
States {-£945 million}, the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill (-€665 million), and amortization and impairment losses on intangible
assets acyuired through business combinations {-€388 million, after taxes)

3 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comments,

» Vivendr considers that the non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations (CFFO) cash flow from operations before caprtal
expenditures (CFFO before capex, net) and cash flow from operations affer interest and taxes (CFAIT} are refevant indicators of the
group’s aperating and financial performance These indicators should be considered i addition te, and not as substitutes for other
GAAP measures as reported m Vivendi's Cash Flow Statement, contaied in the groug’s Consolidated Financial Statements

s As from the second quarter of 2013, in comphance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported m
Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations In practice, cash flows from these two businasses have
been reported as follows

- their contribution untif the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been
grouped under the ling "Cash flows from discontinued operations”,

- in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been appled to all periods presented to ensure consistency of
inforration, and

- their cash flow from operations (CFFQ), cash flow from operations before capital expenditures, net (CFFQ before capes, net),
and cash flow from operations after interest and mcome taxes (CFAIT) have been excluded from Vivendr's CFFO, CFFO before
capex, net, and CFAIT

In 2013, cash flow from operations {CFFO} generated by business segments was €1,453 million (compared to €1,213 mithon in 2012}, an
improvement of €240 mifhon {(+19 8%) In 2012, capital expenditures notably included the acquisition by SFR of 4G mobile spectrum for
£1,065 million Excluding this impact, CFFO decreased by €825 million {-36 2%)

In 2013, cash flow from operations before capital expenditures (CFFO hefore capex, net) generated by business segments amounted to
€4,077 million {compared to €5,189 million in 2012}, a €1,112 million decrease This change reflected a decrease in EBITDA after changes in
net working capital {-€998 million), pnmanly related to SFR's decrease It also reflected the increase in restructuring charges paid by SFR
{(+€150 milion) and UMG {+€25 million}, partially offset by the dividends paid by Beats to UMG (€54 million)

In 2013, capital expenditures, net amounted to €2,624 million (compared to €3,9786 million in 2012), a €1,352 millien decrease, notably
attributable to the acquisition by SFR in January 2012 of 4G mobile spectrum for €1,085 miflion Excluding this impact, capital expenditures,
net decreased by €287 milhon

Cash payments for financial activities amounted to €877 million {compared to €640 million 1n 2012}, a €237 mdlion increase This change
was primarily due to the premiums paid (E182 million} and foreign exchange losses incurred (34 million) in relation to the early redemption
of bonds {eurc-denominated and US dollar-denominated bonds) for an aggregate amount of €3 billion, following the sale of 88% of its
interest in Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013 In 2012, cash payments for financial activitres notably included a €78 million foreign
exchange loss attributable to the redemption n Apnil 2012 of a $700 million bond Moreover, cash payments for financial activities included
interest paid, net of €528 million {compared to €544 milhon 1n 2012}, a €16 million decrease

Income taxes pad amounted to €197 million {compared to €353 million 1n 2012}, a €156 million decrease, reflecting the decrease n the
amount of income tax instaliments paid by the group's entivies (-€491 mithon), partially offset by lower refunds received as part of Vivendi's
SA’s tax group System (201 million received 1n 2013, compared to €530 million recerved in 2012) In 2013, the amount of taxes paid
included the new additional contribution of 3% on the dividend paid by Vivend: SA (€40 millian)

Therefore, \n 2013, cash flow from operatens after interest and income taxes paid (CFAIT) amounted to €379 mullion (compared to
€220 million 1n 2012, a €159 million increase
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fin enilhions of euros)

Revenues

Dperanng expenses excluding depretiation and amortization

EBITDA [}
Restructunng charges paid

Content investments net

of which fiim and television nghts net at Canat Group

Acquisition of film and television nghts
Consumption of film and television nghts

of which sports nghts net at Canal+ Group

Acquisizion of sports nghts
Consumption of sports nghts

of which paymanis 10 artists and repertoire owners nat at UMG

FPayments to artists and repertoire gwners
Recaupment of advances and other movements

Neutrahzation of change in provisions included n EBMTDA
Other cash operating ttems excluded from EBITDA
Dther changes in net working capital

Net cash provided by opersting activities before income tex pard {c}
Bividends receved from equity affiliates {d)
Dividends receved from unconsoldated companies {d)
Cash flow from operations, before capital expendituras, ngt befors capex, net

Capital expenditures net capex net) {e)

of which GVT
SR g}

Cash flow from oparations {CFFO)

Interest pad net 1]
Other cash items related to financial actvities If}

of which gaws/llesses} on currency transactions
fees and premumn on borrowings issued/redoemed and early unwinding of hedging
derivative nstruments

Financial activities cash payments
Payment receved from the French State Treasury as part of the Vivend) SA's French Tax Group
and Conschdated Global Profit Tax Systems

Qther taxes paid
Income tax (pardl/receved. nat {c)
Cash fl tigns after interest an ma tax pard (CEAIT

na not apphcable

a
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Year ended December 31
2013 2012{a) € Change % Change
22135 2577 -442 -20%
{17 207) 17 027) 180 -11%
4928 5550 622 -112%
(282) {114) 168 x25
{148) {145) -3 21%
{863) {7604 -109 143%
743 703 +4 +57%
{126} 57} 49 x22
{714} {654) 40 92%
759 672 +§7 +12 9%
45 18 +27 X285
{599} {647) 48 +74%
561 603 42 70%
{38 {44} + +136%
(90) (149) +54 +175%
{80) 3 43 x26
(308} 69 377 na
4,020 5185 -1, 165 -22 5%
k| 3 - -
54 1 +53 x54 0
4,077 5,189 -1,112 -214%
{2 624} {3976} +1 352 +340%
{768} 947} +178 +188%
{1610} 12736} +1 126 +412%
1,453 1,213 +240 +198%
(528) (544) +16 +29%
{349) {96) -253 x36
{143/ {50) f:x3 x29
{194} & -185 X215
{877) 640/ -237 =37 0%
n 536 -335 62 5%
(398} {889} +491 +552%
{197) {353) +156 +44.2%
n 220 1-159= ¢1‘2.'.i=%

Data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adjusted following the application of IFRS 5 (please refer to the preliminary

comments above) and amended IAS 19

EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, 1$ described in Section 4 of thus Financial Report

As presented in net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table (please refer

to Section 5 3}

As presented in net cash provided by/{used for} investing activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table

{please refer to Section 5 3}

Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from property, ptant and equipment, and intangible assets as presented in
the investing activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table (please refer to Section 5 3)

As presented 1n net cash provided by/used for) financing activities of continuing operations 1n the Financial Net Debt changes table

(please refer to Section 5 3)

In 2012, SFR's capital expenditures notably included the acquisition of 4G spectrum for €1,065 million in January 2012
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4 Business segment performance analysis

Preliminary comments:

. Vivendi Management evaluates the performance of Vivend:’s business segments and allocates the necessary resources to them based
on certain gperating performance indicators, notably the non-GAAF measures EBITA {Adsted Faramgs Before Interest and Incoms
Taxes) and EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Deprecration and Amortization)

. the difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of wintangible assets acquired through busmess
combmations, the imparment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and EBIT's “other
charges” and “other income” as defined mn Note 12 3 to the Consohidated Financial Statements for the year ended December
31,2013 and
as defined by Vivends, EBITDA s calculated as EBITA as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Farnings, before depreciation
and amortization of tangible and intangible assets, restructuring charges, gains/{losses/ on the sale of tangible and intangible
assets, and ather non-ecurring tems (as presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings by operating segment - Please
refer to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013)

Moreover, 1t should be noted that other companies may define and calculate EBITA and EBITDA differently from Vivend:, thereby
affecung comparability

+ As from the second quarter of 2013, in comphance with IFRS 5, Actmsion Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in
Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Earnings as discontinued operations In practice, mcome and charges from these two busingsses
have been reported as follows

- thewr contribution until the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earmings (before non-
controlling interests) has been grouped under the hine “Earnings from discontinued operations”,

- in accordance with IFBS 5. these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of information,
and

- their share of net income has been excluded from Vivendr's adyusted net income

» Data presented below also takes into account the consohdation of the following entities as from the indicated dates
- at Canal+ Group D8 and D17 (September 27, 2012) and “n” (November 30, 2012), and
- at Universal Music Group EMI Recorded Music (September 28, 2012)

e Moreover, as of January 1, 2013, Vivend appled, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19, whose application
Is mandatory n the European Umon beginming on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013) As a result, the 2012 Financial Statements, notably EBITA, were adusted in
accordance with the new standard

Please refer to Appendix 1 of this Financial Report for a presentation of the adjustments made to previously published data
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4.1 Revenues, EBITA, and cash flow from operations by business

segment
Year ended December 31,
% Change at

{in millions of euros} 2013 2012 % Change constant rate
Revenues
Canal+ Group 5,311 5013 +5 9% +62%
Universal Music Group 4,886 4544 +7 5% +128%
GVT 1,709 1,718 04% +131%
QOther 72 66 +91% +137%
Elimnation of intersegment transactions (17 {26} na na

Media & Content 11,961 1313 +57% +101%
SFR 10,198 11,288 -96% -4 6%
Elimination of intersegment transactions related to SFR 25) {24} na na
Total Vivends 22135 22,577 -2.0% +0.2%
EBITA
Canal+ Group 611 663 -718% -719%
Universal Music Group 511 526 -29% +14%
GVT 405 488 -170% -57%
QOther (80) (14) x57 x56
Holding & Corporate 87 {100) +130% +12 7%

Media & Content 1,360 1,563 -13 0% -80%
SFR 1,073 1,600 -32 9% -32 9%
Total Vivend: 2,433 3,163 -231% -20 6%

Year ended December 31,

{in milions of euros) 2013 2042 % Change
Cash flow from operations, before capital expenditures, net (CFF(} hefore capex, nat)
Canal+ Group 689 706 -24%
Unuwvarsal Music Group 611 528 +157%
GVT 678 621 +92%
Other {72) (2} x360
Holding & Corporate {89) (93} + 3%

Media & Content 1817 1,760 +3 2%
SR 2,260 3429 -34 1%
Total Vivend: 4,077 5,189 -21.4%

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

Canal+ Group 478 476 +0 4%
Universal Music Group 585 472 +23 9%
GVT (91} {326) +7121%
Other {80) (8} x100
Holding & Corporate {89) (94} +53%

Media & Content 803 520 +54 4%
SFR 650 693 62%
Total Vivend: 1,453 1,213 +198%

na not applicable
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421 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31

% Change at
{tn millions of euros, except for margins) 2013 2012 % Change constant rate
Pay-TV m Mainland France 3544 3593 -1 4% -14%
International Pay-TV (a) 1122 890 +261% +271%
Free-to-air TV in France {b} 172 64 x27 x27
Studiocanal 473 466 +1 5% +29%
Total Revenues 5311 5013 +5 9% +6.2%
EBITDA 905 940 3% -36%
EBITA 61 663 -18% -19%
Transstion costs {50} {11)
EBITA excluding transition costs 661 674 -1.8% -2 0%
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 478 476 +04%
Cash flow fram operations (CFFO) excluding transiticn costs 528 499 +58%
Subscnptions (in thousands)
Pay-TV in Mainland France [c) 9,534 9,719 -185
International Pay-TV 5137 4,735 +402
Total Canal+ Group 1461 14,454 +217
Indidual subsenbers (in thousands)
Pay-TV in Mainland France 6091 617 -26
International Pay-TV 4,352 4077 +275
Tatal Canal+ Group 10,443 10,194 +249
Churn per indmdual subscriber wath commitment (Mainland France) 14 9% 138% +1pt
Net ARPU, in euros per individual subscnber with commitment (Mainland France) 4472 432 +2 3%

a Relates to pay-TV operations in French averseas terrtories, Africa, Vietnam, and Poland {whose "n” platform has been consolidated

since November 30, 2012)

b Includes the free-to-ar channels D8 and D17, consolidated since September 27, 2012, as well as 1>Télé and advertising activities

outside of the group’s scope

¢ Includes individual and collective subscriptions with commitment and without commitment {Canal, CanalSat and CanalPlay}
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Revenues and EBITA

Canal+ Group's revenues were €5.311 million, a 5 9% ncrease (-0 5% at constant penmeter and currency) year-on-year This growth was
pnmanly driven by the development of pay-TV operations outside of France, notably in Africa and Poland, and by the acquisition and
suceessful re-launch of the free-to-air channels D8 and D17

At the end of December 2013, Canal+ Group reached 10 4 millon indvidual subscribers (+#249,000 year-on-year) for a total of 14 7 million
subscriptions This growth was due to strong performance in overseas countries, where total individual subscnibers reached 4 4 million
(+275,000 compared to year-end 2012} In manland France, total indwidual subscribers remained almost stable at 6 1 milhon despite a
challenging economic and competitive environment Net average revenue per individual subscnber in mainland France continued to grow,
reaching €44 2, compared to €43 2 1n 2012

Free-to-ar TV operations strongly contributed to revenue growth, thanks to the integration of D8 and D17 In December 2013, these channels
had aggregated an audience share of 4 7%, including 3 4% for D8, which only a year after its re-launch, regularly ranks as the fifth national
channel in France

Studiocanal's revenues increased due to the development of TV sales and international rights {in particular "Non-Stop* by Jaume Collet-Serra
and "Hunger Games 2* in Germany} In 2013, Studiocanal supported major productions including the Coen brothers” film “Inside Llewyn
Dawis”, winner of the Grand Prix du Jury at Cannes in 2013, and the series “Crossing Lines”, which 1s notably broadcast in the United States,
Canada, France, and ltaly In arder to strengthen its position in TV senes production, Studiocanal acquired 60% of the British company Red in
2013

Excluding transition costs related to 08, D17 and the new operations in Poland Canal+ Group’s EBITA was €661 million, down 1 9%
compared to 2012 This change was due to lower advertising revenues on pay-TV channels and higher programming costs due to an
increase tn exclusive content Including costs related to the ntegration of DB, D17 and the new aperations n Poland, EBITA was
€611 million DB and D17 achieved breakeven in the fourth quarter of 2013

On January 14, 2014, the French rugby league {LNR) awarded Canal+ Group exclusive broadcasting nghts far the TOP 14 French rugby
champtonship for five new seasons (2014/2015 to 2018/2019) These nghts cover all TOP 14 games, across all platforms and in all termitones
They complete the portfolio of major sports nghts already owned by Canal+ Group, n particular the best French and European football {two
live games on every Ligue 1, match day and the top pick on every Champions League day, and the full Enghsh Premier League) and the Formula
1 world championship

Moreover, the quality of Original Creations, in the heart of Canal+ programming, has been recognized again In 2013, the senes “les
Revenants” was given the best drama series award at the International Emmy Awards and “Maison Close” receved the award for best
French series at the Television Festival of Monte-Carlo

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

Canal+ Group's cash flow from operations amounted to €478 million, compared to €476 million in 2012 The unfavorable change 1n EBITDA
after changes n net working capital and the transition costs paid were offset by the decrease in content investments, net (notably at
Studiocanal) and capital expenditures, net
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Year ended December 31,

% Change at

{in millions of euras except for margis) 2013 2012 % Change constant rate

Physical sales 1665 756 52% #11%

Digrtal sales 1705 1365 +24 3% +#301%

License and other 622 561 +10 8% +155%
Recorded music 3.992 3682 [a) +8 4% +141%
Music publishing 655 661 -09% +3 0%
Merchandising and other 273 235 +16 2% +20 3%
Elmination of intersegment transactions (34) {33) na na
Total Revenues 4,886 4,504 +7.5% +12 8%
EBITDA 714 675 +5 8% +109%
EBITA 211 826 {a) -2.9% +1 4%
Restructunng and integration costs (141) (98) -43 9%
EBITA excluding restructuring and integration costs 652 624 +1 5% +9.5%
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 585 472 +23.9%
Recorded music revenues by geographical area
Europe 40% 40%
North Amenca 40% 37%
Asia 12% 15%
Rest of the world 8% 8%

100% 100%
Recorded music sales of physical and digital albums and DVDs, in milltons of units

Artist - Title 2013 Artist- Title 2012
Eminem - The Marshall Mathers (P 2 38 Taylor Swift- Red 51
Katy Perry - Prism 29 Justin Bigber - Believe 29
Imagine Dragons - Night Visions 24 Lana Del Rey-Born To Die 27
Lady GaGa - Artpop 23 Red Stewan - Merry Chnstmas, Baby 26
Drake - Nothing Was The Same 21 Rihanna - Unapologetic 23
Luke Bryan - Crash My Party 18  Maroon 5 - Overexposed 22
Stromae - Racine Carrée 18 Emel Sande - Qur Version of Events 20
Robbte Williams - Swing Both Ways 16 Madonna - MDNA 17
Justin Bieber - Believe 18 Gotys - Making Mirrors 17
Lorde - Pure Heroine 15 Lionel Richie - Tuskegee 15
Total 218 Totat 247

na not applicable

a Includes revenues and EBITA of EMI Recorded Music (retained businesses) consolidated since September 28, 2012
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Revenues and EBITA

Universai Music Group {UMG) revenues were €4,886 million, up 12 8% at constant currency compared to 2012 {+7 5% at actual currency) At
constant currency, excluding EMI recorded music, revenues were in line with the prior year, as the decline in physical sales was offset by
the growth in digital and other revenues, with subscription and streaming revenue increasing by approximately 75% cver the prior year For
the first ime in 2013, yearly digital sales exceeded physical sales

Recorded music best sellers for 2013 included Eminem, Katy Perry, Imagine Dragons, Lady Gaga, Crake, Rabin Thicke as well as French-
language artist, Stromae The company's commercial and creative success set many records over the course of the year, including UMG
becoming the first company to achieve all ten of the Top 10 songs on the U S charts and nine of the Top 10 albums in the U S In addition,
UMG signed new agreements with leading labels including Disney Music Group, Glassnote Entertainment and Roc Nahon, as well legendary
artists including Neil Diamond, Queen, The Rolling Stones and Frank Sinatra

UMG's EBITA of €511 mullion was up 14% at constant currency {-2 9% at actual currency) compared to 2012 Excluding restructunng and
Integration costs, and at canstant currency, EBITA was up 9 5% compared to 2012, due to revenue growth and cost management efforts

UMG acheeved this performance despite a very difficult ndustry environment 1n Japan, the world's second largest music market

The company’s integration of EMI remains on track to deliver the previously disclosed synergies of more than £100 mullion by the end of
2014

Cash flow from aperations (CFFO}

UMG's cash flow from cperations amounted to €585 mullion {compared to €472 million in 2012), a €113 midlion increase compared to 2012
This included UMG's operating performances {EBITDA after changes in net working capital increased by €117 million), the exceptional
dividends received by UMG from Beats (€54 miltion) and property disposals {€27 million)
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423 GVT
Year ended December 31,
% Change at
{in milhons of eurps, except for margins) 2013 2012 (a} % Change constant rate
Telecoms 1,382 1434 36% +34%
Pay-Tv 174 83 x21 x24
Retaill and SME 1,556 1517 +26% +164%
Corporate and wholesale 153 199 -231% -12 3%
Total Revenues 1,703 1,716 -0.4% +131%
EBITDA 107 740 -4 5% +8 7%
EBITOA margn rate (%) 41 4% 431% -17pt
EBITA 405 488 =17 0% 5.7%
Capital expenditures, net {capex net) 769 947 -18.8%
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) {91} (326) +12.1%
Year ended December 31,
2013 2012 (a) % Change
Revenues {IFRS, in millions of BAL}
Retall and SME 4427 3804 +16 4%
Corporate and wholesale 435 496 -123%
Total 4,362 4300 +131%
Number of covered cities 150 139 +11
Retail and SME
Revenue Generating Units 10 thousands)
Volce 3934 3.489 +128%
Broadband Internet 2621 2,239 +17 1%
Praportion of offers 2 10 Mbps B6% 80% +6 pts
Total Telecoms 6,555 5728 +14 4%
Pay-TV 643 406 +58 4%
Total 7,198 6134 +17 3%
Net New Additions (in thousands)
Voice 445 660 -32 6%
Broadband Internet 382 515 -25 8%
Total Telecoms 827 1175 -29 6%
Pay-TV 237 374 -36 6%
Total 1,064 1,549 -31.3%
ARPU (BRL/month)
Voice 586 635 77%
Broadband Internet 492 515 -4 5%
Pay-TV 787 712 +1 9%

a In 2013, GVT changed the presentation of revenues due to a new segmentation, some Corporate clients were re-classified as SME
during the third quarter of 2013 2012 amounts were armended 1o ensure consistency of information presented
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Revenues and EBITA

GVT's revenues increased by 13 1% at constant currency {-04% at actual currency} compared to 2012, reaching €1,709 million This
performance was achieved in a highly competitive environment and a strong slowdown n the Brazilian econormy At year-end 2013, GVT
services covered 150 cities, compared to 139 cities one year earlier

GVT's pay-TV service performed well and generated revenues of €174 million, around 10% of GVT’s revenues The number of subscribers
reached about 543,000 at the end of 2013 {+58 4% year-on-year), representing a 24 6% penetration rate among GVT's broadband customer
base In addition to hybnid technology {satellite and IPTV}, GVT launched an offer providing pay-TV service via satellite only

The quality of the GVT offers continued to receive several accolades The company was ranked by Info Exame magazing as the operator
delivering the best broadband service in Brazil for the fifth consecutive year It also offers the highest average broadband speed to its
customers (13 4 Mhps, compared to the Brazilian average of 2 7 Mbps), according the Akama) Institute

GVT's EBITDA reached €707 milhon, an 8 7% (ncrease at constant currency {-4 5% at actual currency) compared to 2012 EBITDA margin
reached 41 4%, which s the highest margin in the Brazilian telecom operators market

GVT's EBITA was €405 million, a 5 7% decrease at constant currency {-17 0% at actual currency) compared to 2012 This change was due to
increased depreciation expenses attributed to the development of pay-TV and continued high capital expenditure to support its growth

In 2013, EBITDA-Capex was close to breakeven for the full year, and became positive in the second half of the year thanks to a strong
perfarmance in the telecom activities
Cash flow from operations {CFFO)

GVT's cash fiow from operations amounted to -€91 million (compared to €326 million 1n 2012), a €235 million increase This change
reflected the growth n EBITDA after changes in net working capital {(+£52 mithon} as well as a decrease n capital expenditures
(€769 milfion, compared to €947 million 1n 2012} Cash flow from operations hefore capital expenditures (CFFO before capex, net) increased
by 92% n 2013, to €678 million
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424 SFR
{tin millions of euros, except for margins) Year ended December 31,
2013 012 % Change
Retail 6.873 1974 -138%
B2B 1,789 1,871 44%
Wholesale and other {a} 1,537 1,443 +6 5%
Total Revenues 10,199 11,288 -9 6%
EBITDA 2,766 3299 -16 2%
EBITA 1,073 1,600 -32.9%
Restructuring costs (93 {187) 450 3%
EBITA excluding restructuring costs 1,166 1,787 -34 8%
Capital expenditures, net (capex net} (b} 1510 273 -41.2%
of which acquisitions of mobile spectrum - 1,065 -100 0%
capital expendrtures, net excluding acquisitions of mobile spectrum 1610 1,671 37%
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ} 650 693 -6.2%
of which acquisitions of mobife spectrum - {1.065) +100 0%
cash flow from operations excluding acquisitions of mobile spectrum 650 1,758 6£30%
SFR Group
Number of Mobile customers (in thousands} (c} 21,354 20,690 +32%
Acquisition cost {in millions of euros) 430 497 -67
Retention cost {in millions of euros) 541 634 43
Number of Internet customers {in thousands) 5,257 5,075 +36%
Retail market {d}
Number of Motule customers {in thousands) (c} 14,555 15,057 -33%
Number of Mobile pastpaid customers {:n thousands) {c} 11,39 11,194 +17%
Smartphone penetration {in % of customers) 64% 51% +13 pts
12-month rolling Mobile ARPU {in euros/month} 243 283 -150%
Number of Broadband Internet customers {in thousands) (d) 5209 5,039 +34%
12-manth rolling Broadband Intemet ARPU (in euros/month) 325 333 -26%

a Relates to wholesale operators, SRR {a SFR subsidiary in Reunion Island) as well as the elimnation of inter-company flows

b  Relates to net cash outflows in relation to acquisitions and disposals of tangible and intangible assets

¢ The customer base as of December 31, 2013 includes the Retail biling system migration in the fourth quarter of 2013 of 92,000 inactive
customers pursvant to a technical purge (no impact on revenues) The customer base as of December 31, 2012 relates to published data

(before the technical purge)

d Relates to the Metropolitan markst, excluding SRR
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Revenues and EBITA

SFR's revenues were €10,199 million, a 8 6% decrease compared to 2012, due to the impact of price cuts in response to the competitive
environment and to tanff cuts imposed by the regulators® Excluding the mpact of the tanff cuts imposed by the regulators, revenues
decreased by 7 2%

In 2013, SFR's total mobile customer base increased by 756,000% net additions since December 31, 2012 and reached 21 354 million* At the
end of December 2013, the broadband Intemet residential custorer base increased by 182,000 net additions to 5 257 million

Retail® revenues ameunted to 6,873 milhon, down 13 8% compared to 2012

Within the Mobile Retail market®, SFR’s postpaid customer base increased by 279,000* net additions in 2013 At the end of December, SFR's
postpaid mobile customer base reached 11 381 million, a 2 5%* increase compared to end December 2012 In the Retail Postpaid customer
market, in the fourth quarter SFR recorded 1ts best net sales performance since the fourth quarter of 2011, and its best December n three
years SFR's total (postpard and prepaid} Mobile Retail customer base reached 14 555 million* Mabile Internet usage continued to improve,
with 64% of SFR Retail customers equipped with a smariphaone {51% at end December 2012)

One year after having launched 4G, SFR covers more than 40% of the population representing 1,200 cities, with more than 1 million
customers at year-end SFR also covers over 70% of the population in Dual Carner

Within the Fixed Retail market®, the broadband Internet residential customer base in maintand France reached 5 209 million at the end of
December 2013, with 170,000 net additions since December 31, 2012, and an acceleration of fiber recrutments The “"Mulu-Pack de SFR”
offer attracted 2 355 million subscribers at the end of December 2013, representing 45% of the broadband Internet customer base

In a challenging macreeconamic environment, B2B8% revenues amounted to €1,789 million, down 4 4%

On February 13, 2014, Vivend anngunced it had entered intc exclusive negotiations with Belgacom Group to acquire 100% of the shares of
Telindus France Group Telindus Group is a leader on the French market of telecommunication integration and operations of ICT {Information
and Communication Technologies) infrastructures, and the first Cisco distnbutor in France Telindus France would further strengthen Vivendi's
Telecoms dwision, siting alongside the SFR group SFR will thus substantially expand its presence on the related market of
telecommunication integration and will provide new services 10 Its corporate customers in addition to those offered by the SFR Business
Team

Wholesale and other’ revenues amounted to €1,537 million, a 6 5% increase year-on-vear, mainly due to growth on Wholesale activity
SFR's EBITDA amounted to €2,766 million, a 16 2% decrease compared to 2012 {excluding non-recurnng tems®, EBITDA decreased by 16 5%)

SFR continues to implement its transformation plan Since the end of 2011, operating expand tures, both fixed and vanable, have decreased
by more than €1 billion {excluding non-recurring items®)

Cash flow from operations {CFFO)

SFR's cash flow from operations amounted to €650 mifiion, a 6 2% decrease compared to 2012 In 2012, 1t notably included the impact of
the acquisition of mobile spectrum for €1,065 million Excluding this impact, cash flow from operations amounted to £1,108 milhon {-63 0%),
primarily due to the decrease in EBITDA after changes in net working capital {-€992 million) and the increase In restructuring charges paid
{-€£150 millon}

? Tanff cuts smpased by ragulatory decision

1} 33% decrease n mobile voice termination regulated price on July 1 2012 and a further 20% decrease on January | 2013

1) 33% decrease m SMS termmation regulated price on July 1, 2012

ut) Aoarming tanff cuts on July T 2012 and on July 1 2013 and

v 50% decrease in fixed voice termination regulated price on July 1, 2012 and a further 47% decrease on January 1, 2013

* Following a Retar biliing system migration, 2,000 nactive customers were excluded from the final customer base {no impact on revenuas)
5 Metropolitan market all brands combinad

& Metropolitan market, SFR Business Team brand

7 Mamly Wholesale revenues SRR (SFR s subsidiary in La Réumon) revenues, and elimination of intersegment operations

8 +€51 milhon wn the third quarter of 2012 and €66 milion in the fourth quarter of 2012
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425 Other operations of the group

Year ended December 31,

{in milliens of euros) 2013 2012

Other operations 72 66
Elimmation of intersegment transactions {42) {50}
Total Revenuss 30 16
EBITA (80) (1)
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) (80) {8}
Revenues and EBITA

Revenues from other operations of the group amounted to €72 million, a €6 million increase It included revenues from Digitick (€13 mullion
compared to €11 milhon in 2012), See Tickets (€31 miliion compared to £33 midhon in 2012), Watchever (E12 million, compared to €8 million
in 2012), and Wengo (€16 million, compared te €13 million in 2012)

EBITA from other operations of the group amounted to -€80 million, compared to -€14 million in 2012

Cash flow from operations (CFFO}

Cash flow from operations from other operations of the group amounted to -E80 milhen, compared to -€8 million 1n 2012 This change was
mamly related to the change «n EBITA

426 Holding & Corporate

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros) 2013 2m2
EBITA {87) {100}
Cash flow from operations (CFFG) {89) (94}

EBITA

Holding & Corporate's EBITA was -€87 millien (compared to -€100 milion in 2012}, a €13 million increase, pnimanly related to the decrease
in charges related to htigation in 2013

Cash flow from operations {CFFQ)

Holding & Corporate’s cash flow from operations amounted to -€89 million, compared to -E94 million 1n 2012 The change was mainly
attributable to the change in EBITA

Financial Report and Audited Consohdated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2013 Vivendi /26



Tuesday February 25 2014

5 Treasury and capital resources

Prefiminary cormments:

o Vnend: consders Financial Net Debt, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant indicator 1 measuning Vivendr's indebtedness Financial Net
Debt 1s calculatad as the sum of long-term and short-term borrowings and ather fong-tesm and shortterm financial habilities as reported
on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Finangial Posttion as well as denvative financial instruments i assets, cash deposits backing borrowings, and certain cash management
financial assets fincluded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets”) Financtal Net Debt should be
constdered in addition to, and not as a subshtute for, other GAAP measures reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
as well as other measures of indebtedness reported in accordance with GAAP Vivendr Management uses Financial Net Debt for reporting
and planning purposes, as well as to comply with certain debt covenants of Vivendr

s Inaddttion, cash and cash equivalents are not fully available for debt repayments since they are used for several purposes, including but
not himited to, acquisitions of businesses, capital expenditures, dividends, contractual obligations and working caprtal

5.1 Summary of Vivendi's exposure to credit and liquidity risks

As part of the strategic review undertaken by the Supervisory Board and Management Board, Vivend: announced 1n July 2013 its plans to
sell 1ts nterests in Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, and in November 2013, the group’s planned demerger to form two separate
companies {1} a media group and (i) SFR, subject to information and censultation procedures with the relevant French employee
representative bodies and approval by the relevant regulatory authonties, as well as, If appropnate, its approval by the General
Shareholders' Meeting In the meantime, Vivend: has pursued its financing policy in relation to expiring bank credit facilities or bonds Thus,
Vivend) early refinanced a €1 5 billion bank credit facility, matuning in May 2014 with a new bank credit facihity for the same amount,
maturing (n March 2018, and 1ssued a new €750 million bond, with a coupen of 2 375%, which early refinances the €894 million residual
amount bord sssued in January 2009 with a coupon of 7 75%, matuning in January 2014

On October 11, 2013, Vivend: completed the sale of 88% of its interest in Activision Blizzard for $8 2 billion (€6 billion) in cash Vivendi used cash
on hand to early redeem most of 1ts US dollar-denominated bonds, as well as a portion of 1ts euro-denominated bends, having the shortest
maturity, for an aggregate amount of €3 billion (including $2 1 billion and €1 5 illien), erther through a tender offer in October 2013 and a
make-whole redemption 1n November 2013 In addition, Vivend used the available balance to redeem drawn bank credit faciities These
transactions were as follows

«  72% redemption of three US dollar-denominated bonds, followg a tender offer
- $459 million redeemed on the $200 mellion band, matunng in Apri| 2018,
- 3541 milhon redeemed on the $800 million bond, maturing in Apni 2022, and
- $555 million redeemed on the $650 million bond, maturing in January 2018

o early full redemption of one US dollar-denaminated bond and two euro-denominated bonds
- 3550 million, matuning in April 2015,
- €500 rmullron, maturing in November 2015, and
- £1,000 million, maturing in July 2015

In October 2013, Vivend: also redeemed, upon its contractual maturity date, a €700 millson bond, refinanced in December 212, by a bond for
the same amount, maturing in January 2020, and cancelled SFR's €1 2 billion bank credit facility

Moreover, on November 5, 2013, Vivendi acquired the 20% non-controlling interest in Canal+ France held by Lagardere for £1,020 million, In
cash

Finally, an November 2B, 2013, the Supervisory Board approved the group’s planned demerger to form two separate entities {1} a media group
and {n} SFA Subject to information and consultation procedures with the relevant French employee representative bodies and approval by
the relevant regulatory authorities, 1t could be submitted, i appropnate, to the General Shareholders' Meeting for approval on June 24,
2014 The potential impacts of this demerger on the group’s financing structure will become effective if and when a final decision to
implement such a transaction Is taken
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As of February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board meeting that appioved Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013

+  Vivend SA had avallable confirmed credit facilities in the aggregate amount of £7,140 million, of which €600 million was drawn
Given the amount of commercial paper 1ssued at that date, and backed to bank credit facilities for €4,143 million, these facilities
were avallable for an aggregate amount of €2,397 million, and

+  bonds amounted to €6 9 hillion, following the redemption 1n January 2014 upon its contractual matunty, of the bond (ssued in
January 2008, with a 7 75% coupon, for €834 million

Moreover, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €375 million was issued in connection with Vivend(’s appeal against the Liberty Media
judgment Tius off-balance sheet financial commitment has no impact on Vivend:'s net debt

Contractual agreements in relation to credit faciities and letters of credit granted to Vivendi SA {notably the letter of credit ssued In
connection with the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment} do not include provisions that tie the canditions of the loan to its financial
strength ratings from rating agencies They contain customary provisions related to events of default and, at the end of each half-year,
Vivendr SA 1s notably required to comply with a financial covenant (please refer to Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2013] The credit facilities granted to group companies other than Vivendi SA are intended to finance either the
general needs of the berrowing subsidrary or a specific project

After taking into account the proceeds from the sale of the 53% interest In Maroc Telecom group (€4 2 billion) expected during the first
months of 2014, Vivendi's adjusted Financial Net Debt would be approximately €6 9 billion {compared to €11 1 billion as of December 31,
2013 and €13 4 biltion as of December 31, 2012)

Cash and cash Borrowangs and ather  Impact on Financial Net
(i millions of euros) equivalents financial items (a) Debt
Financial Not Debt es of December 31, 2012 (3.894) 11313 13419
Outflows/{inflows) related to continuing operations
Operating activaties [3823) {3823)
Investing activities (765} 76 {689)
Financing actmues 7702 (4 598} 3104
Foresgn currency translation adjustments of continuing operattons 48 {167) {119)
Outflows/ inflows) related to continuing operations 3162 {4,689) 1.52n
Qutflows/{inflows) related to discontinued operations {705} 224 1481}
Reclassification of Pmaneial Net Debt from discantinued operations as of December 31 2013 395 710) 1314)
Change related to discontinued operations (309) {485) {795}
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013 1,041} 12138 11,097
Expected proceeds from the sale of the 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group (b) {4 187)
Financial Net Debt as of Decembar 31, 2013 adjusted for the sule of Maroc Telecom Group 6,910
Expected proceeds from the sale of the rematning ownershup interest in Activision Bhizzard {c) {1 078)
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013 adjusted for trensactions in progress 5832
= ————— ]

a  “Other financial items” include commitments to purchase non-contralling interests, dervative financial instruments {assets and
hatnhities}, and cash deposits backed to borrowings

b Assuming the hypothesis that the sale of the 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group s completed during the first months of 2014
according to the financial terms known to date

¢ Following the sale of 88% of its interest in Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013, Vivendi retained 83 milon Activision Blizzard
shares This remaining ownership interest is subject to a staggered 15-month lock-up period, which 15 described in Note 7 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 Proceeds from the sale of these remainmng shares are
estimated at an aggregate amount of $1,480 million (€1,078 million}, an the basis of $17 83 per share, Actwision Blizzard's share price
on December 31, 2013

Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013

As from June 30, 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported until their effective sale,
in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financia! Position as discontinued businesses

In practice, as of December 31, 2013, Maroc Telecom group's assets and liabilities have been grouped under the specific ines “assets of
discontinued businesses” and “habilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses™ As of December 31, 2013, this accounting
reclassification resulted in a €314 million decrease in Vivendi's Financial Net Debt, which related to Maroc Telecom group’s Financial Net
Debt as of that date
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As of December 31 2013

Vivendi's Financial Net Debt, in IFRS, amounted to €11.097 million Borrowings and other financial liabilities amounted to
£€12,138 millien {compared to €17,313 million as of December 31, 2012}, a £€5,175 million decrease This change was due to the
impact of the sale of Activision Blizzard (€6,044 million), net of divested cash (€3,343 mullion), and of Parlophone (€693 milkion),
offset by the acquisition of Lagardére”s non-controlling interest in Canal+ France {€1,020 nillion},

the group’s bond debt amounted to €7,827 million {compared to €10,888 million as of December 31, 2012} This €3,061 million
decrease was related to the eatty redemption of bonds {$2 1 twlhon and €1 5 bidlion} in the fowrth quarter of 2013 following the sale
of Activision Blizzard The bond debt represented 64 1% of the borrowings 1n the group’s Statement of Financial Position {compared
to 61 5% as of December 31, 2012},

the total amount of the group’s confirmed credit facihties amounted to €7,629 million {compared to €9,039 million as of
December 31, 2012} The group’s aggregate amount of credit facilities neither drawn nor backed by commercial paper amounted to
£€3.648 mullion {compared to €3,361 million as of December 31, 2012),

Viventh SA's total confirmed credit faciities amounted to €7,140 million (unchanged compared to December 31, 2012} and included
€2,600 million 1n available swinglines All these credit facilities have a maturity greater than one year These credrt facilities were
drawn for €1,655 million as of December 31, 2013 Considening the €1,906 milllon commercial paper 1ssued as of that date and
backed to bank credit facilities, these facilities were available up to a maximum amount of €3,579 million, and

the “economic” average term of the group’s debt was 4 2 years as of December 31, 2013 {compared to 44 years as of
December 31, 2012}

5.2 Financial Net Debt changes

As of December 31, 2013, Vivendi's Financial Net Debt amounted to €11,097 million (compared to €13,419 million as of December 31, 2012},
a €2,322 millhon decrease

This change notably reflected

proceeds received on October 11, 2013 with respect to the sale of Vivendi's interest in Activision Bhizzard (€6,044 million}, net of
divested cash (€3,349 million),

the cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations® (€3,823 mithon),
the proceeds from the sale by UMG of Parlophone and other labels (€699 million),

the capital increase subscribed for by employees 1n connection with Vivendi SA’s employee stock purchase plan in July 2013
(€149 milhon}, and

the accounting reclassification of Maroc Telecom group’s Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013 (€314 mitlion),

partially offset by

»

cash payments related to capital expenditures of continuing operations® {2,624 million, of which €1,610 million for SFR and
€769 mullign for GVT),

cash payments related to dividends pard to Vivendi SA shareowners (€1,325 million),
the acquisition of Lagardére’s non-controlling interest in Canal+ France (€1,020 million}, and

cash payments related to financial activities (€877 millien, of which £528 million of interest paid and €182 rillion of premium paid
as part of the early redemption of bonds, denominated in US dollars and in euros)

® Continuing operations relgte to Canals Group Umversal Music Group, GVT SFR other operations of the group as well as Holding & Corporate
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Refer to Notes to the
Cansolidated
Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

December 31 2012
{a}

{in millions of euros)

Borrowings and other finantial habifiues 3 12 266 17797
of which long-term {b) 8737 12 667
short-term (b} 3529 5,090

Denvative financial instruments i assets {c) 24 [126) 1137}
Cash deposits backing borrowings {c} {2) {6}
Cash management financial assets (c} {d} na {301}
12,138 11313

Cash and cash equivalents (b} 1% (104%) {3894)
of which Activision Blizzard na {2.969)
Financial Net Debt 11,097 1319

na not applicable

a In compliance with IFRS 5, Vivend's Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013 no longer includes the Financial Net Debt of Maroc
Telecom group, recognized as a discontinued operation

b As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Included in the Financial Assets items of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

d  As of December 31, 2012, included Activision Blizzard's US treasuries and government agency securities, with a maturity exceeding
three months

5.3 Analysis of Financial Net Debt changes

Year ended December 31 2013

22::: impatt on c2sh and \mpati on borrowings  Impact on Finantial
cash equivalents and other financial tems Net Debt
{inmillions of eures)
EBIT 2 435 - 435
Adjustments 4911 4911}
Content investments net 148 148
Gross cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid f4.328) - f4.328/
Other changes in net working caprial 308 308
Net cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid k| 4 026/ - {4,020/
Income tax paid net 3 197 - 197
Not cash provided by opersting activities of contiruing operations 3.823) - 3,823}
Net cash provided by oparsting activities of discontinued operations 1147 - (1,417}
ting activits 15.240) - {5240}
Financisl investmants
Purchases of consolidated companies after acguired cash 43 15 58
Investments in equity affiliates 2 - 2
Increase in financial assets 106 {2) 104
Total financisl investmants 151 3 164
Financial divestments
Proceeds from sales of consnlidated companies after divested cash {2 748) 63 {2 685)
of which proceeds from the sale of the 88% ownership inlerest in Actvision Bhizzard 1 {6 644) {6 044)
divested cash of Activision Blzzard 3286 53 3349
12 758) 53 {2 695)
Disposal of equity affiliates 18} - =1}
Decrease in finanal assets 727 - [ty
of which proceeds from the sales of Pariophone and other iabels by UMG 1 1699) (693)
Total finsncial divestments {3.423) 63 {3420
F | stment d {331) 6 {3,256)
Dmdends recewved from equity affiliates {3 13
Dmdends recewved from unconsolidated companies () {54}
Not mvesting activitios excluding capital ditures and proceeds
from salas of propenty, plant, equipment and imMangible assets 13289) yi] 3.13)
Capital expenditures 2674 2574
Proceeds from sales of property plant eguipment and Intangible assets {50} {50}
Capital expenditures, net 3 2624 - 2524
Not cash provided by/{used for) investing activities of continuing operations (765} 76 (689)
Net cash providod by/[used for) investing activities of discontinued operations 1,952 (1467} 485
Invasting actvetiag 1,187 1391} (204)

Please refer to the next page for the end of this table

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Vivend: /30




{in muthens of euros)
Ti with sk

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Continued from previous page

Year ended December 31 2013

Net proceads from issuante of common shares in conneciian wath Vivendi SA s share based compensation plans

of which capital ingrease subscnbed by employees in conngction with the stock purchase plan

exercrse of stock aptons by executive management and employees
{Sales)/purchases of Vivendi SA's treasury shares
Dradends paid by Vivend SA [E1 per share}
Other transactions with shareowners
of wingl acquistion of Lagadére Group s nen-controling interest in Canals France
Divtdends paid by consolidated companies to their non-controlling interests

Total tr with shar

Transactions on hotrrowings and ather financial hablities
Setting up of long term horrowings and increase an other long-term financial liabiliies
of wiich bank credit facilities
bonds
Principal payments an lang term borrowsngs and decrease in other long term financial habilives
of which bank credit facifities
Principal payments on shori-term borrowings
of which bonds
commertial paper
Other changes in short temm borrowings and other financial habilities
Mon-cash transactions
Interast paid net
Other cash itsms related to financial actvities
Total transactions on berrawings and other ftnancisf liabilities
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing activities of continuing operations
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing activities of discontinued operetions
Financing pgtivities
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continuing eperations
Foregn currency translation adjustments of discontinued operations
Reclassification of Financial Net Debt from discontinued oparations

Changs in Financial Nt Debt

5.4 Changes in financings

':Zi:r;: Imypact oncash and Impact on borowings  mpact on Finamcial
cashequvalents  and other financial tems Net Debt
195) - (195)
f149) f143)
f46} - 146}
! 1315 - 1305
1046 1046
1o 1020
3 37
2za - 2213
54 (2491} 2491 _
{1655 1695
1750 750
54 1913 11923
1894 (7 894)
521 15211}
3736 {3736} -
7349 i1.349) .
(31 ki R
14 14
3 528 . 528
3 349 - 349
5489 {4.598) 291
7102 (4598} EXTT]
1.284) 16% 42
548 12.302) 3516
48 (167 g
“ 18) 19
3% (7101 {14
283 (5.175) 123%7)

Financings put inte place

*  OnMarch 28 2013, Vivend: completed the early refinancing of a €1 5 bullion bank credit facility maturing in May 2014 by entening
Into a new bank credit facility for the same amount with a five-year matunty

e  OnJuly 9, 2113, Vivend: 1ssued a €750 million bond, maturing (n January 2019, with a 2 375% coupon, and an effective rate of
251% This transaction enabled the refinancing of the bond 1ssued in January 2009, with a 7 75% coupon redeemed in January

2014

Redemptions

e 72% redemption of three US dollar-denominated bonds, fallowing a tender offer, in October 2013

- $459 million redeemed on the $700 million bond, maturing in Apnil 2018,
- $541 million redeemed on the $800 million bond, maturing in Apnl 2022, and

- $555 milhon redeemed on the $650 million bond, maturing 1n January 2018

e early full redemption of one US dollar-denominated bond and two euro-denominated bonds, 1n November 2013

- $550 million, maturing in Apnl 2015,
- £500 million, maturing in November 2015, and
- €1,000 milfion, maturing in July 2015

= redemption in October 2013, upon (ts contractual matunty, of a €700 million bend. refinanced in December 2012, by a bond for the

same amount, maturing n January 2020, and

e cancellation of SFR's €1 2 hillion bank credit faciity in October 2013

For a detalled analysis of the bonds and bank credit facilities as of December 31, 2013 (please refer to Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013)
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6 Forward looking statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendi's financial condition, results of operations, business, strategy,
plans, and outlook of Vivendi, including the impact of certain transactions Although Vivend believes that such forward-looking statements are
based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ materially from the
forward-Hooking statements as a result of a number of nsks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivend's control, including, but not
himited to, the nisks related to antitrust and other regulatory approvals as well as any other approvals which may be required in connection with
certain transactions and the nisks described in the documents of the group filed with the Autorité des Marchés Financiers {AMF) (the French
securities regulator), which are also available in English on Vivendi's website (www vivend) com) Accordingly, we caution you against relying on
forward logking statements These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivend disclaims any intention
or obligation to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

7 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivend: does not sponsor an Amercan Depositary Receipt (ADR} facility in respect of 1ts shares Any ADR faciity currently in existence 1s
“unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivend Vivend: disclaims any liability in respect of any such facility

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English translation of the French version of the report and 15 provided for informational purposes only This translation
15 qualified in 1ts entirety by the French version, which 1s available on the company's website {www vivendi com} In the event of any
inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the French version will prevail
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Il - Appendices to the Financial Report Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1. EBITA (Adjusted Eamings Before Interest and Income Taxes) and adjusted net
Income

Vivendi considers EBITA {Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Income Taxes) and adjusted net income, non-GAAP measures, to be relevant
indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance Vivendi Management uses EBITA and adjusted net income because they
illustrate the underlying performance of continuing operations more effectively by excluding most non-recurnng and non-operating 1tems
EBITA and adjusted net income are defined in Note 1 2 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

Adjustment of comparative infermation

As from the second quarter of 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in Vivendi's
Consolidated Statement of Earnings as discontinued operations In practice, income and charges from these two businesses have been
reported as follows
- ther contribution until the effective sale, «f any, to each line of Vivendi's Consohdated Statement of Earnings {before non-
controlling interests) has been grouped under the line “"Earnings from discontinued aperations”, and
- their share of net income has been excluded from Vivend:'s adjusted net income

Moreover, as of January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19, whose apphication 1s
mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1 to the Consolhidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2013}

As a result, the 2012 Financial Statements and the first quarter of 2013 Financial Statements were adjusted, as the case may be, as
presented below
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02
Threa months Three months Six months ended enTz!:ﬁBS:;;::Ee
r
{in mullions of euras except per share amounts) ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30 30,
Adjusted earnings befors interest and income taxes (EBITA) las previously
published) 1621 1316 2937 139
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for Actvision Blizzard -395 =177 -572 182
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for Maroc Telecom Group =203 -190 - 463 - 266
Adjustments related to the application of amended 1AS 19
Seliing general and administrative expenses +7 +2 +4 +2
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) {restated) 955 951 1,906 98
Adjusted net income {as previously published) 823 706 1529 663
Reclassifications related 1o the application of FRS 5 -n -134 - 406 - 194
Adjustments related 1o the application of amended IAS 19
Seling general and admimstrative expenses +2 +2 +4 +2
FProvision for income taxes ;
Adjusted net income {restated) 553 514 1127 473
Adjusted net income per share {as previously published) 0.64 055 119 05
Adjusted retincome per shara {restated) 043 045 0.3 038
2012 2013
Nme months Thies months Year ended Three months
ended September  ended December D ber 31 ded March 31
{in millians of euros except per share amaunts) 30, 31, ecember ended March 31,

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA) (as previously

published) 433 952 5283 134
Beclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for Acttision Blizzard =754 - 3495 -1,149 - 442
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for Marot Telecom Group -729 -799 - 988 -273
Adjustments related to the apphcation of amended IAS 19

Seliing general and adrmimstrative expenses +6 17 +17 na

Adjusted earmings before interest and income taxes {(EBITA) {restated) 2854 309 363 629

Adjusted net income {as previously published) 219 56 2,550 672
Reclassifications related to the apphication of IFRS S - 600 -259 859 - 306
Adjustments related to the application of amended 1AS 19

Selling general and admimstrative expenses +§ +11 +17 na
Provision for income taxes -3 -3 na

Adjusted net income (restated) 1,600 105 1,705 366

Adjusted net income per share {as previously published} 170 027 196 0%

Adjusted net income per share (restated) 12 0.08 1 028

na not applicable

Reconciliation of earnings attrnibutable to Vivend: SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) 2013 2012

Earnings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners (a) 1,967 179
Adjustments
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combimations 467 436
Impairment losses an intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a) 2417 760
Reserve accrual related to the Liberty Media Corporation lihgation in the United States (a) - 945
(Other income (a) {68) {19
Other charges {a} 57 236
Other financial income (a) {51) (37)
Qther financial charges (a) 561 204
Earnings from discontmued operations {al (4639) {1,505)

of which capital gain on the divestiture of Actwision Bhzzard {2915 -

Change in deferred tax asset related to Vivend: SA’s French Tax Group and to the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems 161 48
Non-tecurring items related to provision for tncome taxes 194 {25)
Prowision for mcome taxes on adjustments (220) {185)
Non-controlling interests on adjustments 695 668

Adjusted net income 1,540 1,105

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings
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Adjusted net income per share

Year ended December 31

2013 2012
Basic Diluted Basic Oiluted

Adjusted net income {in mullions of euros) 1540 1540 1,705 1,708
Number of shares (in millions)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (a} 1,3306 13308 12989 1,2989
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation (b] - 47 - 35
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13306 13353 1,2989 13024
Adjusted net income per share {in euros} 116 115 131 N

2

b

2.

Net of treasury shares (please refer to Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013)

Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 which could potentially become dilutive The
balance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA’s share based compensation plan 1s presented in Note 2222 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

Revenues and EBITA by business segment - 2013 and 2012 quarterly data

Preliminary comments

As from the second quarter of 2013, in comphance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in

Vivendr's Consolidated Statement af Earnings as discontinued operations In practice, mcome and charges from these two businesses

have been reported as follows

- thew contnbution untif thew effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Earmings (before non-
controlling interests} has been grouped under the ling “Earmings from discontinued operations”,

- iraccordance with IFAS 5, these adustments have been applied to alf periods presented to ensure consistency of information, and

- thew share of net income has been exciuded from Vivend:'s adjusted net income

Data presented below also takes into account the consolidation of the following entities as from the indicated dates
- atCanal+ Group D8 and D17 {September 27, 2012) and “n” (November 30, 2012}, and
- atUmversal Music Group EMI Recorded Music (September 28, 2012)

Moreover, as of January 1, 2013, Vivendr applied, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19, whose application
15 mandatory n the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note T to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013] As a result, the 2012 Financial Statements, notably EBITA, were adjusted m
accordance with the new standard

FPlease refer to Appendix 1 of this Financial Report for a presentation of the adjustments made on the data previously published
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{in mithons of guros)
Revenues
Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
GvT
Dther
Ehmination of intersegment transactions
Media & Centent

SFR
Elmmnation of intersegment transactions reiated to SFR

Total Vivendi

EBITA
Canal+ Group
Universal Musie Greup
GVT
Other
Holding & Corporate
Media & Content

SFR

Total Vivend:

{un mullions of euros)
Revenues
Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
GVT
Other
Elimination of intersegment transactions
Media & Content

SFR
Elimination of intersegment transactions related to SFR

Total Vivendi

EBITA
Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
GVT
Other
Holding & Corporate
Media & Content

SHR

Total Vivends
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2013
1st Quarter ended  Znd Quarter ended  3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

1,288 1,314 1,257 1.454

1,091 1,145 1,162 1,488

438 446 413 412

16 17 18 21
{5) (3} {5} {4

2,826 2,919 2,845 3371

2,594 2514 2,508 2,583
{5) {6) {6} {9

5.415 5427 5,348 5,945
183 247 217 {36)

55 88 12 256

99 97 102 107
(14) (23) {21) (22)
{22) {25) {14) {26)

301 384 396 279

328 378 334 33

629 762 730 n2

2012
st Quarterended 2nd Quarier ended  3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec 31

1,232 1,238 1177 1,366

961 9h1 931 1,641

432 421 429 434

15 19 17 19

(6) (9) {5} {6)

2,634 2,626 2,599 3454

2927 2,834 2747 2,780

(5} (8} {7) 4

5,556 5452 5339 6,230
236 247 239 (59}

68 88 82 268

116 107 118 147
{3 {2) 3 {6}

{23) (an {25) (11)

394 399 411 359

b1 562 537 (50)

955 951 948 309
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lll - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2013

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ta the Shareholders,

In comphance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Sharehalders” Meetings, we hereby report to you far the year
ended December 31, 2013 on

o the audit of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivend, hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,
+ the justification of our assessments, and
e the specific verifications required by law

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by your Management Board Our role 1s to express an opinion on the financial
statements, based on our audit

L Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professianal standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are free of matenal misstatement An audit
involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Conselidated Financial Statements
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

In our opinion, the Consolidated Firancial Statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabthties and of the results of its
operations for the year then ended m accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

1. Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of Article L 823-9 of the French Commercial Code {Code de Commerce) relating to the justification of
our assessments, we draw your attention to the following matters

In connection with our assessment of the accounting prninciples applied by your Company

» Note 136 to theConsclidated Fnancial Statements describes the applicable critena for classification and accounting for
discontinued operations or assets held for sale in accordance with [FRS 5 We venfied the correct application of this accounting
principle and we ensured that Notes 2 1 and 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provide appropniate disclosures with
respect to management's position as of December 31, 2013

» At each finantial year end, your Company systematically performs imparment tests of goodwill and assets with indefinite useful
lives, and also assesses whether there 1s any Indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the
methods described in Note 1357 to the Consolidated Financial Statements We examined the methods used to perform these
impairment tests, as well as the main assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1357 and 10 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements provide appropnate disclosures thereon

e Note 1 39 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax and note 1 38
descrnibes the methods used to assess and recognize provisions We venified the correct application of these accounting principles
and also examined the assumptions undertyng the positions as of December 31, 2013 We ensured Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements gives appropnate infermation on tax assets and habilites and on your company's tax positions

+ Notes 138 and 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describe the methods used to assess and recogruze provisians fat
litigation We examined the methods used within your group to identfy, cafculate, and determine the accounting for such
htigation We also examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the Company As statedinNote 131 to
the Consohdated Financial Statements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in estimates and assumptions which could
have an impact upon the reported amount of provisions
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Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to
the opinion we farmed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report
ll.  Specific verifications

We have also venfied, in accordance with professional standard apphcable in France, the information provided in the group management
report, as required by law

We have no matters to report as its fair presentation and its conformity with the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pans-La Défense, February 25, 2014

The Statutory Auditors
KPMG Audit ERNST & YOUNG ET AUTRES
Département de KPMG S A
Frédéric Quélin Jean-Yves Jegourel
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31,
Note 2013 2012(a)
Ravenues 4 22,135 22 5717
Cost of revenues 4 {12,988) {12,672)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (6.905) (6.905)
Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income {27 (273)
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations 4 (2,437) (760)
Reserve accrual related to the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the United States 28 - {945}
Other income 4 88 19
Other charges 4 (57) (236)
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 3 {435) 805
Income from equity affiliates 15 (33) (38}
Interest 5 (528) {544)
Income from (nvestments 67 7
Other financial income 5 51 37
Other financial charges 5 {561) {204)
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for ncome taxes {1.439) 63
Provision for income taxes 62 {417) (604}
Earnings from continuing operations (1,856} (541}
Earnings from discontinued operations 7 4,635 1,505
Earnings 2,775 964
Of which
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1,967 179
of which earnings from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners {1964} (654)
earings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend SA shareowners 393 833
Non-contralling interests 812 785
of which earnings from continuing operations 108 113
earmngs from discontinued operations 704 672
Earnings from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic 8 {147) (050}
Earntngs from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share - diluted 8 {147) {050}
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic 8 295 064
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share- diluted 8 294 064
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic 8 1488 014
Earnings attributable to Vivend| SA shareowners per share - diluted 8 147 014

In millions of euros, except per share amounts, 1n guros

a As from the second quarter of 2013, 1n compliance with IFRS 5 {Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Dperations),
Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecam group have been reported n the Consolidated Statement of Earnings with respect to fiscal years
2013 and 2012 as discontinued operations {please refer to Note 7} On October 11, 2013, Vivend) deconsolidated Activision Blizzard
pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest
In addrtion, data pubhished with respect to fiscal year 2012 was adjusted following the impacts related to the apphcation of amended
IAS 19 (Employee Benefits), whose application 1s mandatory in the European Union as of January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1)
These adjustments are presented in Note 33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financral Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

{inmilions of euros) Note 2013 2012 {a)
Earnings 2,779 964
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to employee defined benefit plans, net (23) {61
ltems not reclassified to profit or lass {23} 61)
Foreign currency translation adjustments {1,429} {605}
Unrealized gans/{losses), net 58 103
Other impacts, net 15 -
Kems to be subsequently reclassifiad to profit or loss (1.356) (502)
Charges and income directly racognized in equity 9 (1.379) (563)
Total comprehensive income 1,400 401
of which

Total comprehensive income attnhutable to Vivend: SA shareowners 78% {362}
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-contralling interests 611 763

a  Asof January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19 {Employee Benefits} and
IAS 1 {Presentation of Financial Statements Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income), each of whose application 15
mandatory in the European Union beginming on or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1} As a result, the 2012 Financial
Statements were adjusted (n accordance with the new standards (please refer to Note 33}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consoldated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in millions of euros} Note December 31, 2013 December 31,2012 January 1st, 2012
{a) fa)
ASSETS
Goodwalt 10 17147 24,656 75029
Non-current content assets 1" 2,623 3327 2,485
Other intangible assets 12 4 306 5,190 4329
Praperty, plant and equipment 13 7,541 9,926 9,001
Investments in equity affiliates 15 446 388 135
Non-current financial assets 16 854 488 379
Deferred tax assets 6 733 1,445 1447
Non-current assets 33,450 45,420 42,805
Inventories 17 330 738 805
Current tax recewvables ] 627 819 542
Current content assets n 1,149 1044 1,066
Trade accounts receivabte and other 17 4,898 6,587 6730
Current financial assets 16 45 364 478
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1041 3,894 3,304
8,090 13,446 12,925
Assets held for sale 2,17 1,078 667 -
Assets of discontinued businesses 7 6,562 - -
Current assets 15,730 14,113 12,925
TOTALASSETS 49,180 59,533 55,730
EQUITY AND UABILITIES
Share capital 7,368 7282 6 860
Additional patd-in capital 8.3m 827 8.225
Treasury shares {1 (25} {28}
Retained earnings and other 1,709 2,797 4295
Vivendi SA shareowners' equity 17,457 18325 19,352
Non-controlling interests 1573 2,966 2,619
Total equity 19 19,030 21291 2191
Non-cureent provisions 20 2,504 3.258 1,679
Long-term borrowings and other financial liabilities 23 8,737 12 667 12 409
Deferred tax liabilities 6 680 99 728
Other non-current liabilities 17 751 1,002 864
Non-current habilities 13,078 17,918 15,680
Current provisions 20 619 M 586
Shart-term borrowings and ether financial habiliies 23 3529 5090 3,304
Trade accounts payable and other 17 10,416 14196 13,987
Cusrent tax payables 8 79 3 205
14,643 20318 18,079
Liabilities associated with assets heltd for sale - 6 -
Liabilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses 7 2,429 - -
Current habilittes 17,072 20,324 13,079
Total liabiliies 30,150 38,242 33,759
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 49,180 59,533 55,730

a Asof January 1, 2013, Vivend applied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19 {(Emplovee Benefits}, whose
application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginming on or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1} As a result, the 2012
Financtal Statements were adjusted 1n accordance with the new standard {please refer to Note 33}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31
[in mulirons of euros) Note mz 2012 {a)
Operating activities
EBIT 3 {435) 805
Adjustments 25 4911 4,456
Content Investments net [148) {145)
Gross cash provided by operating actrvities before income tax pard 4328 5116
Other changes in net working capital 17 {308) 69
Net cash provided by operating activities bafore income tax pard 4020 5,185
Incoms tax pad, net 63 197 [353)
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 3823 4832
Net cash provided by oparating actvities of discontinued operations 7 1417 2274
Net cash provided by operating activiies 5240 1,106
Investing activities
Capnal expenditures 3 {2674) {3,999}
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash 2 43) (1,374)
Investments in equity affiliates 15 {2) (322}
Increase in financial assets 16 1106) {35)
Invastmants {2,825) {5.730)
Praceeds from sales of property plant equipment and intangible assets 3 50 23
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies after divested cash 7 2748 13
Disposal of equity affihates 15 8 "
Decrease in financial assets 16 727 180
Divestitures 353 227
Dradends receved from equity affiliates 3 3
Drndends received from unconsolidated companies 54 )
Not cash provided by/f{used for} investing actwities of continuing operations 765 (5.499)
Nat cash provided by/lused for} investing activities of discontinued oparations 7 {1,952} {543
Net cash providad byf{used for} sovesting activities {1.187) {6.042)
Financing activities
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of commaon shares i connection with Vivendi SA's share-based
compensation plans 22 185 n
Sales/{purchases) of Vivend: SA's treasury shares - {18)
Dwidends paid by Vivendi SA to 1ts shareowners 19 {1325) {1245)
(ther transactions with shareowners 2 {1 046) ¥
Dwidends paid by consolidated companies to thesr non-controfking interests [37) 33
Transactions with shareowners 12213} (1,166)
Setting up of long-term borrowangs and increase n other fong-term financral habihties L] 2491 5833
Principal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease in other long term financial habilities 23 (1923} 4,211)
Pnncipal payment on short-term borrowings 3 5211} (2 494
Other changes in short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities 23 N 2408
Interest paid net 5 {528} {544)
Other cash items refated to financial activities {349) (96}
Transactions on berrowings and other financial liabihtias {5.489) 129
Neot cash provided by/{used for) financing activitses of continumg operations {r.702) 130
Nat cash provided byfused for) fmancing actiitres of discontinued operations 7 1.284 (557
Net cash provided byf{used for} financing acuwities (6,418) (423}
Foreign currency translauon adjustments of continuing aperations (48) {29
Forexgn currency transiation adjustments of disconhinued operations 7 (44) ﬂ
Change in cash and cash equivelents {2,457 530
Reclassificaton of disconbinued operations' cash and cash eguivalents 7 {396} -
Cash and cash equivalents
At begenning of the peniod 18 3894 3,304
At end of the peniod 18 1,041 3894

a  As from the second quarter of 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5, Actvision Bhizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows with respect to fiscal years 2013 and 2012 as discontinued operations (please refer to Note 7)
On October 11, 2013, Vivend deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of 1ts interest In addition, data published
with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adjusted following the impacts related to the application of amended IAS 13, whose
application 1s mandatory in the European Union as of January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1} These adjustments are presented in Note
K2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Tuesday February 25, 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend 1s a limited liability company {societé anonyme) incorporated under French law, subject to French commercial company law and, in
particular, the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce) Vivend: was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expiring
on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early dissolution or unless the term 1s extended Its registered office s located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Paris {France) Vivendi s listed on Euronext Panis (Compartment A}

Vivend: operates a number of companies that are leaders in content, media, and telecommunication Canal+ Group 1s the French leader in pay-
TV and 15 also present in francophone African countrigs, Poland, and Vietnam, its subsidiary Studiocanal, 1s a leading European player in the
production, acguisition, distnbution and, sale of films Universal Music Group, the world's leader :n music, recently strengthened and
diversified itself through the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music GVT is the leading Brazihan alternative operator In addition, Vivend: controls
SFR, the leading alternative telecommunications operator in France

On Getober 11, 2013, Vivend: deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest Moreover, as a result of the plans
to sell Maroc Telecom group, 1t has been reported in Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Eamings as a discontinued operation, 1n accordance
with IFRS 5

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and s subsidiaries (the “group™) together
with interests in equity affiliates Amounts are reported in euros and all values are rounded to the nearest million

On February 18, 2014, during a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 Having considered the Audit Committee's recommendation
given at its meeting held on February 18, 2014, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 21, 2014, reviewed the Financial Report
and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 37, 2013, as approved by the Management Board on
February 19, 2014

On June 24, 2014, the Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 witl be submitted for approval at Vivendi's
Annual General Shareholders’ meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

1.1 Compliance with accouating standards

The 2013 Conschdated Financial Statements of Vivend: SA have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union (EU), and in accordance with IFRS published by the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board [IASB}) with mandatory application as of December 31, 2013

Vivend: applied new standards and amendments to its Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended December 31, 2013, the most
significant of which concern

= presentation of other items in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income,

= employee benefit plans, and

+ principles of consolidation

1.1.1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to 1AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements Presentation of ftems of Other Comprehensive Incoms, as published by the ASB
on June 16, 2011, were endorsed by the EU on June 5, 2012 and published in the EU Official Journal an June 6, 2012 These amendments
mandatorly apply to penods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012 They relate to the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income {denominated “Charges and income directly recognized in equity” in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income), which are henceforth grouped according to whether or not they are recycled in the Statement of
Earnings

112 Employee benefit plans

Amendments to IAS 19 (Employee Benefits) as published by the IASB on June 16, 2011, were endorsed by the EU on June 5, 2012, and
published in the EU Official Journal on June 6, 2012 These amendments mandatonly apply to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013,
with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012
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The main impacts of these amendments for Vivend: are

e elimination of the "corndor method” relating to the recognition through profit and loss for the year of actuanal gains and losses on
defined employee benefit plans thus, actuanial gains and lasses not yet recognized as of December 31, 2011 were recorded against
consolidated equity as of January 1, 2012,

«  as from January 1, 2012, actuanal gains and losses are immediately recognized in other comprehensive income in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, and will no longer be recycled in profit and loss As a consequence, the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2012 were adjusted to reflect the cancellation of the recognition of actuaral gains and losses in
selling, administrative and general expenses, and the recording of actuanal gains and losses generated in 2012 in tems of other
comprehensive income not reclassified to profit and loss.

e as from January 1, 2012, past service costs resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are immediately recognized in profit
and loss, as selling, administrative and general expenses, unvested nghts being no longer spread gver the vesting period As a
consequence, past service costs not yet recognized as of December 31, 2011 were recorded against consclidated equity as of
January 1, 2012, and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 were adjusted to reflect the
cancellation of the recognition of past service costs (n selling, administrative and general expenses, and

o expected retum on plan assets 15 calculated using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obligation

Due to the retrospective application of the amendments to IAS 19 {Employee Benefits), the Consol:dated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012 were adjusted for companson purposes A detailed description of these ad|ustments 1s presented in Note 33

Please note that accounting policies and valuation methods related to employee benefit plans are presented in their entirety in Note 138

1.1.3 Pninciples of consolidation

New standards relating to the principles of consolidation IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, \FRS 11 - Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12
- Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, \AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements, and |AS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,
as published by the IASB on May 12, 2011 were endorsed by the EU on December 11, 2012 and published in the EU Official Journal on
December 29, 2012 These standards mandatornly apply to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 However, Vivend elected to early
apply them to the intenm Financial Statements for the year 2013 and, retrospectively, as of January 1, 2012 The application of these
standards had no material impact on Vivendi’s financial statements

New principles of consolidation introduced by these new standards are presented in Note 1 3 2

114 Other

New standard IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement, relating to the defimition of the concept of fair value in terms of measurement and
disclosures, as 1ssued by the 1ASB on May 12, 2011, was endorsed by the EU on December 11, 2012 and published in the EU Official Journal
on December 29, 2012 1FRS 13 applies prospectively and mandatonly to penods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 There has been no
significant impact on Vivend's valuation metheds, or on the information disclosed in the notes to the financial statements pursuant to 1ts
apphcation

Amendments to vanous IFRS included in the Annual Impravements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle as published by the IASB on May 2012, were
endarsed by the EU on March 27, 2013 and published in the EU Official Journal on March 28, 2013 These amendments mandatorily apply to
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, retrospectively from Januvary 1, 2012 Their application has had no significant impact on
Vivendi's financial statements

1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

121 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The main line items presented n Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Earmings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, interest, provision
for Incomes taxes, earnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and earnings The Consolidated Statement of Eamings presents a
subtotal for Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding those financing activities,
equity affiliates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes}

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from nvestments, as well as other financial charges and
incame as defined in paragraph 1 2 3 and presented in Note 5

122 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided from operating activities

Net cash provided from operating activities 1s calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT EBIT 1s adjusted for nencash items and
changes in net working capital Net cash provided from operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for nvesting acuvities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangble assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dividends received from equity affiliates) It also includes any cash flows ans:ng from the gain
or loss of control of subsidiaries

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other items related to financing actvities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
derivative instruments |t also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
{including increases m ownership interests)

1.2.3 Operating performance of each operating segment and of the group

Vivend: cansiders Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax {EBITA), Adjustad net income (AN}, and Cash Flow From Operations {CFFD), non-
GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivend: considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data The method used in calculating EBITA excludes the accounting impact of the amortization of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations, impairment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and other
income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners This enables Vivend! to measure and
compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether ther performance 1s driven by the operating segment’s
organic growth or acquisitions

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, impairment
losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, as well as other financial income and charges refated to
financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners that are included in EBIT The charges and income related to financial
investing transactions include gains and losses recognized in business combinations, capital gains or losses related to divestitures or the
depreciation of equity affiliates and other financial investments, as well as gaws or losses ncurred from the gam or loss of control n a
business

Adjusted net income

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
performance Vivend Management uses adjusted net income because It better illustratgs the underlying performance of continuing operations
by excluding most non-recurring and non-operating items Adjusted net income includes the following items
EBITA {**),
e ncome from equity affiliates [*} {**),
interest {*) (**), corresponding to Interest expense on borrowings net of interest income eamed on cash and cash equivalents,
e ncome from investments (*) (**). including dividends and interest received from unconsolidated companies, and
= taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items
It does not include the following items

e agmortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (**) as well as imparment losses on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations (*} (**),
other income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners (*), as defined above,

e other financial charges and income (*} {**), equal to the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change in value of financial liabilities, which primarily include changaes in fair value of derivative instruments,
premiums from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the cost of 1ssuing or cancelling
credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions {other than those related to operating activities, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and liabilities, and the financial components of employea benefits {interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),
earnings from discontinued operations {*) (**), and

¢ provisions for income taxes and adjustments attributable to nen-controlling interests and non-recurring tax items {notably the
changes :n deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivend: SA’s tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax habilives relating to risks extinguished aver the period)

{* ttems as presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, {**) ltems as reported by each operating segment
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Cash Flow From Operations (CFFO)

Vivend: considers cash flow from operations (CFFO), @ non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financral performance  The CFFQ includes net cash provided by operating actvities, before income 1ax paid, as presented i the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends receved from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies It also includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The difference between CFFO and net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax consists of dividends received from equity
affiliates and unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included i net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFO

1.24 Cansolidated Statement of Financial Pasition

Assets and habilities that are expected to be realized, or ntended for sale or consumption, within the entity’s normal operating cycte
{generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or Liabilities If their matunty exceeds this period, they are recorded as non-current
assets or habilities Moreover, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2012 and 2011 Conschidated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Finangial Statements

1.3  Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFRS principles, the Conselidated Financial Statements have been grepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of certain
assets and hahilities detailed below

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivendi and its subsidiaries after eliminating intragroup tems and
transactions Vivends has a December 31 year-end Subsidianes that do not have 2 December 31 year-end prepare mtenm financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls withn the three months prior to December 31

Acquired subsidiaries are mcluded in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition

131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in compliance with IFRS requires the group management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that they consider reasonable and reahstic Even though these estimates and assumptions are regularty reviewed by Vivend
Management based. in particular, on past or anticipated achievements facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could impact the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or earnings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

s revenug estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees, and rewards as part of loyalty programs deducted from certain
revenue ttems {please refer to Note 1 3 44

s provisions nsk estmates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the occurrence of events duning the course of procedures
may [ead to a nisk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 1 3 § and 20},

» employee benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes In future campensation, the discount rate and inflation rate (please refer to Notes 1 3 B and 21),

» share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatility and the estimated dividend
yield {please refer to Notes 1 3 10 and 22,

e certain financial instruments fair value estimates (please refer to Notes 1358, 1 37 and 24),

= deferred taxes estimates concerning the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group (please refer to Notes 1 3 9 and 6),

+ goodwill and other ntangible assets valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations (please refer to Notes 1 35 2 and 2),

¢ goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impairment tests performed on each of the group’s cash-generating units {CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates (please refer
to Notes1357,10,12, and 13}, and

e UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of beneficianes who were granied advances are recognized In the
Statement of Financial Position {please refer to Notes 1 35 3 and 11)
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1.3.2 Pnnciples of consolidation
A list of Vivendi’s major subsidianies, joint ventures and associated entities 1s presented 1n Note 29
Consolidation

All companies in which Vivend: has a cantrolling mterest, namely those in which it has the power to govern financial and eperationa! policies
to obtain benefits from their operations, are fully consolidated

The new mode! of control, introduced by IFRS 10 superseding 1AS 27 revised - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, and
interpretation SIC 12 - Consolidatton - Special Purpose Entities 15 based on the following three cniteria to be fulfilled simultaneously to
conclude that the parent company exercises control

s a parent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, 1 e, the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary's returns Power may anse from
existing or potential voting nights, ar contractual agreements Voting rights must be substantial, 1 e , they shail be exercisable at any
ume, without imitation particularly during decision making related to significant activities The assessment of the exercise of power
depends on the nature of the subsidiary’s relevant activities. the internal decision-making pracess, and the allocation of nghts
among the subsidiary’s other shareowners,

» the parent company s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its nvolvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary’s performance The concept of returns 1s broadly defined and includes, among others, dwidends and other
distributions of economic benefits, changes In the value of the investment 1n the subsidiary, economies of scale, and business
synergies, and

«  the parent company has the ability to use 1ts power to affect the returns Power without any tmpact on returns does not qualify as
control

Consolidated Financiat Statements of a group are presented as If the group was a single economic entity with two categories of owners the
owners of the parent company on the one hand (Vivendi SA shareawners) and the owners of non-controlling interests on the other A non-
controlling interest 1s defined as the interest in a subsidiary that 1s not attnbutable directly or indirectly, to a parent As a result, changes to a
parent company’'s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control only impact equity, as control does not change
within the economic entity Hence, in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a consolidated entity after January 1, 2009,
Vivend: recognizes the difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of nan-controlling interests acquired as a change in
equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners Conversely, any acquisition of control achieved in stages or a loss of contral gives nise to profit
or loss in the statement of earnings

Accounting for joint arrangements

IFRS 11, which supersedes IAS 31 — Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, and interpretation SIC 13 - Jomtly Controfled Entities -
Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers, establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement

In a joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint control of the arrangement An entity that 15
a party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractua!l arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties, control of the
arrangement collectively Once 1t has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties collectively control the arrangement, joint
contral exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties that collectively control the
arrangement

Joint arrangements are classified into two categories

« Joint operations these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts to the
assets, and oblrgations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement Those parties are called joint operators A joint operator shall
recognize 160% of wholly-owned assets/liabilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items
held jointly, and

= Joint ventures these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts ta the net
assets of the arrangement Those parties are called joint venturers Each joint venturer shall recognize its interest in a joint venture
as an investment, and shall account for that investment using the equity method 1n aceordance with IAS 28 {please refer below)

The elminauion of proportionate consolidation for joint ventures has no impact on Vivend, which already accounted for under the equity
method companies that were jaintly controlled by Vivendi, directly or indirectly, and a limited number of other shareholders under the terms of
a contractual arrangement
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Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivend: exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method

Significant influence 15 presumed to exist when Vivend: holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of voting rights in an entity unless it can be
clearly demonstrated that Vivendi does not exercise significant influence Significant influence can be evidenced through other criteria, such
as representation on the board of directors or the entity's equivalent governing body, participation in policy-making processes, matenal
transactions with the entity or the interchange of managenial personnel

133 Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros The functional currency of Vivendi SA and the presentatian currency
of the group is the euro

Fotelgn currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded 1n the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and habilities are translated into the entity’s functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment n a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly to
charges and income directly recognized in equity until the divestiture of the net investment

Financial statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency 15 not the euro are translated into euros as follows the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 1s
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the penod, and the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the perod The resulting translation gains and kosses are recorded as foreign
currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized in equity In accordance wath IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to reverse the
accumulated foreign currency translatien differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004 These forergn currency translatton
differences resulted from the translation into euro of the financial statements of subsidiaries having foreign currencies as therr functional
currencies  Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associates, whose functional currency Is not the euro

1.3.4 Revenues from opersations and associated costs

Revenues from operations are recorded when it 1s probable that future economic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can be
reliably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

13441 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from telewision subseniption services for terestnal, satellite or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service peniod,
net of gratuities granted Revenues fram advertising are recognized over the period during which advertising commercials are broadcasted
Revenues from ancillary services (such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service 1S rendered Subscriber
management and acquisition casts, as well as television distnbutgn costs, are included i selling, general and admunistrative expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a nght of use is granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-ine basis over the life of the iease agreement

Film and telewision programming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distrbution and from wideo and television or pay television
ficensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 1 34 4) and rebates, are recognized upon
stuprment and availability of the product for retait sale Amortization of film and television capitalized and acquisition costs, theatrical prnt
costs, home video Inventory costs and telewvision, and home wvideo marketing costs are included i costs of revenues
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1342 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a proviston for estimated returns {please refer to Note 134 5) and rebates, are

recognized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping paint for products sold free on board (FOB) and on delvery for products sold free on
destination

Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and reliable data from certain distnbutors, are
recogruzed based on therr estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notification by the distnibution platform {on-hine or mobile music distributor) to UMG of a sale te the final
customer

Music publishing

Revenues from the third-party use of copynghts on musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when royalty
statements are recerved and collectability 1s assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distribution costs, royalty and copynght expenses, artists’ costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and administrative expenses primarily include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful receivables and indirect overheads

1343 GVT, SFR, and Maroc Telecom group

Separable components of bundled offers

Revenues from telephone packages are recognized as multiplecomponent sales m accordance with 1AS 18 Revenues from the sale of
telecommunication equipment (mobile phones and other equipment}, net of discounts granted to customers through the distribution channel,
are recognized upon activation of the line Revenues from telephone subscriptions are recognized on a straight-line basis over the subscnption
contract period Revenues from incoming and outgaing traffic are recognized when the service is rendered

Customer acquisition and loyalty costs for mobile phones, principally consisting of rebates on the sale of equipment to customers through
distributors, are recognized as a deduction from revenues Customer acquisition and loyalty costs consisting of premiums not related to the
sale of equipment as part of telephone packages and commissions paid to distributors are recognized as selling and general expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease applies to equipment for which a nght of use 1s granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the ife of the lease agreement

Content sales

Sales of services provided to customers managed on behalf of content providers (mamnly premium rate numbers) are erther accounted for
gross, or net of the content providers’ fees when the provider 15 responsible fer the content and for setting the price payable by subscnibers

Custom contracts

Service access and installation costs invoiced primarily to the operator's clients on the installation of services such as a broadband
cennection, bandwidth service or [P connection are recognized over the expected duration of the contractual relationship and the supply of the
primary service

Access to telecommunication infrastructure 1s provided to clients pursuant to various types of contracts lease arrangements, hosting
contracts or Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU} agreements IRU agreements, which are specific to the telecommunication sector, confer an
exclusive and irrevocable nght to use an asset {cables, fiber optic or bandwtdth) dunng a {generally lengthy) defined period without a transfer
of ownership of the asset Revenue generated by leases, hosting contracts in the Netcenters and IRU agreements 15 recognized over the
duration of the corresponding contract, except in the case of a finance lease whereby the equipment 1s considered as a sale on credit

In the case of IRU agreements and certamn lease or service contracts, services are paid 1n advance the first year Where the contract 1s not
gualfied as a finance lease, these non-refundable advance payments are recorded as deferred income and recognized ratably over the
contract term The deferral peniod 1s thus between 10 and 25 years for IRU agreements and between 1 and 25 years for leases or service
contracts
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Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues comprise perchasing costs {including purchases of mobile phaones), interconnection and access costs, network, and
equipment costs Selling, general and administrative expenses notably include commercial costs relating to marketing and customer care
expenses

1.34.4 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and pnice guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distnbutors They are
estimated based on past sales statistics and they take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final customers

The recognition of awards associated with loyalty programs in the form of free or discounted goods or services are recorded according
to IFRIC 13 Loyalty programs of SFR {valid until the third quarter of 2012), Marcc Telecom, and Canal+ Group grant to existing customers
awards in the form of free services, according to the length of the relatonship with the customer and/or loyalty points for subsequent
conversion into either handset renewal subsidies, or free services IFRIC 13 - Interpretation 1s based upon the principle of measuring loyalty
awards by reference to their fair value Fair value 1s defined as the excess price over the sales incentive that would be granted to any new
customer and, should any such excess price exist, wou'ld result in deferring the recognition of the revenue asseciated with the subscription in
the amount of such excess price

Selling, general and administrative expenses pnmanly include salaries and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
surance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs. provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reductien in revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
1s treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit 1s individualized and can be estmated

135 Assets
1351 Capitahzed financial interest

Until December 31, 2008, Vivend: did not capitalize financial interest incurred duning the construction and acqwsition period of intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment Since January 1, 2009, according to amended IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs, this interest is included in
the cost of quahfying assets Vivendi apphies this amendment to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization of
costs 1s January 1, 2009 onwards

1.35.2 Goodwill and bustness combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acqu:sitron method Under this methed, upon the mitizl consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acqurred exclusive control

» the identifiable assets acquired and the habtlities assumed are recognized at therr fair value on the acquisition date, and
= non-controlling interests are measured erther at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree's
net identfiable assets This option 1s available on a transaction-by-transaction basis

On the acquisihon date, goodwill is initially measured as the difference between
{1} the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling interests in the acquiree and, 1n @ business
combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the previously held equity interest i the acquiree, and
(1] the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabulities assumed on the acquisition date

The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair value results in an increase 1n goodwill up to the extent attributable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full goodwill” The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 manths after the acquisition
date If goodwill s negative, it 1s recognized in the Statement of Earnings Subsequent to the acquisition date, goodwill 1s measured at 1ts
initial amount |ess recorded accumulated impairment losses {please refer to Note 13 5 7 below)
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In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations

« onthe acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill 1s allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit from the business
combination,

« contingent consideration in a business combination 1s recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurrning after the purchase price allocation period 1s recognized in the Statements of Earnings,

e acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when ingurred,
in the event of the acquisition of an additronal interest in a subsidiary, Vivendi recogruzes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of nen-controlling interests acquired as a change 1n equity attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners, and

¢ goodwil s not amortized

Business caombinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivend: elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 (FRS 3, as published by the
IASB i March 2004, retained the acquisiton method Howaever, its prowisions differed from those of the revised standard on the mam
following items

e minonty Interests were measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net sdentifiable assets as there was no aption of
measurement at fair value,

e contingent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition anly if the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured,

« transaction costs that were directly attributable te the acquisition formed part of acquisition costs, and

* (n the event of the acquisition of an additional nterest in a subsidiary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minonty interests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1.353 Content assets

Canal+ Group
Film, telewision or sports broadcasting rights

When entening 1nto contracts for the acquisition of film, television or sports broadcasting nghts, the rights acquired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows

= film and television broadcasting rights are recogmzed at therr acquisition tost, when the pragram 1s available for sereening and are
expensed over their broadcasting period,

»  sports broadcasting nghts are recognized at their acquisition cost, at the opening of the broadcasting period of the related sparts
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and

s expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting nights 1s included in cost of revenues

Theatrical film and television rights produced or acquired to be sold

Theatrical film and television nghts produced or acquired before thewr imtial exhibiion, to be sold, are recorded as a content asset at
capitalized cost {mainly direct production and overhead costs} or at their acquisition cost Theatncal film and television rights are amortized,
and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estmated revenue methed (1 e, based an the ratio of the current period's gross
revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis| Vivend: considers that amortization pursuant to
the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans te consume the future economic benefits related to the asset
Accumulated amortization under this rate s, for this activity, generally not lower than the charge that would be obtained under the straight-
line amortization method If however, the accumulated amertization would be lower than this charge, a mimimum straight-line amortization
would be calculated over a maximum 12-year period, which corresponds to the typical screening period of each film

Where approprate, estimated losses in value are provided in full against earnings for the period in which the losses are estimated, on an
ndividual product basis

Film and television rights catalogs

Catalogs are compnsed of film nghts acquired for a second telewision exhibrtion, or produced or acquired film and television nghts that are
sold after their first television screening (1 e, after their first broadcast on a free terrestnal channel) They are recognized as an asset at their
acquisition or transfer cost and amortized as groups of flms, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method
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UMG

Music publishing nights and catalogs include music catalogs, artists” contracts and publishing rights, acquired through business combinations,
amortized in selling, general and administrative expenses over & period not exceeding 15 years

Rovyalty advances to artists, songwnters, and co-publishers are caprtalized as an asset when their current populanty and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances aganst earnings otherwise payable to
them 1s reasonably assured Rovyalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwniter or
co-pubhsher Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties is expensed during the period
i whuch the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded 1n cost of revenues

HRovalties earned by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense n the period during which the sale of the product
occurs, less a provision for estimated returns

1354 Research and development casts

Research costs are expensed when incurred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasiblity and, in particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use, ncluding website development costs,
are capitalized during the application development stage Application development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, installation and testing Caosts of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are also capitalized
These capitalized costs, ma:nly recognized at SFR, are amortized aver 4 years Maintenance and minor upgrade and enhancement costs are
expensed as incurred

1.355 Otherintangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection with a business combination are
recorded at their fair value at the acqusition date The historical cost model 1s applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful ife are not amortized but are all subject to an annual impairment test Amortization 1s accrued for assets with
a finite useful life Useful Iife Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period

Other intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses Music catalogs, trade names, subscribers’ bases and market
shares generated internally are not recagnized as intangible assets

GVT, SFR, and Maroc Telecom group

Licenses to operate telecom networks are recorded at historical cost based upon the discounted value of deferred payments and amortized on
a straight-line basis from their effective service start date aver their estimated useful life until matunty Licenses to operate in France are
recognized in the amount of the fixed, upfront fee paid upon the granting of the license The vanable fee, which cannot be reliably determined
{equal to 1% of the revenues generated by the activity in the case of the telecommunication licenses in France), 1s recorded as an expense
when ncurred

13556 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carned at historica! cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Historrcal cost includes
the acquisition cost or production cost, the costs directly attnibutable to transporting an asset to its physical location and prepaning it for use
In operations, the estimated costs for the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation of the physical
location resulting from the incurred obligation

When property, plant and equipment include sigmificant components with different useful lives, they are recorded and amortized separately
Amortization 1s computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated usefu! life of the assets Useful ife 1s reviewed at the end of
each reporting penod
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Property, plant and egquipment mainly consist of the network equipment of telecommunications activities, each part of which 1s amortized
generally over 1 to 50 years The useful lives of the main components are as follows

bulldings over B to 25 years,
fiber optic equipment 50 years,
pylons aver 15 to 20 years,
radio and transmission equipment over 3 to 10 years,
switch centers B years, and

+ sarvers and hardware over 1to B years
Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future minimum lease payments and of the market
value and the related debt 1s recorded as "Borrowings and other financial liabilities™ tn general, these assets are amortized on a straight-ling
basis over their estmated useful {ife, corresponding to the duration apphcable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amortization expenses

After initial recognition, the cost medel 1s applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivend) has efected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004

On January 1, 2004, o accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: decided to apply IFRIC interpretation 4 - Determwning whether an arrangement
contains a lease, which currently mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group and GVT satellite capacity and for
GVT, SFR, and Maroc Telecom group telecommunications services

e Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU} agreements confer an exclusive and irrevocable rght to use an asset duning a defined period IRU
agreements are leases which convey a specific night of use for a definad portion of the underlying asset 1n the form of dedicated
fibers or wavelengths |1RU agreements are capitalized if the agreement period covers the major part of the useful life of the
underlying asset !RU contract costs are cap/talized and amortized aver the contract term, and

«  Some IRU contracts are commercial service agreements that do not convey a nght to use a specific asset, contract costs under these
agreements are consequently expensed as operationai costs for the period

13.5.7 Asset impairment

Each time events or changes in the economic environment indicate a current risk of impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets, property,
olant and equipment, and assets in progress, Vivendi re-examines the value of these assets In addition, goodwill, other intangible assets with
an indefinite useful hife, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an annual impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year, with some exceptions This test 1s performed to compare the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit {CGU} or if
necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the corresponding assets {including goodwill) A Cash Generating Unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets The Vivend group operates through different communication businesses Each business offers different products and services that are
marketed through different channels CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group operating segments
Vivend) CGUs and groups of CGUs are presented in Note 10

The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of either {i} the value n use, or {1} the farr value (less costs to sell) as described
hereafter, for each individual asset [f the asset does not generate cash inflows that are fargely independent of other assets or groups of
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodwill 1s perfarmed by Vivend, for
gach CGU or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivendi Management measures return on operations

The value in use of gach asset or group of assets Is determined as the discounted valug of future cash flows {discounted cash flow method
{OCF}) by using cash flow projections censistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating
segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to avallable external sources of information, usually based on financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reftect the current assessment by Vivendi of the time value of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estmated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The farr value {less costs to sell) 1s the price that would be received from the sale of an asset ar group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell These values are determined on the basis of market data (stock
market prices of companson with smilar hsted companies, with the value atinbuted to siilar assets or companies in recent transactions) or
on discontinued future cash flows in the absence of reliable data
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If the recoverable amount 1s lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the difference 1s
recognized (n EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss 1s recorded first against goodwill

The impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (other than goadwill} may be reversed in
a later period if the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the hmit of impairment losses previously recognized
Impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date

1.3.5.8 Financial assets

Financial assets censist of financial assets measured at fair value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
initially recogmzed at the fair value corresponding, (n general, to the consideratian paid, for which the best evidence 1s the acquisition cost
{including associated acquisition costs, if any)

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at fair value include available-for-sale securities, derivative financial instruments with a positive value {please refer to
Note 13 7) and other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded in
organized public markets, therr fair value being calculated by reference to the published market price at penod end For financial assets for
which there exists no published market price in an active market, fair value 1s then estimated As a last resort, the group values financial
assets at histarical cost, less any mpairment losses, when a reliable estimate of fair value cannot be made using valuation technigues in the
absence of an active market

Available-for-sale secunities consist of unconsolidated interests and other secunities not gualifying for classification in the other financial
asset categonies described below Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recognized in charges and income directly
recognized 1n equity until the financial asset 1s sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position 1n another way, or until
there 1s objective evidence that the investment 15 impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity 1s expensed in other financial charges and income

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivendi intends to sell in
the near future (pnimarily marketable secunties) Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and
Income

Financial assets at amartized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of loans and recewables (prmarnily loans to affihates and associates, current account advances 1o
equity affiliates and unconsolidated interests, cash deposits, secuntized loans and receivables, and other loans and receivables, and debtors}
and held-to-maturity investments (financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity) At the end of each period, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method If there 1s objective evidence that an imparment loss has baen
incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and its recoverable amount (equal
to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's initial effective interest rate), 1s recognized in profit or
loss Impairment losses may be reversed If the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently :ncreases in the future

1359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value Cost compnses purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually computed at the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling price in the
normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and selling costs

1.3.5.10 Trade account receivables

Trade accounts receivable are initially recogmized at fair value, which generally equals the nominal value Provisions for impairment of
recevables are specifically evaluated in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts during one
reference penod related to revenues for this same period Thus, for the group's businesses which are based partly or fully on subscription
{Canal+ Group, GVT, and SFR}, the depreciation rate of trade account recevables 1s assessed on the basis of historical account recevables
from former custorners, primarily on a statistical basis In addition, account receivables from customers subject to insolvency proceedings or
customers with whom Vivendi 1s involved in litigation or a dispute are generally impaired in full

1.3.5.11 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF pasition No 2011-13, and other
hughly ltquid investments with initial maturities of generally three months or less Investments in secunties, investments with iitial matuntes
of more than three months without the possibility of early termination and bank accounts subject to restrictions {blocked accounts), other than
restrictions due to regulations specific to a country ar activity sector [e g , exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as
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financial assets Moreover, the historical performance of the imvestments s manitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting
classification

1.3.6 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and labilites 1s held for sale when 1ts carrying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by 1ts continued utihzation To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immed ate sale and the divestiture must
be highly probable These assets and hatilities are recognized as assets held for sale and labilities associated with assets held for sale,
without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value (net of divestiture
fees) and the carrying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and are no longer depreciated

An operation 1s qualified as discontinued when 1t represents a separate major line of business and the crnitena for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met ar when Vivendi has sold the asset Discontinued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Earnings for the perods reported, compnising the earnings after tax of discontinued operations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and labilities of the discontinued operations In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the relevant periods

Accounting principles and valuation methods applicable specifically to Activision Blizzard (video games), a business divested
in 2013

Revenue and related costs

The major portion of Activision Blizzard revenue Is generated by the sale of boxes for video games, net of a provision for estimated returns and
price guarantees as well as rebates, If any Regarding video games with significant online functionality or Massively Multiplayer Online Role
Playing Games, revenues are recorded ratably over the estimated relationship pernicd with the customer, usually and respectively beginning in
the month following the shipment or upon activation of the subscnption The estimated relationship peniod with the customer over which
revenues are recognized currently ranges from a minimum of five months to a maximum of less than a year Costs of sales associated with
revenues from the sale of boxes for video games with significant online functionality are recorded ratably according to the same method as for
revenues

Content assets

Licensing activities and internally developed franchises are recognized as contents assets at their acquisition cost or development cost and
are amortized over their estimated useful life on the basis of the rate at which the related economic benefits are consumed This generally
leads to an amortization period of 3 to 10 years for licenses, and 11 to 12 years for franchises

Cost of software for rental, sale or commercialization

Software development costs {video games} are capitalized when, notably, the technical feas:bility of the software 15 established and they are
deemed recoverable These costs are mainly generated by Activision Bhizzard as part of the games development process and are amortized
using the estimated revenue method (1 e , based on the ratio of the current period's gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues) for a
given preduct, which generally leads to the amortization of costs over a maximum period of 6 months commencing on a product’s release
date Non-capitalized software development costs are immediately recorded as research and development costs

137 Financial habilities
Long-term and short-term borrewings and other financial habihties include

s  bonds and credit facilities, as well as various other borrowings {including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases) and
related accrued interest,
obligations ansing in respect of commitments to purchase non-controlling interests,
bank overdrafts, and

« the negative value of other derivative financial instruments Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets 1n the
Statement of Financial Position

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attnbutable to the borrowing Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate 1 the interal yield rate
that exactly discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing In addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded derivative
{e g. an exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument (e g, a convertible bond), the amortized cost 1s calculated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded derivative or equity instrument In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e g, redemption
earlier than initially expected), the amortized cost 1s adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows, discounted
at the initial effective interest rate
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Commitments to purchase nan-controlling interests

Vivendi has granted commitments to purchase non-controlling interests to certain shareowners of 1ts fully consolidated subsidiarres These
purchase commitments may be optional (e g . put options) or firm {e g, forward purchase contracts}

The following accounting treatment has been adopted for commitments granted on or after January 1, 2009

« upon initial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests 15 recognized as a financial Liability for the prasent
value of the purchase consideration under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset through the book value of non-
controlling interests and the remaining balance through equity attnbutable to Vivend: SA shargowners,

« subsequent changes m the value of the commitment are recogrized as a financial hability by an adjustment to equity attributable to
Vivend: SA shareowners, and

e upon matunty of the commitment, If the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the entries preéviously recogmized are reversed,
if the non-cantrolling interests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial liabilities 15 reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests

Denvative financial instruments

Vivendi uses dervative financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are erther listed on crganized markets or traded gver-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties These
nstruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these denvative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses anising on these contracts are offset in earnings against
the gains and losses relating to the hedged item When the denvative financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the fair value
of an asset or a liabity recognized In the Statement of Financial Posttion or of a firm commitment which (s not recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position, 1t 1s a far value hedge The mnstrument is remeasured at fair valug 1n earmings, with the gains or losses arising on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Earnings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a non-financial asset or Liability, at the initial cost of the asset or habidity When the dernivative financial instrument
hedges cash flows, it 1s a cash flow hedge The hedging instrument 1s remeasured at fair value and the portion of the gain or loss that 15
determined to be an effective hedge 15 recognized through charges and income directly recognized 1n equity, whereas its ineffective portion 1s
recognized 1n earnings, or as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or liability, they are recognized at the initial cost of the
asset or hability When the hedged item 1s realized, accumulated gains and losses recognized in egquity are released to the Statement of
Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item When the derivative financial instrument hedges a net investment i a foreign
operation, 1t Is recognized in the same way as a cash flow hedge Denvative finantial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at farr value and resulting gains and losses are recognized directly in earnings, without remeasurement
of the underlying mnstrument

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial content nights (including sports, audioviseal and film rnghts) are recognized in
EBIT In all other cases, gains and losses ansing on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognized tn other financial charges and
Income

1.3.8 Other habilities
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting penad, Vivendi has a legal obhigation {legal, regulatory or contractual} or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and 1t Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the oblgation can be reliably estimated Where the effect of the time value of money 15 matenal,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money If no reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, no provision 15 recorded and a disclosure 1s made in the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee benedit plans

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivendh participates in, of maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retrement pensions, posi-retirement health care, life insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficianes who meet the required conditrons Retirement pensions are provided for substantiatly al
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local social security and mult-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans The plan funding policy implemented by the group Is consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations
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Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution and multi-employer plans are expensed duning the year
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in various nstruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt investment
securities, excluding Vivend: shares or debt instruments

Pensicn expenses and defined benefit obligations are calculated by independent actuanes using the projected unit credit method This method
Is based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivend) until retirement, expected
changes n future compensation and an appropriate discount rate for each country 1in which Vivendi maintains a pension plan The
assumptions adapted in 2012 and 2013, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 21 A provision is recorded in
the Statement of Financial Position equal ta the difference between the actuarial value of the related benefits (actuanal hability) and the farr
value of any associated plan assets. and includes past service cost and actuarial gains and losses

The cost of defined benefit plans cons:sts of 3 components recognized as follows

« the service cost 1s included in selling, general and admimistrative expenses It comprises current service cost, past service cost
resulting from a plan amendment or a curtasiment, immediately recagnized in profit and loss, and gains and losses an settlement,

+ the financial component, recorded in other financial charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obligation, and

o the remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability {asset), recognized in items of other comprehensive income not reclassified
to profit and loss, mainly consist of actuarnial gains and losses, 1 e changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
plan assets resulting from changes in actuanal assumptions and experience adjustments (representing the differences between the
expected effect of some actuanal assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective effect)

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset 1s recogmized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contributions

Some other post-employment benefits, such as life insurance and medical coverage {mainly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuarial computation comparable to the method used for pensian provisions

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: decided to record unrecognized actuanial gains and losses against consolidated equity

13.9 Deferred taxes

Cifferences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and habilities and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Positton give nse to temporary differences Pursuant to the liability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of

« deferred tax assets, when the tax base value is greater than the camrying value {expected future tax saving), and

s deferred tax habilities, when the tax base value 1s lower than the carrying value (expected future tax expense)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset will be realized or the liability
settled, based on tax rates {and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the clasing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in line with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as it 15
probable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax hability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temparary difference 15
generated by imtial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, nor tax mcome or loss

For deductible termporary differences resulting from investments in subsidhanes, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it 1s probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that 1t 1s more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the defered tax asset to be utilized When assessing the probability of a taxable profit
being available, account 1s taken, pnimarily, of prior years’ results, forecasted future results, ngn-recurming items unlikely to occur in the future
and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carred forward 1s to a large extent judgment-based If
the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or decrease
the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially matenal impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Earmings
of the group
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Deferred tax liabilities ara recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability results from goodwaill or
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
Impact earmings, nor tax incame or loss

For taxable temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
habilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied the parent, investor or venturer 1s able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, If the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1.3.10 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its shareholders’ interests by providing them with an
additional incentive to improve the company’s performance and increase its share price on a long-term basis, Vivendi maintains saveral share-
based compensation plans {share purchase plans, performance share plans, and bonus share plans} or other equity instruments based on the
value of the Vivendi share price {stock options), which are settled either in equity instruments or n cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares 1s
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives fixed by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Mareover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date

In addition, Umiversal Music Group maintains Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives are awarded equity
units, which are settled in cash These equity units are phantom stock units whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of Universal Music
Group

Please refer to Note 22 for details of the features of these plans

Share-based compensation 15 recognized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity Instruments granted This expense 1s spread over
the vesting period, +e 3 years for stock option plans and 2 years for performance shares and bonus share ptans at Vivend:, other than in
specific cases

Vivend use a bhinomial model to assess the fair value of such instruments This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the computed volatiity of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the nsk-free interest rate, the expected dwidend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group untit the exercise of their rights

However, depending on whether the equity instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the
expense will differ

Equity-settled instruments
» the expected term of the option granted 15 deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term,
o the value of the Instruments granted 1s estimated and fixed at grant date, and
s the expense 15 recognized with a corresponding tncrease in equity

Cash-settled instruments

¢ the expected term of the instruments granted 1s deemed to be equal to ane-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument
for vested nights, and to the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of
the instrument for unvested rights,

» the value of instruments granted 1s mitially estimated at grant date and I1s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the
payment date and the expense 15 adjusted pra rata taking into account the vested nights at each such reporting date,

+ the expense IS recognized as a provision, and
moreover, as plans settled in cash are primanly denominated in US dallars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost 15 allocated to each operating segment, pro rata the number of equity Instruments or equivalent instruments
granted to thewr managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stack options and perfermance shares settled in equity through the issuance of Vivend: shares which are in the process
of vesting 15 reflected in the calculation of dituted earnings per share

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based compensation
plans for which nghts remained to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2
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14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, joint contrgd or significant influence,
shareholders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, nor-controlling interests exercising significant influence aver group
subsidiartes, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the latter exercise exclusive control, joint condrol,
or significant influence

The transactions realized with subsidianies over which the group exercises a control are eliminated (n the intersegment operations (a list of
the principal consolidated subsidianes 1s presented wn Note 29} Moreover, commercial relationships among subsidianies of the group,
aggregated in operating segments, are conducted on an arm’s length basis under terms and conditions simifar to those which would be
offered by third parties The operating costs of Vivend SA’s headquarters in Pans and of its New York Crty office, after the allacation of a
portion of these costs to each of the group’s businesses, are mncluded in the Holding and Corporate operating segment (Please refer to Note 3
for a detailed description of the transactions between the parent company and the subsidianies of the group, aggregated by operating
segments)

15 Contractual abligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivendi and its subsidiaries prepare detalled reports on all matenal contractual obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obligations, for which they are jointly and severally hable These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal control procedures are performed, including {but not mited to} the review of
« minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in
respect of matters such as contracts, hitigation, and authorization of asset acquisitions or divestitures,
pledges and guarantees with banks and financial nstitutions,
pending litigatton, claims {(in dispute) and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels,
tax examiner’s reports and, If apphicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,
insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the nisk managemsnt department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted,
« related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitments, and maore generally
e major contracts and agreements

16 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

The IFRS standards that have been published by the IASB, which are not yet effective but which have been applied in anticipation are detailed
inNote 11

Among other IFRS accounting standards and IFRIC interpretations issued by the IASB/IFRIC at the date of approval of these Consolidated
Financial Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivend: has not elected for an earlier application and which may have an
impact on Vivend incfude mainly IFRIC 21 interpretation Levies, 1ssued by IFRIC on May 20, 2013, which applies mandatorly from January 1,
2014 |FRIC 21 addresses the accounting for a liability to pay a levy that 1s imposed by governments on entities in accordance with legislation
{1e. laws and/or regulations}, except for income tax and value-added taxes Applying this interpretation would lead to modifying, where
necessary, the determination of the obligating event that triggers the recagnition of the fiability

Vivend: 1s currently assessing the potential impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position the
Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements in applying ths interpretation
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Note 2 Major changes in the scope of consolidation

Ongoing strategic review

As publicly announced to shareholders on several occasions in 2012 and 2013, Vivendi's Management Board and Supervisory Board are
carrying out a review of the group's strategic development In 2013, Vivend: sold most of its interest in Activision Blizzard and entered into a
definiive agreement with Etisalat to sell its interest in Maroc Telecom The group has decided to focus on 1ts media and content actwities,
which hold teading positions and are taking advantage of the growing digital market [t has strengthened its presence in Canal+ France, now
fully owned Vivend: 1s also reshaping SFR The operator has begun to benefit from its transformation plan, by re-taking the commercial lead
and by reducing costs SFR has also entered into an agreement to share part of its mobile network with Bouygues Telecom, allow:ng 1t to offer
better coverage and strengthened service quahty 10 1ts customers Based on this, the group aims to pesiion the future Yiventh as a dynamic
player in media and content With SFR, it intends to participate tn the reorganization of the tefecommunication sector in France, exploring
actively all potential opportunities

During the second half of 2013, the group reached important strategic milestones

¢ on October 11, 2013, Vivendh completed the sale of 88% of 1ts interest in Activision Blizzard for 88 2 billion (or €6 billion}, 1n cash In
addition, Vivend retained 83 millien Activision Blizzard shares, representing 11 9% of Actvision Bhzzard's outstanding share
capital, which are subject to a staggered 15-manth lock-up penod,

e on November 4, 2013, Vivend: entered into a definitive agreement with Etisalat for the sale of Vivend''s 53% interest in Maroc
Telecom group for €4 2 billion i cash, including @ €310 million dividend distribution with respect to fiscal year 2012, according to
the financial terms known to date Completion of this transaction 1s contingent upon the satisfaction of certan ¢losing conditions,
including receipt of required regulatory approvals in Morocco and the countries in which Maroc Telecom group operates. as well as
finalization of the shareholders’ agreement between Etisalat and the Kingdom of Moracco This transaction 1s expected to be
completed during the first manths of 2014 {please refer to Note 7), and

« on November 5, 2013, Vivend: acquired Lagardére Group's 20% interest in Canal+ France for €1 020 million n cash

As a result of the sale of Actvision Blizzard, Vivendi has begun to significantly reduce 1ts debt durng the fourth quarter of 2013 by
implementing a US dollar and euro bond repurchase program in an aggregate amount of €3 hithon, thus gaining greater financial flexibility
{please refer to Note 24)

2.1 Planned demerger of the group

On November 26, 2013, Vivendi's Supervisory Board approved the group’s planned demerger to form two separate companies {1) a new
international media group based in France, with very strong positions In music {as the worldwide leader), in European cinema, (in pay-TV in
France, Africa, Vietnam, and Poland, and in the Internet and associated services in Brazil, and {1} SFR The decision to implement this project
could be taken (n the near future and, if appropriate, submitted to the General Shareholders’ Meeting for approval on June 24, 2014

Vivend considers that the conditions for the application of IFRS S to the proposed demerger in the 2013 Financeal Statements are not met

22 Acquisition of Lagardére group’s nen-controlling interest in Canal+ France

On November 5, 2013, Vivend: acquired Lagardére Group’s 20% interest in Canal+ France, for €1,020 million 1n cash In accordance with IFRS
10, Vivend: recorded this transaction as an acquisition of a non-controllng interest The difference between the consideration paid and the
carrying value of acquired non-controlling interest was recorded as a deduction from equity attnbetable to Vivendr SA shareowners
[-€636 million) In addition, Vivend: and Lagardére Group have settled all disputes between them {please refer to Note 28} Thereafter, Canal+
France S A was merged with and into Canal+ Group S A, pursuant to a simplified merger, with retroactive effect to January 1, 2013

23 Completion of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group (UMG)

As a reminder, on September 28, 2012 Vivend! and UMG completed the acquisition of 100% of the recorded music business of EMI Group
Global Limited (EMI Recorded Music) EMI Recorded Music has been fully consolidated since that date The purchase price, in enterprise
value, amounted to £1,130 million (€1,404 million} The authonzation by the European Commission was notably conditional upon the
divestment of the Parlophone, Now, and Mute labels In accordance with IFRS 5, Vivend: reported these assets as assets held for sale at
market value (less costs to sell}, in the Statements of Financial Position, until completion of the sale

On February 7, 2013, Vivend) and UMG announced that they had entered into an agreement for the sale of Parlophone Label Group to Warner
Music Group for an enterpnse value of £487 million to be pad in cash Following the approval by the European Commission on May 15, 2013,
the sale of Parlophone Label Group was completed on July 1, 2013 and Vivend) received a consideration of £501 midlion (€581 milhon),
including the pravisional estimated contractual price adjustments {£14 million}

Mareover, the divestments of Sanctuary, Now, and Mute were completed
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The aggregate amount of divestments made in compliance with the conditions imposed by the regulatory autherities in connection with the
acquisiion of EMI Recorded Music was £543 million, less costs to sell {approximately €679 million, including €33 milhon m gains on foreign
exchange hedging and a consideration in the amount of €19 mullion remaining payable as of December 31, 2013)

Finalization of the purchase price allocation

UMG finalized the purchase price allocation of EMI Recorded Music within a 12-month penod as required by accounting standards the
purchase price, using the fair value of assets acquired and habilitses incurred or assumed, was based on analyses and appraisals prepared by
UMG with the assistance of third-party appraisers, when appropnate The major acquired assets were the music catalogs, amortized over a
pericd of 15 years and artist contracts, amortized over a penod of 10 years

In 2013, goodwill was adjusted by €57 million and the final goodwill amount of EMI Recorded Music amounted to €358 million, following the
finalization of the purchase price allocation as presented below

{in millions of euros) September 28 2012
Carrying value of EMI Recorded Music’s assets and hiabilities acquired by Vivendi (A) (333)
Fair value adjustments of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and labilities incurred or assumed

Music nghts and catalog 1,046

Deferred income tax, net [321)

Other {18}
Total (B) 707
Fair value of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and liabilities incurred or assumed (C=A+B) n
Fair value of EMI Recorded Music's assets and habilities sold 672
Goodwill 358
Purchase price of 100% of EMI Recorded Music 1,404

24 Strategic partnership among the Canal+ Group, IT}, and TVN in Poland
On November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN finalized the combination of their Polish Pay-TV platforms

Acquisition of ITI Neovision “n”

Fallowing the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy (Canal+ Group's Cyfra+ platform) with 1Tl Neovision (TVN's "n” platform), Canal+ Group holds a 51%
interest in the new structure "nc+" {compared to a previous 75% interest in Canal+ Cyfrowy) As Canal+ Group has the majority on the
Supervisory Board and the power to govern the financial and operating policies of “n”, the latter has been fully consolidated by Canal+ Group
since November 30, 2012

The purchase prce for the 100% interest m “n” amounted to €268 million The goodwill of “n” was valued according 1o the full goodwill
method Canal+ Group finalized the purchase price allocatign within a 12-month period as required by accounting standards the purchase
price consists of the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities incurred or assumed on the basis of analysis and estimates undertaken
by Canal+ Group, with the assistance of third-party appraisers, when appropnate The main assets acquired were a subscriber base valued at
€33 million, amortized over a perod of 8 years, the brand, valued at €18 million, and tax losses carried forward of €69 million In 2013,
goodwill was adiusted by -€75 million and the final goodwill of "n* amounted to €138 million

Acquisition of an interest in N-Vision

On November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group acquired a 40% nterast in N-Vision, which indwectly holds a 52% wterest (n TVN On December 18,
2013, in accordance with the shareholders” agreement, IT| exercised its put option to sell to Canal+ Group a 9% interest in N-Vision's share
capital and voting nghts for €62 million, paid n cash in February 2014 Canal+ Group's ownership interest in N-Vision thus increased to 49%
(please refer to Note 27)

25 Other changes in the scope of conselidation

Acquisition of a 60% interestin Red Production Company

On December 5, 2013, Stediocanal acquired a 60% majority interest in Red Preduction Company, a British company which praduces television
series
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26 Transactions underway as of December 31, 2013

Agreement to share a part of SFR’s mobile access networks

On January 31, 2014, SFR and Bouygues Telecom entered into a strategic agreement to share a part of their mobile access networks, following a
perod of negotiations announced n July 2013 They will roll out & new shared network in an area covering 57% of the French population This
agreement will enable both operators to improve their mobile coverage and generate significant savings over time

The agreement is based on two principles
» the creation of a joint company, to manage the shared base station assets, and
»  entry by the operators into a RAN-sharing service agreement covering 2G, 3G, and 4G services in the shared area

This network-sharing agreement 1s simelar to numerous arrangements already existing in other European countnes Each operator will retain
Its own innevation capacity as well as complete commercial and pnicing independence

The network-sharing agreement took effect upon the signing of the agreement and the shared network 1s expected to be completed by the end
of 2017

From an accounting perspective, this agreement had no impact on the accounts for fiscal year 2013

Acguisition of a 51% interest in Mediaserv by Canal+ Group

On July 12, 2013, Canal+ Overseas entered into an agreement with Loret Group to acquire a 51% majonty interest in Mediaserv, an overseas
telecom operator On February 10, 2014, the French Competition Authority approved this acquisition, which was completed on February 13,
04
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Note 3 Segment data

3.1 Operating segment data

The Vivend! group comprises several businesses that are leaders in the worlds of content, media, and telecommunications Fach business
offers different products and services that are marketed through different channels Given the unique customer base, technology. marketing
and distnbution requirements of each of these businesses, they are managed separately and represent the base of the internal reporting of
the group The Vivend: group has the following four main businesses

e  Canal+ Group: publishing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV channels as weil as free-to-air channels in metropolitan
France, Poland, francophone Atrica, French overseas territories and Vietnam as well as cinema film production and distribution n
Europe,

s  Unwversal Music Group sale of recorded music, including that of EMI Recorded Music since September 28, 2012, {physical and
digital media}, exploitation of music publishing nights as well as artist services and merchandising,

e GVT aBrazhan fixed telecommunication and broadband Internet operator as well as a Brazilian pay-TV provider and

+  SFR atelecommunication operator {(mobile, broadband Internet, and fixed telecommunications) in France
Vivend: Management evaluates the performance of these operating segments and allocates necessaty resources to them based an certain
operating indicators {segment earnings and cash flow frem operations} Segment earnings relate to the EBITA of each business segment
Additionaily, segment data 1s prepared according to the following principles

s the gperating segment “Other operations™ includes operations peripheral to the group, notably, See Tickets {a British ticketing
company), Digitick (the French leader in web ticketing], Wengo {the French leader in expert advisory services by phone). and
Watchever {sale of digital content on the Internet, mainly in Germany),

« the operating segment "Holding & Corporate” includes the cost of Vivendi SA's headquarters in Pans and of its New York City
office, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the businesses,

» intersegment commercial relations are conducted on an arm’s length basis on terms and conditions similar to thase which would be
offered by third parties, and

e  the operating segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the imformation given to Vivendi’s Management Board

In addition, Vivend!'s interests in Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group, discontinued businesses as of December 31, 2013 {please
refer to Note 7), are no longer reported in segment data as a result of the application of IFRS 5 (Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
iscontinued Operations)
- the 2012 Cansolidated Statement of Earmings and 2012 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows were adiusted to ensure consistency
of information, and
- Maroc Telecom group's assets and habilities were reclassified as unallocated assets as of December 31, 2013

Moreover, as of January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended 1AS 19 {Employee Bengfits),
whose application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1)

For a detailed descriptien of the adjustments made to the previously pubhished Financial Statements, please refer to Note 33

As of December 31, 2013, Vivend: also presented data categonzed according to five geographic regions, consisting of its four main geographic
markets {France, Rest of Europe, United States, and Brazil), as well as the rest of the world
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32 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by the customers’ location

{in millions of euros)

Revenues
France
Rest of Europe
United States
Brazi

Rest of the World

{in millions of euros}

Segment assets
France
Rest of Europe
United States
Morocco
Brazil

Rest of the World

Year ended December 31,

203 2012

14,662 66% 15,664 69%
2,485 1% 2,204 10%
1,883 9% 1,594 7%
1,776 8% 1,776 8%
1,349 6% 1,339 6%
22135 180% 225717 108%

December 31 2013 December 31, 2012
24,950 64% 27,539 52%
2483 6% 2,666 5%
6,549 17% 10815 21%
- - 4,347 8%
4,725 12% 5127 10%
432 1% 2,214 4%
39,139 100% 52,708 100%

Tuesday, February 75, 2014

In 2013 and 2012, acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets were manly realized in France by Canal+ Group and SFR and in Brazi by

GvT

Note 4

Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros} 2013 N2
Product sales net 5,543 5228
Services revenues 16 564 17 295
Other 28 54
Revenues 22,135 22,577
Cost of products sold net {3,629) {3,592}
Cost of service revenuss {9,367} {9,092)
Other 8 12
Cost of rovenues (12,988} (12,672
Personnel costs and average employee numbers
Year ended December 31
{in mitlions of euros except number of empioyees) Note 03 012
Annual average number of full-time equivalent employees {in thousands) 461 31
Salarnes 1,978 1,748
Social secunity and other employment charges 624 585
Capitahzed personnel costs (176) {169)
Wages and expenses 2,426 2,164
Share-based compensation plans 21 58 "
Employee benefit plans 211 46 45
Other 156 198
Personnel costs 2,686 2479
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Addittonal information on operating expenses

Advertising costs amounted to €611 rmilhon 1n 2013 {compared to €587 nullion in 2012}

Expenses recarded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to €113 million

in 2013 [compared to €101 million n 2012)

Net expense recorded in the Statement of Earmings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €504 million 1n 2013 {compared to

€492 million 1n 2012)

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

{in mellions of euros)

Amoruzauon {excludmg intangible assets acquired through business combinations)
of which property plant and equipment
content assets
other intangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
of wihich content assets
other intangible assets
Imparment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a)
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

a  Mainly relates to the impairment of SFR's goodwill (€2,431 milhon) in 2013 and the impairment of Canal+ France's goodwill

Note

13
"
12

n
12
1011

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012

2,207 2,078
1.441 1327

22 27

744 725

462 436

339 301

123 135

2437 760
5,106 3.215

{€665 million) and certain goadwill and music catalogs of Universal Music Group {€94 million}) 1n 2012

Other income and other charges

{in millions of euros)

Capital gain on the divestiture of businesses
Capital gain an financial investments
Other

Other income

Downside adjustment on the divestiture of businesses
Downside adjustment on finangial investments
of wiuch impatrment of Canal+ Group's N-Vision equity affiliate
Other
of winch acquisttion costs
Other charges

Net total

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Year ended December 31

2013 2012

3 5
37 7
48 i
88 19
- @
31) {153}
- (119}
(26} (80}
(8} (63}
(57} (236)
31 21
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Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest
Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2013 2012
{Charge)/Income
Interest expense on borrgwings {553) {572)
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 25 28
tnterest {528) {544)
Fees and prermums on borrowngs and credit facihities 1ssued/redeemed and early unwinding
of hedging denvative mstruments {207 {15}

(735) (559)

Other financial income and charges

Year ended December 31,

(in mullions of euros} Note 2013 2012
Expected return on plan assets related to employee benefit ptans 22 13 13
Foreign exchange gan 38

of which GVT's euro borrowing to Vivend: SA 24 38 -
Change in value of denvative instruments - 23
Other - 1

Other financial income 51 a
Effect of undiscounting liabilities (a) (28) {31}
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 212 {33) {36)
Fees and premiums on borrowings and credit facilities issued/redeemed and early unwinding of
hedging denivative instruments {207) (15}
Foreign exchange loss (270) {103}

of which GVT's euro borrowing to Vivendi SA 24 {224) {76)
Change in value of dervative instruments {1 -
Other {22) {19)

Other financial charges (561} (204)

Net total {510} {167}

a In accordance with accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money 1s material, assets and liabthties are instialty
recorded on the Statement of Financial Position i an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent period, the present value of such assets and liabilities 15 adjusted to account for the passage
of time As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, these adjustments only appled to labiines {mainly trade accounts payable and
provisions)
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivend: SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefrted, until December 31, 2011 inclusive, from the
Consol:dated Global Profit Tax System, as authorized under Article 209 quinquies of the French Tax Code Therefore, since January 1, 2012,
Vivend: only benefits from the French Tax Group System

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivend! 1s entitled to consoldate ts own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidiaries that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly, and that are located in France for 2013, this applied to Universal
Music in France, SFR, and Canal+ Group

Until December 31, 2011, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System entitled Vivendi te consolidate 1ts own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidianies that are at least 50% owned directly or indirectly, and that are located in France or
abroad, 1e, besides the french companies that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by Vivendi Activision Blizzard,
Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecomn, GVT, Canal+ France and its subsidiaries, as well as Societé d'Edition de Canal Plus
{SECP) As areminder, as of May 13, 2008, Vivend: applied to the French Ministry of Finance for the renewal of its authorization to
use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and an authonzation was granted by an order dated March 13, 2009, for a three-
year period beginning with the taxable year 2009 and ending with the taxable year 2011

In addition, as a reminder, on July 6, 2011, Vivend: lodged an appeal with the Miristry of Finance in relation to the renewal of its
autherization to use the Consolidated Glebal Profit Tax System for a 3-year penod, from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014
The changes in French Tax Law in 2011 terminated the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 and capped
the deduction for tax losses carned forward at 60% of taxable weome Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carned forward 1s
capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest s imited to 85% of financial charges, net {75% as from January
1, 2014)

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivend's tax attributes {tax losses and
tax credits carried forward) are as follows

as Vivend: considers that its entitlement to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was effective unti| the end of the
authorization granted by the French Ministry of Finance, including fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, on November 30, 2012,
Vivend: filed for a refund of €366 millian with respect to the tax saving for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 However, this
fiscal position 1s being challenged and in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, Vivench accrued a
£366 million provision for the associated nisk, unchanged as of December 31, 2013 (please refer to Note 6 6),

moreover, considering that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System permitted tax credits to be carried forward upon the matunty
of the authorization an December 31 2011, Vivendi requested a refund of the taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for
the year ended December 31, 2012, excluding social contributions and exceptional contnbutions, or €208 million, brought to
€220 million, when filing the tax return with respect to fiscal year ended December 31 2012 This fiscal positien may he
challenged and in rts Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, Vivend: accrued a €208 million provision for the
associated risk, brought to €220 million as of December 31, 2013 {please refer to Note 6 6, below),

given the foregoing, as of December 31, 2012, Vivend: recorded tax attnbutes representing potential tax savings in the aggregate
amount of €1,553 million {compared to €2,013 millon as of December 31, 2011) On February 19, 2014, the date of the
Management Board meeting that appreved the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, the 2013 tax results
of the subsidiaries within the scope of Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System were determined by estimating, and as a result, the
amount of tax attributes as of December 31, 2013 could not be determined with certainty,

taking inte account the impact of the estimated 2013 tax results and before the impact of the consequences of the ongoing tax
audits {please refer to Note 6 6) on the amount of tax attributes, Vivendi SA expects to achieve £1,527 million in tax savings from
tax attributes (undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 38 00%), and

as of December 31, 2013, Vivend SA valued its tax attnibutes under the French Tax Group System on the basis of one year's
forecast results, taken from the following year's budget On this bagis, Vivendi would achieve tax savings from the French Tax
Group System in an amount of £163 million (undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 38 00%)
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6.2 Provision for income taxes

Year ended December 31,
{rm miflions of euros) Note 2013 2012
{Charge)/Income
Current
Use of tax losses and tax credits
Tax savings related to Vivend! SA's French Tax Group System and o the

Conselidated Global Profit Tax System 61 415 381
Tax savings related to the US tax group 25 20
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense (22) {10)
Consideration of nisks related to previous years' income taxes 127 (22}
Other income taxes items {715) {991}
{170} (622)
Deferred
Impact of Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System and of the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax System 61 {161) (48)
Impact of the US tax group - -
Other changes n deferred tax assets 9 7
Impact of the changels} in tax rates n 1
Reversal of tax habil ties relating to nsks extinguished over the period 12 -
Other deferred tax income/{expenses) {130) 58
{247 13
Provision for income taxes {417) (604)

6.3 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic region

Year ended December 31,

(in millions of euros) 2013 2012
(Charge}/Income
Current
France (83 {510
United States 8 12y
Brazll (65) (8B)
QOther junisdictions (30) (12}
(170) (622)
Deferred
France (282) (38)
Unuted States (46) 20
Brazif 3 (12}
Other jurisdictions 50 48
(247) 18
Provision for income taxes (417) {604)
Income tax {paid}/collected
France (22 {187}
United States {8) (10
Brazil {104) {74)
QOther junsdictions (63) {82)
Income tax paid (197) {353)
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6.4 Effective tax rate

Year ended December 31,
{n milhons of eurgs, except %) 2013 2012
Earmings (before non-controlling interests) 2119 964
Eltmination
Incomne from equity affiliates 33 38
Earnings from discontinued operations {4,635) {1,506}
Provision for income taxes 47 604
Earmings from continuing operations hefore prowvision for income taxes {1,406) 101
French statutory tax rate 38.00% 36.10%
Theoretical provision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate 534 (36)
Reconciliation of the theoretical and effective provision for income taxes
Permanent differences 17 {152)
of whuch  other differences from tax rates g {3
impacts of the changes i tax rates 41 !
Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System
and to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System {161) {48)
Other tax losses and tax credits (211) 228
of which  use of current Josses of the penod - 4
use of unrecognized losses and tax credits - 262
unrecognized losses {211} {38}
Other temporary differences 317 (341)
ofwhich reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation Itigation i the United States 341 {341}
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense 14 (9)
of which consideration of risks related to previous years' income taxes 139 {2z}
Capital gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on hinancial
investments or businesses {926} (313}
of which impairment of SFR goodwil {924) -
impairment of Canal+ France goodwilf - {240/
impairment of Canal+ Group’s N-Vision equrty affiliate - {43)
Other 3 67
Effective provision for income taxes {17} {604}
Effective tax rate -297% 598.0%
65 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Changes n deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net
Year ended Decernber 31,
(in millions of euros} 2013 2012 {a)
Opening balance of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 454 79
Provision for iIncome taxes (b} {4374 {8)
Charges and income directly recorded in equity (¢} - 18
Business combinations 163 {278
Divestitures in progress or completed (206)
Changes n foreign currency translation adjustments and other 79 3
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 53 454

a  Vivend applied from January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19 {Employee Benefits), whose
application 1s mandatory 1n the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012
Financial Statements were adjusted in accordance with the new standard {please refer to Note 33}
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b Includes income/{charge) related to Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group taxes in accordance with IFRS 5, these amaunts
were reclassified to the line "Earnings from discontinued operations™ (n the 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statement of Eamings

c Includes -€43 million recognized n other items of charges and income directly recognized in equity for the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to +£22 million 1n 2012 {please refer to Note 9)

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilties

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 (a)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred taxes, gross
Tax attnbutes (b) 2623 2,639
of wiuch Vivendi SA (¢} 1.527 1,567
US tax group (d} 364 673
Temporary differences (e 1,073 1,795
Netting {501} (366}
Deferred taxes, gross 3195 4,068
Deferred taxes, unrecognized
Tax attributes (b) {2,271} {2,138)
of which Vivend: SA (¢} {1.364) {1,243
US tax group {d) {364} {623}
Temporary differences (e} {191} (485}
Deferred taxes, unrecogmized (2.462) (2,623)
Recorded deferred tax assets 733 1,445
Deferred tax habilities
Purchase accounting asset revaluations {f) 50 801
Other B30 456
Netting {501} {366)
Recorded deferred tax hiabilities 680 M
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net 53 454

a  Vwend appled from January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended |AS 19 {Employee Benefits), whose
application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1} As a result, the 2012
Financial Statements were adjusted in accardance with the new standard {please refer to Note 33}

b The amounts of tax attributes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In jurisdictions which
are material to Vivendi, mamnly France and the United States, tax returns are filed at the latest on May 15 and September 15 of the
following year, respectively Thus, the amounts of tax attributes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authonties
may differ significantly, and if necessary, may be adjusted at the end of the following year in the table above

¢ Relates to deferred tax assets recogrizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
£1,553 million as of December 31, 2012 {please refer to Note 6 1}, of which €815 million related to tax losses and £738 millian related
to tax credits, after taking into account the estimated impact (-€26 milhon) of 2013 transactions {taxable income and use or expiration
of tax credits), but prior to taking into account the consequences of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6 below)

In France, tax losses can be carned forward indefinitely and tax credits can be carned forward for a penod of up to 5-years In 2013,
€188 million tax credits matured as of Decermber 31, 2013

d  Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable 1n respect of tax attributes by Universal Music Group Inc in the United States as head of
the US tax group, representing $892 million as of December 31, 2012, after taking into account the estimated impact (-$393 million) of
2013 transactions {taxable income, capital iosses, and tax credits that expired, capital losses and tax credits generated, as well as the
divestiture of Activision Blizzard), but prior to taking into account the consequences of ongoing tax audits {please refer to Note 6 6}

As a reminder, with respect to the divestiture of Activision Blizzard and in accordance with U S tax rules, Vivend allocated to the
acquirer a fraction of the tax attributes that it previously deferred tax losses were estimated at more than $700 milhon In addition,
the Universal Music Group Inc replaced the Vivendi Holding | Corp as head of the Tax Group System in the United States

In the United States, tax losses can be carrnied forward for a period of up to 20-years and tax credits can be carried forward for a period
of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to December 31, 2022 and no tax credit matured as of December 31, 2013
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e  Manly relates to the deferred tax assets related to non-deducted provisions upon recognition, tncluding provisions relating to
employee beneftt plans, and share-based compensation plans

f These tax liabilities, generated by asset revaluations following the purchase price allocation of companies are terminated upon the
amortization or divestiture of the underlying asset and generate no current tax charge

6.6 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authonties in the junsdictions in which
Vivendi has or had operations Various tax authonties have proposed adjustments to the taxable income reported for prior years It is not
possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of certain of
these audits Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits will not have a matenal and unfavorable impact on the financial position or
hquidity of the group

Regarding Vivend SA, in respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the consolidated income reported for fiscal years 2006, 2007,
and 2008 (s under audit by the French tax authonities This tax audit started in January 2010 In addition, in January 2011, the French tax
authorties began a tax audit on the consoldated income reported for fiscal year 2009 and in February 2013, the French tax authorities began
a tax audit on the conschdated income reported for fiscal year 2010 Finally, Vivendi SA's tax group System for the years 2011 and 2012
group 15 under audit since July 2013 Vivendi Management believes that 1t has senous legal means to defend the positions 1t has chosen for
the determination of the taxable income of the fiscal years under audit In any event, a provision for the impact of the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax System i 2011 has been accrued (E366 million), as well as a provision for the impact in relation to the use of tax credits in 2012
{€220 millvon} Moreover, the tax attributes recogmized by Vivendi SA with respect to the fiscal years under audit, representing tax savings of
£€1,527 milhan as of December 31, 2013, were recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition for €163 million: only {please
refer to Notes 6 1 and 6 5)

Regarding Vivendi's US tax group, the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were under a tax audit The consequences of
this tax audit did not matenally impact the amount of tax attributes Vivendi's US tax group 1s under a tax audit for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010 This tax audt started in February 2012

Finally, regarding Maroc Telecom, the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, 2007, and 2008 were under a tax audit This tax audit s
now closed following the execution of a Memorandum Agreement on December 19, 2013, effective as of December 31, 2013

Note 7 Discontinued operations

As from the second quarter of 2013, and in compliance with [FRS 5 taking into account the anticipated closing dates of the current sales,
Activision Bhzzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in Vivend!'s Consolidated Staternent of Earnings and Statement of Cash
Flows, as discontinued operations

In practice, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported as follows
« therr contnibution, until their effective sale, to each line of Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Earmings (before non-controlling
Interests has been grouped under the line “Earmings from discontinued operations”, and
e their contribution, until their effective sale, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped
under the line “Cash flows from discontinued operations”

In accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all penods reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements {2013 and
2012} to ensure consistency of information

On October 11, 2013, Vivend) deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest

Moreover, the contribution of Maroc Telecom group to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of December
31, 2013 has been grouped under the lines "Assets of discontinued businesses” and "Liabilities associated with assets of discontinued
businesses”
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7.1 Sale of Activision Blizzard

On October 11, 2013, Vivend) completed the sale of 88% of its interest in Activision Blizzard, or 600 64 mullion shares priced at $13 60 per
share, for $8,169 million (€6,044 million} in cash

The key terms of this sale are as follows

o through the acquisition of a Vivend subsidiary, Activision Blizzard repurchased 428 68 million shares at $13 60 per share for a
cash consideration of $5,830 million,

« concomitantly, Vivendh sold 171 97 miflion Actision Blizzard shares at $13 60 per share for a cash consideration of $2,339 million
to an investor group (ASAC [ LP) led by Mr Robert Kotick Activision Blizzard's Chief Executive Officer, and Mr Brian Kelly, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors ASAC Il LP owns approximately 24 7% of the outstanding share capital (following the
repurchase of 428 68 milhon shares by Activision Blizzard),

* pursuant to the simultaneous closings of both sales on October 11, 2013, Vivend: retained 83 million Activision Blizzard shares,
representing 11 9% of Activision Blizzard's outstanding share capital {fallowing the repurchase of 428 68 million shares by
Activiston Blizzard) Vivend:'s remaining ownership 1s subject to a staggered 15-month lock-up penod as descnbed below The sale
proceeds from the remaming ownership are estmated at a total of $1,129 mdkion (€832 mulhion), assuming the hypothesis
of $13 60 per share and at $1,480 million (€1,078 million), assurming the hypothesis of Actwvision Blizzard's share price on
December 31, 2013 of $17 83 per share, and

« the agreements governing the transaction include certatn continuing commitments given by the parties

Deconsolidation of Activision Blizzard as from October 11, 2013

As from October 11, 2013, as a result of the sale of 600 64 million shares of, or a 53 46% interest i Activision Blizzard, Vivends lost control
of and deconsolidated Activision Blizzard In the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, the remaining
83 million Activision Blizzard shares have been recarded as assets held for sale, subject to the staggered lack-up period This interest is
revalued at the basis of stock market price and the current EUR/USD exchange rate at each reporting date {or €1,078 million as of December
31, 2013} and the unrealized gains or losses on such investments has been recegnized i “Earnings from discontinued operatians” {or
€245 mullion as of December 31, 2013)

Capital gain on divestiture

From an accounting perspective and in accordance with IFRS, Vivend: 1s considered to have sold 100% of its interest in Activision Blizzard
following the loss of control of this subsidiary The gain on sale was determined as the difference between the value of 100% of Activiston
Blizzard shares owned by Vivendi at a price of $13 60 per share {net of costs to sell) (86,851 million} and the value of Activision Blizzard's net
assets attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners, as recorded n Vivendi's Consolidated Statements at the date of the loss of control
(€4,491 milion} Moreover, in accordance with IFRS, foreign currency translation adjustments attributable to Vivend SA shareowners in
relation to Activision Blizzard were reclassified to profit or loss, 1 e, a gan of €555 million Therefore, the total capital gatn on divestiture,
which amounted to €2,915 million, with no tax impact, has been recognized 1n the Consoldated Statement of Earnings under the fine
“Earnings from discontinued operations”

Commitments given in connection with the sale of Activision Blizzard

As part of the sale of 88% of Yivend's interest in Activision Blizzard which was completed on October 11, 2013 (the “Closing Date”),
Vivend(, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction {representat:ons,
warranties, and covenants} Vivend:, ASAC Il LF, and Activision Blizzard undertook to indemnify each other against any losses stemming from
any breach of their respective commitments Such indemnification 1s unlimited as to time and amount

In addition, Vivend: has agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other liabilities of Amber Holding Subsidiary Co
{"Amber”}, the Vivend: subsidiary acquired by Activision Blizzard, relating to penods preceding the Closing Date Such indemnification 1s
unlimited as to time and amount Tax attnbutes (mainly net operating loss) held by Amber and assumed by Activision Blizzard were
estimated at more than $700 million, which represent a potential future tax benefit of approximately $245 million Vivend agreed to
indemnify Activision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject to a cap of $200 million imited to
taxable years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016

Finally, the 83 milion Activision Blizzard shares Vivendi retained are subject to a two-tiered lock-up provision
e dunng the 180 day perod following the Closing Date (1 e, until Apn! 9, 2014}, Vivend cannot sell, transfer, hedge of otherwise
dispose of any Activision Blizzard shares directly or indirectly,
» durning the 90 day penod following the expiry of this first lock-up period {1 &, from Apnil 10 through July 8, 2014), Vivendi can sell
Activision Bhizzard shares provided they constitute no more than the lesser of 50% of Vivendi's 83 million remaining shares and
9% of the outstanding shares of Actwvision Blizzard and
« following this 90 day sale window, Vivend s subject to another 180 day lock-up prowision {1e from July 10, 2014 through
January 7, 2015)
Thereafter, Vivend) may sell its remaining Activision Blizzard shares without restriction
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Activision Blizzard has agreed to file a registration statement prior to each sale window to enable Vivend: to sell the Activision Blizzard
shares in a public offering

Prior to any sale of Actrvision Blizzard shares by Vivendi in @ market offering that accurs prior to the second anniversary of the Closing Date
{October 17, 2015), Vivend) must notify Activision Blizzard of its intention to sell shares and Actwision Blizard may, at 1ts election, offer to

purchase some or all of the shares that Vivend: intends to sell in such market offering Vivendi may accept or dechine such offer at its sole
discretion

ASAC It LP 15 also subject to a lock-up prowision of 180 days following the Closing Date (1 e, until April 8, 2014}, provided that it may sell its
Activision Blizzard shares se long as the net proceeds from such sales are used to pay amounts under its loans

1.1 Statement of Earmings

Given the deconsolidation of Actvision Blizzard on October 11, 2013, the line “Earnings from discontinued operations” takes into account
Activision Blizzard until that date The capital gain on divestiture from the sale of Activision Blizzard as well as the change In the value of the
remaunng 83 rmillon Activision Blizzard shares were recorded under the line "Earnings from discontinued operations” for €2,915 millon and
€245 million, respectively

Actviston Blizzard Year ended December 31,

(in mallions of euros) 2013 2012
Revenues 2328 3,768
EBITDA 989 1315
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA] 895 1143
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 831 1128
Earmings before proviston for income taxes B46 113
Provision for Income taxes {154] (258)
Activision Blizzard's earmings 692 873
Capital gain on the divestiture of Activision Bhzzard 2915 -
Change 1n value of the remaining interest in Activision Blizzard 245 -
Earmings from discontinued oparations 3,852 8
0f which attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners 3583 536
non-controlhing interests 269 337

712 Statement of Cash Flows

Given the deconsolidation of Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013, the 2013 Statement of Cash Flows included Actvision Blizzard until
that date

Activision Blizzard Year ended Decambar 31

{n milhons of eurps) 2013 2012
Operating activities

Gross cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid 907 1220
Net cash provided by Actvision Blizzard's operating activities 307 1,037
Investing activities

Capital expenditures net {a4) {57}

Change 1n financial assets, net [1.479) {35)
Net cash provided by/{used for) Activision Blizzard's mvesting activities {1,523) (92}
Financing activities

Oradends paid to nan-controfling nterests (66} 162}

Stock repurchase program - {241}

Other 1720 15
Net cash provided byAused for) Activision Blizzard's financing activities

1,654 (288)
excluding dividends paid to Vivend)

Dwvidends paid to Vivendi (98) {94}
Net cash provided by/{used for} Actvizion Bhizzard's financing actities 1,556 {382)
Foreign currency translation adustments (43} (22)
Change in Activision Blizard's cash and cash equivalents 297 501
Activiston Blizzard's cash and cash equivalents

At hequnrung of the perad 2989 2408

At end of the penod 3285 () 2,989

a8  Relates to the balance of net divested cash on October 11, 2013 1t was recognized as a deduction from the amount received in cash
with respect to the sale as an nvesting activity in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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12  Plan to sell Maroc Telecom group

On November 4, 2013, Vivend: entered into a definitive agreement with Etisalat, with whom exclusive negotiations had begun on July 22,
2013, regarding the sale of Vivend's 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group The key terms of this agreement known to date are as follows

the agreement values the interest in Maroc Telecom group at MAD 92 6 per share or sale proceeds to Vivend: of approximately
€4 2 billion 1n cash, including a €310 million dividend distribution with respect to fiscal year 2012, according to the financial terms
known to date Taking inte account Maroc Telecom group’s net debt, the transaction reflects a proportional enterprise value of
€4 5 bulhon for Vivend's interest, equal to an EBITDA multiple of 6 2%, and

the completion of this transaction 1s contingent upon the satisfaction of certain closing conditions, including receipt of required
regulatory approvals in Morocco and the countries in which Maroc Telecom group operates, as well as finalization of the
shareholders’ agreement between Etisalat and the Kingdom of Morocce This transaction 1s expected to be completed during the
first months of 2014

1.21 Statement of Earnings
Maroc Telecom Group Year ended December 31,
{in milhons of euros} 2013 2012
Revenues 2,559 2,689
EBITDA 1,453 1,506
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 1,215 988
Eamings before snterest and income taxes (EBIT) 1,202 962
Earnings before provision for income taxes 1,189 933
Prowvision for iIncome taxes {386) {301}
Earnings from discontinued operations 783 632
Of which attributable to Vivend! SA shareowners 348 297
ngn-controlling interests 435 335
722 Statement of Financial Position
Maroc Telecom Group December 31, 2013
{in millions of euros)
Goodwill 2392
Property, plant and equipment 2,466
Trade accounts receivable and other 845
Cash and cash equivalents 396
Other 463
Assets of discontinued businesses 6,562
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 710
Trade accounts payable and other 1.541
Other 178
Liahilimes associated with assets of discontinued businesses 2429
4113
Equity

As of December 31, 2013

equity attnbutable to Maroc Telecom group’s non-controlling interests was €1 176 million, and

other comprehensive income related to Maroc Telecom group ncluded foreign currency translation adjustments attnbutable to
Vivend: SA shareowners of €90 million, related to an unrealized foreign exchange loss attnbutable to the decline in value of the
Moroccan ditham since 2001, which will be recycled to earnings from the sale of Maroc Telecom group upon completion of the
sale
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Off-balance sheet commitments

As of December 31, 2013, Maroc Telecorn group’s commitments were €635 million {compared to €316 millian as of December 31, 2012} On
January 16, 2013, Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into a fourth capital expenditure agreement for the penad between 2013
and 2015 As of December 31, 2013, the amount of the remaining capital expenditure obligation was €591 million

Moreover, commitments from Maroc Telecom and its subsidiaries include other commercial commitments and contracts entered into
relating to operations such as lease contracts for satellite transponders and bank guarantees, which are for individually non-significant
amounts

7123 Statement of Cash Flows

Maroc Telecom Group Year ended December 31,
(tin millions of euros) 2013 2012
Operating activities
Gross cash provided by operating activities befare income tax paid 1448 1442
Net cash provided by Marac Telecom group's operating activities 1,110 1,237
Investing activities
Capital expenditures, net (434) (457)
Other 5 6
Neat cash provided by/{used for) Maroc Telecom group's investing activities {429) (451)
Financing activities
Owidends paid to non-controlling interests {328) (388}
Transactions on barrowings and other financial habihties (42} 118
Net cash provided by/{used for) Maroc Telecom group's financing activities excluding
diwidends pawd to Vivend) (370 (269)
Omdends paid to Vivend - (490}
Net cash provided by/{used far) Maroc Telecom group's financing activities {370) (759)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (1) 3
Change tn Marac Telecam graup’s cash and cash equivalents 1o 30
Maroc Telecom group's cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the period 86 56
At end of the period 396 (a) 26
a  Includes a €310 million dividend distnibution with respect to 2012 fiscal year
Note 8 Earnings per share
Year ended December 31,
2013 2012
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
Earmings (in milhons of euros)
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners (1964} (1,964) (654} (654}
Earmngs from discontinued operations attnibutable to Vivend) SA shareowners 393 3,928 {3) 833 830 (a)
Earnings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1,967 1 964 {a) 179 176 (a)
Number of shares (in millions)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (b} 13306 13306 1,2989 12989
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation (c) - 47 - 35
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13306 13353 12989 13624
Earnings per share (in euros}
Earmings from continuing operatians attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share {147) (147} {050) {050
Earmings from discontinued pperations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 295 294 064 064
Earnings attiibutable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 148 147 014 014

a  Only includes the potential dilutive effect related to stock aption plans and restricted stock rights of Activision Blizzard for a non-
material amount

b Netof treasury shares (please refer to Note 19)
¢ Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 which could potentially become dilutive The
balance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA’s share-based compensation plans is presented in Note 22 2 2
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Note 9 Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{in milhions of euros)

Actuartal gains/{losses] related to employee defined benefit plans
ftems not reclassihed to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments

of which changes in foreign currency translation aduistments refating to discontinued operations
transferred to profit or loss as part of the sale of Activision Blizzard

Unrealized gains/{losses)
of wiich Cash flow hedge instruments
Valuation gamns/fiosses/ taken to equity
Transferred to proftt or loss of the pertod
Net investment hedge instruments
Valuvation gamns/fiosses] taken to equity
Transferred to profit or foss of the period
Heding instruments

Valuation gamns/fiosses} teken to equity
Transferred to profit or loss of the perad
Assets available for sale

Qther impacts
ltems to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{in millions of euros)

Actuanal gainsfllosses] related to employee defined benefit plans
Items not rectassified to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments

af which changes in foreign currency translation adyustments refating to discontinued operations

Unrealized gains/(losses)
of which Cash flow hedge nstruments
Valuation gams/flosses) taken to equrty
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Net investment hedge instruments
Valuation gamns/flosses) taken to equrty
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Hedging instruments

Valuation gains/flosses) taken to equity
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Assets avallable for sale

items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and tncome directly recognized in equity

Year ended December 31, 2013

Note Grass Tax Net

2 (22) i1) {23)
{22) {1 (23
[1429) - {1429

{117} - {117)

7 {955} - {585}
99 (41) 58

24 z 1 3
16 - 16

(14) 1 13/
s (24) - (24)
15 - 15

{39) - {39)
122) 1 21

120 {42} 8

i - i

16 121 (42} 79
L] 1) 15
{1,314} {42) {1.356)
{1,336} (43) {1,379}

Year ended December 31, 2012 [a)
Note Gross Tax Net

2 82} 2 i61)
(82} 21 (61)
{605) - {605)

f113) - {n3l

102 1 103

24 2 1 23
41 f 42

{15 - {19}

24 17 - 17
17 - 17

39 1 40

55 - 55

8 - 8

16 63 - 63
(503) 1 (502)
{585) 2 (563)

a Asof Janvary 1, 2013, Vivend applied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended 1AS 19 (Employee Benefits) and
IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income), each of whose application is
mandatory 1n the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1} As a result, the 2012 Financial
Statements were adjusted in accordance with the new standards {please refer to Note 33}
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Note 10

{in milhons of euros)

Goodwill, gross

Impairment losses
Goodwill

Changes in goodwill

{in milliens of euros)

Canak+ Group
of which Canal+ France

Studiocanal
D8/017
nev

Universal Music Graup

GVT

SFR

Other operations

Actrviszon Blizzard

Maroc Telecom Group

Total

{in millions of euros}

Canak+ Group
of which Canals Franca

Studiocanal
o807
nc+

Universal Music Group

GVT

SFR

Other operations

Activision Bhzzard

Maroc Teletom Group

Total

Goodwill

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

31,539 37,940

{14,392) {13,284

17,147 24,656

December 31 [vestiiures in progress Changes in fareign December 31
12 Impairment losses Business combinations . letad currency translation 2013
orcomplate adjustments and other
4513 - {46} {3) 4464
3635 . 3635
207 30 {1 236
310 fi} - 308
230 - {75/ {a) {2) 153
4138 1] 64 (bl 9 102 4100
2006 - {330} 1676
9153 {2431} - 6722
184 2 {1} 185
2255 - (2 208) 147}
2407 - - (239 (15}
24,656 {2,436) F3] {4.595) (898) 12,147
December 31 Devestitures in pr Changes in fareign D ber 11
2011 Imparment losses Business combinations W olr':er: | f ggress currency translation ec;ra Zr
omplate adjustments and other

4648 (665) 537 7l 4513
4309 {665} - 9 3635
197 14 T 207
- 310 o) - 310
75 213 fal {8/ 230
4114 {85} {d) 304 (o} {32) {163} 1138
2222 . {216) 2006
9152 1 9153
M {t} ? 7 184
2309 - 154) 2255
2413 - {6) 2407
25,629 {75%) 849 3 (439) 24656

a Relates to goodwill attributable to the acquisition of “n” on November 30, 2012 As of December 31, 2012, the provisional goodwll
was estimated at €213 milhon In 2013, goodwill was adjusted by -€75 million and the final goodwill of “n” was €138 milhien {please

refer to Note 2}

b Mainly relates to goodwil attributable to the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 As of December 31, 2012, the
provisional goodwill was estmated at €301 million In 2013, goodwll was adjusted by €57 million and the final goodwill of EMI
Aecorded Music amounted to €358 million {please refer to Note 2)

c Relates to goodwiil attributable to the acquisition of D8 and D17 on September 27, 2012

d  Relates to impairment losses related to certain music catalogs of Universal Music Group
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Goodwill impairment test

In 2013, Vivend: tested the value of goodwill allocated to i1ts cash-generating units {CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuatien methods
consistent with previous years Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded thew carrying value
{including geodwill} The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows (discounted cash flow methed {DCF)) and the fair value {less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data {stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, companison with the value attnbuted to similar assets or companies In recent transactions) For a
description of the methods used for the impairment test, please referto Nota 1357

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGUs tested

Operating Segmants Cash Generating Units (CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Pay-TV in Metropolitan France c
anal+ France
.. Lanak Overseas .
Canal+ Group Free-to-air TV {a) Free-to-air TV {a}
__ Studwcanal e | | Studiocanal
Other entities {Other entities
Recorded music fincluting EMI {bj}
Universal Mustc Group Artist services and merchandrsing Universal Music Group
Music publishing
GVT GVT GVT
SFR SFR SFR

a  As of December 31, 2012, no goodwill impairment test regarding Canal+ Group's Free-to-air TV was undertaken given that the date of
acquisition of D8/D17 was close to the closing date, and considering that no triggering event had occurred between those dates

b As of December 31, 2012, no goodwill impairment test regarding EMI Recorded Music was undertaken given that the date of
acqusition of EMI Recorded Music by UMG [please refer to Note 2 3} was close to the closing date, and considering that no tnggering
event had occurred between those dates In 2013, EM} Recorded Music’s operations were integrated with UMG's recorded music
operations Consequently, as of December 31, 2013, Vivend: undertook a goodwill impairment test regarding UMG, including hencetorth
EMI Recorded Music’s goodwill

During the fourth quarter of 2013, Vivend: performed such test on each cash generating unit {CGU} or groups of CGU, on the hasis of
valuations of recoverable amounts determined with the assistance of third-party appraisers for SFR, Canal+ France, and Universal Music
Group, and nternal valuations notably for GVT, Studiocanal, and Free-to-air TV As a result, Vivendi Management concluded that, except in
the case of SFR, the recoverable amount of each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value as of December 31, 2013

¢ SFR as of December 31, 2013, Vivend: examined the value of SFR's goodwill SFR's recoverable amount was deterrmined upon the
basis of the usual valuation methods, in particular the value in use, based upon the DCF method The most recent cash flow
forecasts, and financial assumptions approved by the Management of the group were used and were updated to take nto account
the strong impact on revenues of the new tanff policies decided by SFR in a competitive environment, parttally offset by cost
savings which were consistent with expectations under SFR's transformation plan, while maintaining high capital expenditures,
notably due to SFR's acceleration of very-high speed mobile network investments As a result, Vivend's Management concluded
that SFR's recoverable amount was below its carrying value as of December 31, 2013 and decided to record a goodwill impairment
loss of €2,431 million {please refer to tables below)

As a reminder, as of December 31, 2012, Vivendi examined the value of SFR's goodwill, upon the basis of the usual valuation
methods, and concluded that SFR's recoverable amount, based upon the DCF method, despite its decline, exceeded its carrying
value at that date

» Canal+ France as of December 31, 2013, Vivend: examined the value of Cana%+ France's goodwill, using the usual valuation
methods and concluded that Canal+ France’s recoverable amount, based upon the DCF method, using the most recent cash flow
forecasts approved by the Management of the group, exceeded its carrying value at that date As a reminder, since November 5,
2013, Vivend: holds a 100% interest in Canal+ France pursuant to the acquisition of Lagardére Group's 20% interest in Canal+
France for €1,020 million, n cash In accordance with IFRS 10, this transaction was recognized as the acquisition of a non-
controlling terest and the difference between the cansideration paid and the carrying value of the acquired non-controlling
nterest was recorded as a deduction from equity atinbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners {please refer to Note 2 2)

As a reminder, as of December 31, 2012, Canal+ France’s recoverable amount was determined upon the basis of the value in uss
based on the DEF methed, using the most recent cash flow forecasts approved by the Management of the group, as well as
financial assumptiens consistent with previous years (please refer to the table below) As a result, considening pnmarily the
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expected impact on revenues in Metropolitan France of the increase in the VAT rate from 7% to 10% as of January 1, 2014 and, to
a lesser extent, the adverse changes in the macro-economic and competitive environment since the second half of 2012, Vivend:
Management concluded that Canal+ France’s recoverable amount was below its carrying value as of December 31, 2012, and
consequently recorded an impairment loss of €665 mrllion

Presentation of key assumptions used for the deternnation of recoverable amounts

The value in use of each CGU or groups of CGU 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections
consistent with the 2014 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each
operating segment on the basis of the financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate,
and EBITA as defined in Note 12 3, camtal expend:tures, competitive environment, regulatory environment, technological development and
level of commercial expenses The recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU was determined based on its value in use in
accordance with the main key assumptions presented below

Valustion Mathed Dhscount Rate (a) Parpatual Growth Rata
Dpersting sagments L£6U or groups of CGU tested a3 am2 013 m2 2013 M2
Canal+ France DCF & comparables model i3 B30% 500% 150% 1 50%
Canak Group Free-to-air 7 DCF na 950% na 200% na
Studiecanal ocF DCF 900% 3 00% 000% 000%
Universal Music Group Universal Mugic Group DCF & comparables madel | DCF & comparables model 915% 3 25% 100% 1 00%
GVT {bt GVT OCF CLF 11 24% 10 91% 400% 400%
SFR SFA DCF & comparables model | DCF & comparables modal 130% 130% 0 50% 050%
Actuvision DCF stock market price & 1050% 200%
comparables modg)
Acywision Blizzard Bhzzard (=] DCF stock market price & le} 1050% {c) 100%
comparables modal
Distribution DCF & comparables model 1350% 400%
Maroc Telecom Stock macket price na na
Onatel DCF 14 0% 300%
Maroc Teleesm Group Gabon Teleestn {d} oCF (d} 12 70% (d) 300%
Maurtel DCF 17 40% 306%
Scielma CCF 14 60% 300%

na not applicable

DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash fiows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b In2012, the annual goodwill impairment test on GVT was performed during the second quarter

¢ Interestin Activiston Blizzard was sold on October 11, 2013 {please refer to Note 7}

d  Considennyg the current plan to sell Maroc Telecom group and in accordance with IFRS 5, Marec Telecom group has been considered as an
asset held for sale since the second quarter of 2013
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December 31 2013

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows

Increase in the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growth rate Decrease n the discounted cash flows
Applied n arder for the recoverable amount Applied in arder for the recoverable amount in order for the recaverable amount
rate 10 be equal W the carrying amount rae to be equal to the carnang amount to be squal to the carrying amount
{in %) {in number of points) {tn %} {in number of paints) {in %}

Canal+ Group
Canal+ France B30% +023pt 150% 032pt -3%
Free-to-ar TV 950% +1 84 pt 200% -274 pts 1%
Studrocanal $00% +219pis 000% -353 pts -21%
Umiversal Music Group 215% +225pis 100% 2% pts -22%
GVT(al 1 24% +1 26 pt 400% 257 pts 2%
SFR{b) 7 30% {b} 050% (b} (b}

December 31 2012

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows
Increase 1a the discount rate Decrease in the perpetugl growth rata Decrease in the discounted cash flows
Applied in arder for the recoverable amount Apnlied in arder for the recoverable amount In arder for the recoverahle amount
rate 1o be equal to the carrying amount rate ta be equal ta the carrying amount o be equal to the carrying amaunt
{in %) {in number of points) {in %} {in number af points} {in %}
Canal+ Group

Canal+ France {c} 900% fc) 150% {c} 1]
Studiocanal 900% +3 23 pts 0 X% 555pts -28%
Universal Music Group 925% +2 98 pts 100% 491 p1g -25%
SFR 730% +068 pt 050% 121 -i0%
GVT {2) 1091% +251 pts 400% 6 25 pts -25%
Maroc Telscom Group Id) ] [d {d {d}

Activision Bhizzard
Activision 10 50% +378pts 400% -2415pts -58%
Bhizzard 10 50% +10 19 pts 400% -25 20 pts 68%

a8 In2012, the annual goodwill imparment test on GVT was performed in the second quarter

b Inrelation to the recognition of a goodwill impairment loss on SFR as of December 31, 2013, please refer below for a sensitivity analysis,
which presents the {increase)/decrease in iImpairment generated by a 25 point change 1n the discount rate and in the perpetual growth
rate assumptions, and a 2% change n the cash flow assumptions with each of these assumptions being taken separately for the

goodwill impairment test

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Cash flows
Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by
{in mithons of euros) 25 pts 25 pts 25 pts 25 pts 2% 2%
December 31 2013 {509) 549 286 (266) 243 {243)

¢ Inrelation to the recognition of a goodwill impairment loss on Canal+ France as of December 31, 2012, please refer below for a
sensitivity analysis, which presents the {increasel/decrease in impairment generated by a 25 point change in the discount rate and in
the perpetual growth rate assumptions, and a 2% change n the cash flow assumptions with each of these assumptions being taken

separately far the goodwill impairment test

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Cash flows
Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by
{in miligns of eurgs} 25 pis 25 pts 25 pts 25pts 2% 2%
December 31 2012 {133 142 105 {98) 77 {77

d  As of December 31, 2012, Maroc Telecom was valued based on 1ts stock market price

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31,2013

Vivend /86



Tuesday, February 25, 2014
Note 11 Content assets and commitments

11.1 Content assets

December 31, 2013

Accumulated amortization

Content assets, gross Content assets
and impairment losses

{in milhons of euros)

Film and television costs 5678 {4,875) 803
Sports nghts 380 - 380
Music catalags and publishing nights 6,992 {5,032} 1.960
Advances to artists and repertoire owners 621 - 621

Merchandising contracts and artists services 75 {17 8
Internally developed franchises and other games content assets - - -
Games advances - - -
Content assets 13,695 (9.923) 3172

Deduction of current content assets {1,176} 27 {1,149)
Non-current content assets 12,520 {9.897) 2623

December 31, 2012

Accurnulated amortization
Contant assets gross Content assets

and imparment losses
{in milbons of euros) P

Film and television costs 5,522 (4,756) 766
Sports nights 331 - K|
Mus:c catalogs and publishing rights 1,222 {4,871) 2,351
Advances to artists and repertaire owners 618 - 618
Merchandtsing contracts and artists services 5 {15) 10
Internally developed franchises and other games content assets 493 (331) 162
Games advances 133 - 133
Content assets 14,344 {9,973} 437t
Deduction of current content assets (1,118) 74 {1,044}
Non-current content assets 13,226 {9,899} 3327

Changes in main content assets

Year ended December 31,

(in milhons of euros) 2013 2012

Opening balance 43N 3,551
Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations 81 (122) (a)
Amortization of content assets acquired through business combinations (344) (324) (a)
Impairment losses on content assets acquired through business combinations - 9) (b
Increase 2.495 2,585
Decrease (2,332} (2 252)
Business combinations 3 1077 {c}
Divesutures in progress or completed {347} {21}
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other 7 (114}
Closing balance 3.mn 431

a Relates te the amortization of content assets as reported in the 2012 Financiat Report These amounts have not been adjusted for the
impact of the application of IFRS 5 on the consolidated income statement -€95 million and -€23 million, respectively, were
reclassified to the ine “Earnings from discontinued operations” for 2012

b Relates to the impairment of certain UMG music catalogs

c Primanly relates to the music catalogs acquired from EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 {please refer to Note 2 3)
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11.2 Contractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position content liabilities
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Content habthities are mainly part of “Trade accounts payable and other” or part of * Other non-current habihties” whether they are current or

non-current, as applicable {please refer to Note 17}

Minimum future payments as of December 31 2013

Total minimum future

Total Due in payments as of
{in millions of ewros) 2014 2015-2018 After 2018 December 31 2012
Film and television nghts {a} 208 208 189
Sponts nghts 402 492 - N
Music royalties to artssts and repertoire owners 1614 1508 16 - 1579
Creatwe talent, employment agreements and others m 37 72 2 19
Games royalties - - - - 22
Content iabilites g 2.5 88 2 %
Otf balance sheet commitments given/(received)
Mimmum future payments as of December 31 2013 Tetal mimmum future
Total Due In payments as of
{in emllions of euros) 2014 2019-2018 After 2018 December 31 2012
Film and television nghts {al 2383 1219 1191 13 2590
Sports nghts {b) 1350 668 682 - 1715
Creative talent employment agreements and others [c) 754 356 355 43 959
Given commitments 4,487 2243 2,188 E] 5,264
Film and telewtsion nghts (a} (179) (118) 61} . [114)
Sports nghts {10} {7 @ - {12)
Creative talent employment agreements and others {c} not available
Other - - - - (199)
Recewed commitments (189} {125) {64) - [325)
Total net 4298 2118 2,124 5 4939
a Mainly includes contracts vahd over several years for the broadcast of film and TV productions {mainly exclusivity contracts with major
US studios, as well as the license agreement entered into on March 29, 2013 regarding the entire HBO new senes, for 5 years, as of
May 2013} and pre-purchase contracts in the French mowie industry, Studiocanal film production and co-preduction commitments
{given and received) and broadcasting rights of CanalSat and "nc+” multichaanel digital TV packages They are recorded as content
assets when the broadcast s available for smtial release As of December 31, 2013, provisions recorded relating to these
commitments amounted to £71 million, compared to €86 million as of December 31, 2012
In addition, this amount does not include commitments n relation to channel nght contracts, ISP {Internet Service Provider) royalties
and non-exclusive distnbution of channels, under which neither Canal+ Group nor GVT granted mimimum guarantees The vanable
amount of these commitments cannot be rehiably determined and 1s not reported in the Statement of Financial Position or in
commitments and ts instead recorded as an expense for the period in which it was incurred Based on the estimation of the future
subscriber number at Canal+ Group, commitments 1n refation to channel nght contracts would have increased by a net amount of
£354 million as of December 31, 2013, compared to €288 million as of December 31, 2012
Moreover, according ta the agreement entered into with cinema professional organizations on December 18, 2009, Société d'Edition
de Canal Plus {SECP) is required to invest, every year for a five-year period (2010-2014), 12 5% of 1ts annual revenues in the financing
of European films With respect to audiovisual, in accordance with the agreements with producers and authors” organizations, Canal+
France 1s required to invest a percentage of its revenues in the financing of heritage waork every year
Agreements with cinema organizations and with producers and authors’ organizations are not recorded as off balance sheet
commitments as the future estimate of these commitments cannot be reliably determined
b Notably includes broadecasting nghts for the French professicnal Soccer League 1 awarded to Canal+ Group for the 2014-2015 and
2015-2016 seasons The pnice paid by Canal+ Group represents €427 million per season, or a remaining total of €854 miliion as of
December 31, 2013, compared to €1 281 million as of December 31, 2012 Moreover, the broadcasting nights also includes the Enghsh
Premier League for the 2014-2015 and 2015-20%6 seasons, renewed in January 2013 and the Formula 1 World Championship awarded
in February 2013 These commitments will be recognized 1n the Statement of Financial Position either upon the start of every season or
upen initial significant payment
c Primarnly relates to UMG which routinely commits to artists and other parties to pay agreed amounts upon delivery of content or other
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Note 12

{in mullions of euros}

Software
Telecom licenses
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

(i mitlions of euros)

Software
Telecom licenses
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

Other intangible assets
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December 31, 2013

Other intangible assets,

Accumnulated amortization

Other intangible assets

grass and impaiment losses
5158 {3.906) 1,252
2,505 (620) 1,885
956 811) 145
167 (51) 116
1,825 {917} 808
10,511 (6,305) 4.306

December 31, 2012

Other intang ble assets,

Accumulated amortization

(Other intangible assets

0/0sS and impairment losses
5,447 (4,035) 1412
2,960 {811} 2149
962 (725) 237
457 {53) 409
2,110 {1,127) 983
11,941 (6,791) 5,190

Software includes acquired software, net for €404 million as of December 31, 2013 {€592 million as of December 31, 2012}, amortized over
4-years as well as SFR's internally develgped software
Other intangible assets notably include indefeasible nights of use {IRU} and other long-term occupational rights, net for €297 milhon as of
December 31, 2013 (€296 million as of December 31, 2012}

Changes in other intangible assets

{in muthens of euros)

Opening balance
Depreciation
Acquisitions

Increase related to intemal developments

Divestitures/Decrease
Business combinations

Divestitures in progress or completed

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments

Other
Closing balance

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012
5,190 4329
(924} {979)
477 1545
264 294
4) [4)
33 38
{678) -
{37) {52)
{15} 19
4,306 5,190

(a)
{b}

a  Relates to the depreciation of other intangible assets as published in the 2012 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted for the
impact of the application of IFRS 5 on the Conschdated Income Statement [please refer below)

b Includes the acquisition by SFR of 4G spectrum {very-high-speed Internet - LTE) for €1 065 million in 2012

Depreciation of other intangible assets from continumng operations [pnmarily Canal+ Group, GVT, and SFR) was recognized as cost of
revenues and n selling, general and administrative expenses (-€744 million in 2013 and -€725 million 1n 2012} it mainly consists of SFR's
telecom hicenses {-€117 million in 2013, compared to -€73 million in 2012), internally developed software {-€232 million in 2013, compared to
-£218 millon 1n 2012}, and acquired software (€181 million in 2013, compared to -€192 million iIn 2012)

Deprecation of other intangible assets of discontinued businesses was recagnized as earmngs from discontinued operations for -€57 million
in 2013 {compared to -€£119 milhon 1n 2012}
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Note 13

{in mullians of euras)

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Construction-in-progress
Other

(in milhons of euros)

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Construct:on-in-progress
Other

Property, plant and equipment
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December 31 2013

Property, plant and
sguipment gross

Accumulated
depreciztion and
impaiment losses

Property, plant and equipment

82 (2) B0
3,092 {1,718 1,334
8,768 {4 704) 4,064
353 - 353
4,306 {2 596) 1,710
16,561 {9,020} 7.541
December 31, 2012
Accumylated
Property, plant and depreciation and Property plant and equipment
gquipment, gross
Impairment losses
242 2 240
3,707 {2 143) 1,664
13,939 {8 071) 5,868
375 - 375
4637 {2 758) 1879
22,900 (12,.974) 9,926

As of December 31, 2013, other property, plant and equipment, net, notably included set-top boxes, for €973 million, compared to
€974 milion as of December 31, 2012 In addition, property, plant and eguipment financed pursuant to finance leases amounted to
€44 million, compared to €58 rullion as of December 31, 2012

Changes in property, plant and equipment

{in milhons of euros)

Opening halance

Degpreciation

Acqusitions/Increase

Divestitures/Decrease

Business combinations

Dwvestitures in progress or completed

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments
Other

Closing balance

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012
9,926 9,001
[1,851) 11,743) ta}

2.448 2,769
{115) (38t

{40) 170

{2,381} -
(444) {232)

{21 -
1541 9926

a Relates to the depreciation of property, plant and equipment as published in the 2012 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted
for the 1mpact of the application of IFRS 5 on the Consolidated income Statement {see below)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (primarly Canal+ Group, UMG, GVT, and SFR} was recognized as cost of revenues and in
selling, general and admemistrative expenses for -€1,441 cllion in 2013 and -€1.327 mulien in 2012 It mawly consists of huitdings
{8126 million 1n 2013, compared to -€124 million 1n 2012) and equipment and machinery {-€85Z million 1n 2013, compared to -€752 million

In2012)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of discontinued busingsses was recognized as earnings from discontinued operations |t
mainly consists of Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group for -€45 million and -E365 million, respectively :n 2013 {compared to
-€70 mithon and -€346 mullion, respectively in 2012)
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Note 14 Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations

December 31, 2013

Maroc Telecom

SFR GVT Group Total
{in milhons of euros)
Other intangible assets, net
Software 1153 55 - 1,208
Telecam licenses 1885 {al - - 1885
Customer bases 88 21 - 107
Trade names - 97 - 97
Cther 807 1 - 818
3,931 184 - 4,115
Property, plant and equipment, net
Land 76 - - 76
Buildings 1286 15 - 130
Equipment and machinery 2,078 1904 - 3,982
Construction-in-progress 304 - - 304
Other 788 358 - 1,146
4,532 2211 - 6,809
Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations, net 8,463 2,461 - 10,924
December 31, 2012
SER VT Maroc Telecom Total
{tn mullions of euros) Group
Other intangible assets, net
Software 1,112 58 182 1,350
Telecom licenses 2,002 (a) - 147 2149
Customer bases 152 72 ? 226
Trade names - 17 1 118
Other 816 13 50 879
4,082 258 382 4,12
Property, plant and equipment, net
Land a7 - 131 228
Buildings 1,182 16 315 1,513
Equipment and machinery 2,117 1885 1,747 5749
Construction-in-progress 34 - - 314
Other 758 334 g7 1189
4,468 2235 2,290 8,993
Intangible and tangible assets of telacom operations, net 8,550 2,493 2672 13,715

a  SFR holds lcenses for 1ts networks and for the supply of i1ts telecommunications services in France, for a 15-year penod for GSM
{between March 2006 and March 2021) and a 20-year penod for bath UMTS (between August 2001 and August 2021} and LTE {between
January 2012 and January 2032), with the following financial conditions
o for the GSM hcense, an annual payment over 15 years compnsed of a {1y fixed portion 1n an amount of €25 mithion for each year

{capitalized over the period based on a present value of €278 million in 2008} and {n) a variable portion equal 10 1% of the yearly
revenues generated by this activity,

e for the UMTS license, the fixed amount paid in 2001 (€619 million} was recorded as an intangible asset and the vanable part of
the fee 15 equal to 1% of the yearly revenues generated by this activity Moreover, as part of this kcense, SFR acquired new
spectrum for €300 million i June 2010, over a 20-year period, and

e for the LTE licenses, the fixed amounts paid in October 2011 (€150 million) and January 2012 {£1,065 mullion), respectively, were
recorded as intangible assets at the grant date of spectrum brand published :n the “Journat Officiel” 1n October 2011 and January
2012, and the variable portion of the fee 1s equal to 1% of the yearly revenues generated by this activity
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The vanable portions of the fees that cannot be reliably determined are not recorded in the Statement of Financial Position They are
recorded as an expense, when incurred

SFR’s network coverage commitments related to telecommunication licenses

e On November 30, 2009, the "Autorité de Régulation des Communications Electroniques et des Postes” or “Arcep” (the French
Telecommun;cations Regulatory Agency) addressed a notice to SFR regarding 1ts compliance i relation to the UMTS network
coverage of the French metropolitan population 99 3% by December 31, 2013 As of December 31, 2013, SFR met its network
coverage commitments

*  As part of the grant of the first band of LTE spectrum in October 2011, SFR has committed to ensure a specific coverage rate for
the French metropolitan population 25% by October 11, 2015, 60% by Octaber 11, 2019, and 75% by October 11, 2023

e As part of the grant of the second band of LTE spectrum in January 2012, SFR has committed to comply with the following
obligations

{i}

()
(i}

{iv]

Note 15

{in millions of euros)

N-Vision
Numergy

VEVD

La Poste Telecom
QOther

na not applicable

SFR1s required to provide the following very high-speed mobile network coverage

- coverage of 38% of the French metropolitan population by January 2024 and 99 6% by January 2027,
- coverage in the prionty zone {approximately 18% of the French metropolitan population and 63% of the terrtory)
within this zane, SFR s required to cover 40% of the population by January 2017 and 90% of the population by

January 2022,

- coverage obligations at a departmental level SFR has ta caver 90% of the population of each French department by

January 2024, and 95% of the population of each French department by January 2027,

SFR and Bouygues Telecom have a mutual network shanng ar spectrum pooling obligation in the prionty zone,

SFR has an abligation to offer national roaming to Free Mobile within the prionty zone upon building of 1ts own 2 6 GHz
network covering at least 25% of the French population provided that it has not entered into a national reaming

agreement with another operator, and

SFR has a joint coverage obligation with the other 800 MHz license holders to cover the hot-spots that have been
identified by the French administration within the framework of the "white zones” program {beyond 98% of the

population} within 15 years

Investments in equity affiliates

Voting interest

Value of equity affilates

Note  December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2013 Degember 31, 2012
? 49% (a) 40% 215 162
47% 47% 95 104
47% 50% 58 59
49% 49% - -
na na 78 63
4436 388

a  OnDecember 18, 2013, [Tl exercised its put option to sell a 9% interest in N-Visian to Canal+ Group Canal+ Group's ownership interest
thus increased to 49% (please refer to Note 27}
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Note 16  Financial assets

(in millions of euros} December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 (a)
Cash management financial assets [b} - k{1

Other loans and recewables 206 196
Dervative financial instruments 126 137
Available-for-sale securities (c} 360 197
Cash deposits backing borrawings 2 6
Other financial assets 5 15
Financial assets 699 852
Deducuion of current financial assets {45) {364)
Non-current financial assets 654 488

a  Asof January 1, 2013, Vivend: apphied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19 {Employee Benefits), whose
application 1s mandatory in the Evropean Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012
Financial Statements were adjusted 1n accordance with the new standards (please refer to Note 33)

b Pnimanily related to US treasunes and government agency securities with a matunity exceeding three months held by Activision Blizzard
($387 million as of December 31, 2012}

¢ Avalable-for-sale securities notably included securities held by UMG in Beats and Spotify for €161 mulhon and €143 million,
respectively (€70 milion and €84 million as of December 31, 2012} In 2013, the fair values of these securities were reassessed with
the entry of new investors to their capital
They did not include publicly quoted secunities as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and were not the subject of any
sigrificant imparment with respect to fiscal years 2013 and 2012

Note 17  Net working capital

Changes in net working capital

Changes in
December 31 Changes n Business Givestitures m foreign currency December 31
02 operating wotking combimnations firogress of translation Other (b) 2013
{in milliens of euros} capital al completed adjustments
Inventonies 738 120 {3) {376) 19 . 330
Trade accounts receivable and other 6587 [G:]) {192) {1419) {79} 9 45898
Working capital assets 1325 (28) {195} {1,795) (a8} 9 5228
Trade aceounts payable and other 14198 [252) {8 {3 506) {211} 197 10416
Other non-current habilities 1002 {84} 17 12) {23) {143) 757
Working capital habilitres 15198 (336) 9 {3,518) (234} 54 11,173
Net working capital (7873) 308 {204) 1,723 3 {45) {5,945)
Changes in
December 31 Changes in Busmness Drvestdures in foreign currency December 31
201 operating warking combenations PIOGrEss Df translation Oiher o) 2012
capital {a) completed
{in mithians of euros} adjustments
Inventones 805 130) 2 - [iF3) ta) 738
Trade accounts recevahle and other 6730 [291) 784 {26} {84 [26] 6 587
Working capital assets 7535 (an) 33 (26} 196) (30 7325
Trade accounts payable and other 13987 (307} 579 {16} {125) 78 14196
Dther non-current liabilities 864 26 56 - [19) 75 1002
Working capital habilities 14,851 (281) 635 (16} (149 153 15,158
Nat working capital {7.316) {30) [E71) (10 (] {183) {7873)

a  Excludes content investments made by UMG, Canak+ Group, and Activision Blizzard In 2012, related to amounts as published in the
2012 Annual Report, does not include the adjustments from the impact of the application of IFRS 5 on the Consaolidated Cash Flow
Statement

b Mamly includes the change 1n net working capital relating to content investments, capital expenditures, and other investments
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{in miflrons of euros) December 31,2013

Trade accounts recevable
Trade accounts recevable write-offs

Trade accaunts recewvahle, net

Other

Trade accounts receivable and other

December 31, 2012
3625 5,458
{755} {1,315}
2810 4143
2,028 2,444
4,898 6,587

Vivendi does not consider there to be a significant nsk of non-recovery of non-impared past due recevables Vivend!'s trade recevables do
not represent a significant concentration of credit nsk due to 1ts broad customer base, the broad variety of customers and markets, as well
as the subscription-based business model of most of its business segments {Canal+ Group, GVT, and SFR) and as the geographic diversity of
its business operations {please refer to Note 3 2} Please also refer to Note 13510 for a description of the method used to evaluate trade

account receivable provisions

Trade accounts payable and other

(i1 roulhons of euros) Note  December 31 2013 December 31 2012
Trade accounts payable 5454 6578
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 112 1,598 1477
Game deferred revenues - 1,251
Prepaid telecommunication revenues 524 817
Other 2,840 4,073
Trade accounts payabte and other 10,416 14,186
Other non-current habilities

{in milhons of euros) Note December 31,2013 December 31, 2012
Liabilities related to SFR GSM license (a} 14 136 154
Prepawd revenues from indefeasible nghts of use (IRU) and other long-term

occupational nghts (b} 309 340
Non-current content liabiities nz 90 180
Other (c) 222 328
Other noa-current habilies 757 1,002

a  Relates to the discounted value of the hability The nominal value amounted to €181 million as of December 31, 2013, compared to

€206 milhion as of December 31, 2012

b Relates to deferred revenues associated with indefeasible nght of use (IRU) agreements, leases or services contracts

c Notably includes the long-term porticn (€63 million) of capital subscribed by Numergy,

Note 18  Cash and cash equivalents

not yet released

{in millions of euros} December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Cash 525 920
Cash equivalents 516 2974
of which UCITS 46 2,699
certificates of deposit and term deposits 470 275
Cash and cash equivalents 1.0 3,894

As of December 31, 2012, cash and cash equivalents notably included Activision Blizzard's cash (€2,989 million) invested, if any, :n money

market funds with initial matunty dates not exceeding 90 days
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Note 19 Equity

Share capital of Vivendi SA

{in thousands) December 31,2013 December 31, 2012
Common shares outstanding (nommunal value €55 per share) 1,339,610 1,323,962
Treasury shares (51} {1,461)
Voting nghts 1,339,559 1,322,501

As of December 31, 2013, Vivend: held 51 thousand treasury shares, representing a non significant part of its share capital These shares are
backed to the hedging of performance share plans The market value of the portfolio amounted to less than €1 million as of December 31,
2013

fn addition, as of December 31, 2013, approximately 52 8 million stock options were outstanding, representing a maximum nominal share
capital increase of €291 million {12, 3 34%)

Non-controlling interests

(in millsons of ewros) December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Canak+ Group {a} 368 692
Activision Blizzard (b} - 1,183
Maroc Talacom Group (c) 1,176 1067
Other 9 24
Total 1,513 2,966

a  Asof December 31, 2012, included Lagardére Group's 20% nterest in Canal+ France for €308 million Vivend acquired this ownership
Interest on November 5, 2013 for €1,020 million, in cash (please refer to Note 2)

b On October 11, 2013, Vivendi deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest As of December 31, 2013,
Vivend's remaining 83 midlion Activision Blizzard shares were recorded as “Assets available for sale” (please refer to Note 7)

¢ On November 4, 2013, Vivend and Etisalat entered into a definrtive agreement for the sate of Vivendi's 53% interest in Maroc
Telecom group {please refer to Note 7)

Distributions to shareowners of Vivendi SA

Dividend paid by Vivendi SA with respect te fiscal year 2012

At the Annual General Shareholders” Meeting of Apnl 30, 2013, Vivendi's shareholders approved the distribution of a dividend of €1 per
share, representing a total distribution of €1,325 million, paid in cash an May 17, 2013 by withdrawal from reserves following the coupon
detachment on May 14, 2013 The additional contnbution of 3% on dividends was recorded as a tax charge [€40 milhon) in the consolidated
earnings at the time of the payment of the dividend by Vivendi on May 17, 2013

Bonus shares granted to Vivend: SA shareowners

At its meeting held on February 29, 2012, following the Supervisory Board's recommendation, Vivendi's Management Board decided to grant
to 1ts shareowners one benus share per 30 shares held This transaction resulted in the (ssuance on May 9, 2012, by a €229 million
withdrawal from additional paid-in capital, of 41 6 million new shares with a nominal value of €55 each and entitlement as from
Janvary 1, 2012
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Note 20 Provisions
Divesttures changes in
December 31 Business foreign curency December 31
Note 2012(a) Additon Utizauen Reversal combinations  translation adjustments 2013
{inmuhons of guros} @ sther
Employea benefits (b 15 23 [56) [i[]] 10 ]} 614
Restructunng tosts (o) 8 199 258 ) 5]} 139) 156
Ligatians {d} 28 1357 143 58 [C3)] 13 35) 13719
Losses o0 anerous contracts 143 13 i62) {n 35 128
Contingent liabilities due to disposal (g} 274 /! k) {3 - 29
Cost of dismanthing and restoning sites {f} 83 - &0} - - {4 75
Other {g) 1 ﬂ 93 [LIRE] [245) 34 79} 1087 {h)
Provisions 3,969 480 {547) {307) 87 (159) 152
— T —3
Deduction of current provisions {71i) {2771 237 130 [} E] {619)
Non-current provisions 3,258 03 {310} (177} B0 {150) 2,904
Divestitures changesin
Note January 01 2012 Additian Unlizaton Reversal Businass forgmgn currancy Dacamber 31
{a) comnations transfation adjustments 2012 (a)
{in millions of suras) and oiher
Employee banefits (b) 617 43 {781 134} 60 07 HE
Restructuring costs (c) 48 3z (154} 52 o) 258
Litigations {d) bi: 478 105 {54} 2} 4 5 1357
Losses on gnarcus contracts i1l 19 (104) Al - i 143
Contingenthabilities due to disposal (e) 274 41 - 1k} "
Cost of dismantiing and restoning sites (f) 70 1 @ - 15 83
Other (g) biE] 748 1on #3) 2 9 1389
Provisions 2,265 2,158 {500) {189} 145 (] 3,859
S — — —
Deduction of current proviseons {586} {316) 91 139 12 {27} {7
Non-current provisions 1679 1,832 1885} {50} 133 n 3,258

Fnancial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2013

As of January 1, 2013, Vivendi applied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19 {(Employee Benefits)
whose application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning an or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1) As a result, the
2012 Financial Statements were adjusted 1n accordance with the new standards {please refer to Note 33)

Includes employee deferred compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€619 million as of Dacember
31,2013 and €662 million as of December 31, 2012, please refer to Note 21 2, but excludes employee termination resewes recorded
under restructuning costs

Manly relates to prowisions for restructunng at UMG (€67 million as of December 31, 2013 and €78 mullion as of December 31, 2012}
and SFR (€85 million as of December 31, 2013 and £170 million as of December 31, 2012)

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, notably includes the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Media Corparation Iitigation and the
securities class action in the United States for €945 million and £100 mullion, respectively {please refer to Note 28}

Certain commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions These provisions are not significant and the
amount Is not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend

GVT and SFR are required to dismantle and restore each telephony antenna site following termination of a site lease, without
renewal

Notably 'ncludes provisions for fiscal and legal I'tigation for which the amount 1s not detailed because such disclosure could be
prejudicial to Vivend

Notably includes the reserve accruals related to the impacts of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in 2017 (€366 million), as
well as the impact related to the use of tax credits in 2012 (€220 million) please refer to Note &
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Note 21 Employee benefits

21.1 Analysis of expenses related to employee bhenefit plans

The following table provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding 1ts financral component The total cost of
defined benefit plans 1s set forth in Note 21 2 2 below

Year ended December 31,

{m mulhions of euros} Note 2013 2012

Employee defined contribution plans 50 46
Employee defined benefit plans 2122 (4 {1
Employee benefit plans 46 45

21.2 Employee defined benefit plans

2121  Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis
Discount rate, expected return on plar assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made ' comphance with the accounting policies presented n
Note 13 8 and have been applied consistently for several years Demographic assumptions {including notably the rate of compensation
increase) are company specific Financial assumptions (notably the discount rate} are determined by independent actuaries and other
independent advisors and reviewed by Vivend's Finance Department The discount rate 1s thus determined for each country by reference to
yields on notes 1ssued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and matunties identical to that of the valued plans,
generally based on relevant rate indices The discount rates selected are thus used at year-end, to determine the best estmate by Vivendi's
Finance Department of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments

In accordance with amended IAS 19, the expected return on plan assets 1s esumated using the discount rate used to value the obligations of
the previous year

In weighted average

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate fa) 36% 36% 45% 36%
Rate of compensation increase 20% 20% 29% 31%
Duration of the benefit abligation {in years) 142 142 100 105

a A b0 basis point increase {or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) in the 2013 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€2 milhon 1n pre-tax expense {or an increase of €1 million, respectively) and would have ted to a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retirement benefits of €60 million {or an increase of €64 million, respectively)

Assumptions used in accounting for the pension henefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate 450% 350% 450% 425% 300% 325% 3 00% 325%
Rate of compensation increase {weighted average) na na 500% 450% 200% 200% 336% 3N%

na not applicable

Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate 450% 3 50% 450% 4 00%
Rate of compensation increase 350% 350% na na

na not applicable

Frnancial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements far the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Vivend: /97




Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Allacauon of pensian plan assets

December 31 2013 {a) December 31 2012 {a)

Equity securities 4% 6%
[ebt securtties 48% 57%
Diversified funds 28% 16%
Insurance contracts 5% 5%
Real estate 1% i%
Cash and other 14% 15%
Total 100% 100%

a Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets

Pension plan assets which were not transferred have a imited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assats do not include occupied
buildings or assets used by Vivendi nor shares or debt instruments of Vivend

Cost evolution of post-retirement henefits

For the purpose of measurning post-retirement benefits, Vivendi assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 7 3% for categories under 65 years old and 65 years old and over in 2013, to 4 5% n 2022 for thess
categories In 2013, a one-percentage-point (ncrease (n the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement benefit
obligations by €10 miflion and the pre-tax expense by €1 million Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost evolution
rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €8 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million

2122  Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid

Pension benefits Post retrement benefits Total

{m millions of euras) 2013 m? 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current service cost 19 18 - - 19 18
Past service cost {a} 17 {20} - 117} {20}
{Gains) / losses on setttements {7 - - !

Other 1 1 - - 1 1
Impact on selling, admimistrative and general expenses (a) {1} - - [] (1)
Interast cost 27 29 [ 1 3 36
Expected retum on plan assets {13} {13) - {13) {13}
impact on other financial charges and income 14 16 6 i 20 Fx]
Net benefit cost recognized in profit and loss 10 15 6 1 16 22

a  The recorded past service cost mainly relates to the effect of decreases in relation to the restructunng at SFR (impact in 2013}, as well
as the change of part of the group’s management team since the end of June 2012

In 2013, benefits paid amounted to {1} €35 miliion {compared to €29 million 1in 2012) with respect to pensions, of which €3 milhon {compared
to €7 million 1n 2012) was paid by pension funds, and {11} €10 million |compared tw €12 million in 2012) was paid with respect to post-
retirement benefits
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2123  Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benefits

Chanpges in value of henefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

{in mulhons of euros)

Opening balance
Current service cost
Past service cost
(Gansl/losses on seitlements
Other
impact on seiling, admimstrative and general expenses
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Impact on other fimancial charges and income
Net benefit cost recognized «n profit and loss
Expenence gams/(losses) {a)
Actuanal gans/iosses} related to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuanal gains/{losses} related to changes in financial assumptions
Adjustment related to asset ceiling
Actuanal gans/{losses) recognized in other comprehsnsive income
Contributions by plan participants
Contrnbutions by employers
Benefits patd fram the fund
Benefits paid by the employer
Business combinations {b)
Divestitures of busmesses
Transfers
Other (of which foreign currency translation adjustments)
Reclassification to assets held for sale
Closing balance
of which whaolly or partly funded benefits
wholly unfunded benefits (c]
of which assets related to employee benefit plans
provisions for employee benefit plans (d}

Employee defined benefit plans

Year ended December 31 2013

Benefit obligation Fair value of plan Net
assets {provisions)/asseis
recorded in the
Statement of
Financial Positian
Note {A) {B} (BHA}

1,020 357 (653)
21 )
(18) 18
(29} (22) 7

1 {1)

3
30 (35)
13 13

22}
(19}

12 (1) (13)
2 (2}

5 (5)
{20)

1 1 -

46 46

{9) 1] -
{36} {36} -
12 9 (3}
{20 {12} 8
{31} k1!
966 35 {610)

487
479

9

20 {613}
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Employee defined benefit pfans
Year ended December 31 2012
Benefit obligation Fair value of plan Net
assets {provistons)/assets
recorded in the
Statement of
Financial Position

{in millions of euros) Note {A) (B) {BHA)
Balance as of December 31, 2011 - as published (428}
Unrecogmzed actuanal losses/igans) reported in consolidated retained eamings {126}
Balance as of January 1, 2012 826 mn (554)
Current service cost 19 19)
Past service cost {21) P
{Gainsl/losses on settlements -
Other 1 (1)
Impact on selling, admimstrative and general expenses H
Interest cost 38 {38}
Expected return on plan assets 13 13
Impact on other financial charges and income {25)
Net benefit cost recagnized in profit and loss (24}
Expenence gains/{losses) {a) {15) 13 28
Actuanial gains/(losses} related to changes in demographic assumptions {n 1
Actuanal gains/{losses} related to changes in financial assumptions (hk! (111)
Adjustment related to asset ceiling -
Actuanal gains/{losses} recogmzed in other comprehensive income {82)
Contnbutions by plan participants 1 1 -
Contnibutions by employers 12) 61 63
Benefits paid from the fund (7 7
Benefits paid by the employer (34) (34) -
Business combinations (b) 1 51 (60}
Divestitures of businesses -
Transfers -
Other {of which foreign currency translatron adjustments) {7} (3 4
Reciassification to assets held for sale -
Closing balance 1,020 367 (653)
of wiuch whally or partly funded benefits 533
wholly unfunded benefits {c) 487
of which assets related to employee benefit plans g
provisions for employee benefit plans (d) 20 (662)

a  includes the impact on the benefit obligatron resulting from the difference between benefits estmated at the previous year-end and
benefits paid during the year, and the difference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year end and the actual
return on plan assets during the year

b Relates to the impact of the acquisitton on September 28, 2012 of EMI Recorded Music on the value of the obligations, plan assets,
and underfunded obligation

c In accordance with local laws and practices, certain plans are not covered by pension funds As of December 31, 2013 and December
3, 2012, they principally comprise supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans in Germany and post-retirement
benefit plans in the United States

d  Includes a current hahility of €95 milhon as of December 31, 2013 (compared to €46 million as of December 31, 2012)
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Benefit ohligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

Penstan henefuts (a) Past-rewrement benefits (b Total
{in rullions of eures) December 31 December 31 December 31
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 012
Benafit obhigation
US companies 107 118 120 144 b4 262
UK companies 233 229 ] 23 225
German companies 190 183 190 183
French compames 233 216 233 216
Other 67 115 15 19 82 134
530 857 13% %6 1,020
Fair value of plan assets
US companies 43 53 - 48 53
UK companies 201 188 - - 201 188
German companies 3 3 - - 3 3
French companies 65 67 - 65 67
Other 39 56 - 39 58
356 i57 - - 356 367

Underfunded obligation
US companies {59} {65} 120 {144} {179 {209)
UK tompanigs {32) {37} {1} {33} {37)
German companies {187) {180} {187} {180}
French companies {168) {149) - - {168} {148)
Other {28) (58] 15) (19 43) [78)

{474) {a90) {136) {163} {61D) (653)

a  Noemployee defined benefit plan individually exceeded 10% of the total value of the ohligations and of the underfunded obligation of
these plans

b Manly relates to medical coverage (hospitalization, surgery, doctor wisits, drug prescrptions) post-retirement and life insurance
benefits for certain employees and retirees in the United States In accordance with the current regulation i relation to the funding
policy of this type of plan, the plan 15 not funded The main nsks for the group relate to changes in discount rates as well as the
ncrease in costs of benefits {please refer to the sensitvaty analysis described i Note 212 1)

21.24 Benefits esumation and future payments

For 2014, hedge fund contnbutions and benefit payments to retirees by Vivend are estimated at €44 million in respect of pensions, of which
€24 million to pension funds and €11 million to post-retirement benefits

Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivend: (in nominal value) are as follows

Post-
Pension benefits ost-retrement

{m mitlions of euros) benefits

204 51 "
2015 25 10
2016 33 i1
2007 33 10
2018 30 10
2019-2023 177 49
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Note 22 Share-based compensation plans

22.1 Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

{in millions of euros} Year ended December 31,
Charge/{Income} Note 2013 2012
Stock options, performance shares and bonus shares 29 29
Employee stock purchase plans 23 33
Stock Appreciation Rights {SAR) 1 -
Vivend: stock instruments 222 53 62
UMG equrty unit plan 223 5 9
Charge/(lncome) related to share-based compensation plans 3 58 n
Equity-settied mstruments 52 62
Cash-settled nstruments ) g

22.2 Plans granted by Vivendi
2221 Infermation on plans granted by Vivend:

Vivend: has granted several share-based compensation plans to employees of the group

Duning 2012, Vivend: granted stock option and perfarmance share plans, wherever the fiscal residence of the beneficianes and bonus share
plan for employees of all the group’s French subsidianes

In 2013, the Supervisory Board decided, upon the recommendation of the Management Board and General Management and the advice of
the Human Resources Committee, that all grants would be made in the form of performance shares, wherever the fiscal residence of the
beneficiaries

In addition, 1n 2013 and 2012, Vivendi granted stock purchase plans to its employees and retirees {employee stock purchase and leveraged
plans)

The accounting methods applied to value and recognize these granted plans are described in Note 1 310 More specifically, the risk-free
interest rate applied 1s the rate of French “Obligations Assimilables du Tresor” {0AT}with a matunity corresponding to the expected term of
the instrument at the valuation date, and the expected dividend yield at grant date 15 based on Vivendi's dividend distribution policy

As a reminder, the volatihty applied in valuing the stock option plans granted by Vivendi in 2012 was calculated as the weighted average of
{a) 79% of the histortcal volatility of Vivend shares computed on a 6 5-year period and {b} 25% of the implied volatility based on Vivend: put
and call options traded on a liquid market with a maturity of 6 months or more

Equity-settled instruments

The definitive grant of equity-settled instruments, excluding the 2012 bonus share plan, s subject to the satsfaction of performance
conditions Such performance conditions include an extermal indicator, thus following AFEP and MEDEF recommendations The objectives
underlying the performance conditions are determined by the Supervisory Board upon proposal by the Human Resources Committee

The value of the equity-settled instruments 1s estimated and set at grant date For the main 2013 and 2012 performance share, stock option
and bonus share plans, the applied assumptions were as follows

2013 2012
Grant date February 22, July 16, {a) Apnl 17
Data at grant date
Option strike price (in euros) (b} na na 1363
Share price (in euros} 149 15,75 12,53
Expected volatility na na 27%
Expected dividend yield 6.71% 6,35% 7.98%
Performance conditions achievement rate {c) 100% na 100%

na not applicable

a  Vivend granted 50 bonus shares to the employees of all the group’s French subsidiaries {see below)
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b In accordance with legal requirements, the number and strike price of stock options, as well as the number of performance shares in
connection with outstanding plans, were adjusted to take into account the impact, for the beneficiaries of the following distributions
iplease refer to Note 19) by 8 withdrawal from reserves

+ onMay9, 2012 grant to each shareowner of one bonus share per 30 shares held, and

* onMay 17,2013 dividend distnbution with respect to fiscal year 2012
These adjustments have no impact on share-based compensation expense related to the relevant stock option and performance share
plans

¢ The objectives underlying the performance conditions are assessed on a two-year period The definitive grant 1s effective upon the
satisfaction of the following performance conditions
« nternal indicators (70%) for corporate head office, group EBITA margin and for each subsidiary, its EBITA margin, as a function
of the cumulative income from fiscal years 2013 and 2014 (compared to the EBITA margin in 2012 and 2013 for the whale group,
including corporate head office and 1ts subsidianies related to plans granted in 2012), and
» external indicators (30%) performance of Vivendi's share price over two years, according to the Dow Jones Stoxx Telecom
index {70%) and according to the Media index comprised of a pre-established panel (30%)

The definitive grant of stock options and performance shares of April 17, 2012 became effective as of December 31, 2013 The
acquisition of these instruments 1s conditional upon active employment at the vesting date

Performance share plans

Performance shares granted 1n 2013 and 2012 will vest at the end of a two-year period The compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on a
straight-ine basis over the vesting penod Performance shares are available at the end of & four-year period from the date of grant
However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivends SA,
employee shareholders are entitled to the dividends and voting nights attached to these shares from the end of the two-year vesting period
The recognized compensation cost carresponds to the value of the equity instruments received by the benefrciary, and 1s equal to the
difference between the fair valug of the shares to be received and the discounted value of dividends that were not received over the vesting
penod

On February 22, 2013, 2,573 thousand performance shares were granted, compared to 1,818 thousand granted on April 17, 2012 After
taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 8 3% of the share price on February 22, 2013 {7 1% on Apnl 17, 2012}, the fair value
of each granted performance share was €11 79, compared to €9 80 per share on Apnl 17, 2012 corresponding to a global farr value of
€30 million {compared to €18 millian in 2012)

Stock option plans

Stock options granted in 2012 will vest at the end of a three-year period and expire at the end of a ten-year period {with a 6 5 year expected
term) and the compensation cost determined at grant date 1s recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period In 2013, Vivend: did
not grant any stock aptions On Apnl 17, 2012, 2,514 thousand stock options were granted After taking into account a 2 35% risk-free
interest rate, the fair value of each option granted was €0 96, corresponding to a global fair value of €2 million

50 honus share plan

On July 16, 2012, Vivend: granted a 50 bonus share plan per employee of all the group's French subsidianies These shares will be 1ssued at
the end of a two-year period, 1 &, July 17, 2014, subject to the employee being in active employment at this date and without any
performance conditions The compensation cost 1s therefore recogmized on a straight-line basis over this period The shares will only be
avalfable after another two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares making up
the share capital of Vivendi SA, employee shareholders will be entitied to the dividend and voting nights relating to these shares from the
end of the two year vesting period

On July 16, 2012, 729 thousand bonus shares were granted After taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 9 3% of the share
price on July 16, 2012, the fair value of each granted bonus share was £12 40, a total of €3 million

Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

Vvend also maintains share purchase plans istock purchase and leveraged plans) that allow substantially all of its employees and retirees
to purchase Vivendi shares through capval increases reserved to them These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer
restrictions, may be purchased by employees with 8 maximum discount of 20% on the average opening market price for Vivend shares
during the 20 trading days preceding the date of approval of the share capial increase by the Management Board (purchase date} The
difference between the subscription price of the shares and the share price on the date of grant [carrespanding te the subscription period
closing date) represents the benefit granted to the beneficianes Furthermore, Vivend: applies a discount for non-transferability in respect of
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the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the shares during a five-year period, which 1s deducted from the benefit granted to the employees
The value of the stock purchase plans granted 1s estmated and fixed at the grant date

For the employee stock purchase and leveraged plans subscribed in 2013 and 2012, the applied valuation assumptions were as follows

2013 2012
Grant date June 28 June 25
Subscription price (in euros) 1210 1031
Data at grant date
Share price {in euros} 1455 1357
Discount to face value 16 82% 2402%
Expected dividend yield 687% 7137%
Risk-free interest rate 119% 137%
5-year interest rate in fine 6 08% 651%
Repo rate 036% 0 36%

Under the employee stack purchase plans, 2,055 thousand shares were subscnbed 1n 2013 (2,108 thousand shares subscribed in 2012)
After taking Into account a 15 2% discount for non-transferability to the share price on the grant date {15 3% in 2012), the fair value per
subscribed share was €0 24 on June 28, 2013, compared to £1 18 per subscribed share on June 25, 2012

Under the leveraged plans, virtually all employees and retirees of Vivendi and its Freach and foreign subsidianes were entitled to
subscribe for Vivend: shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaining a discounted subscnption price, and to ultimately
recewve the capital gain (calculated pursuant to the terms and conditions of the plan) correspending to 10 shares for one subseribed share A
finangial institution mandated by Vivend: hedges this transaction

In 2013, 9,758 thousand shares were subscribed under the leveraged plan [compared to 9,845 subscnbed shares in 2012) After taking into
account a 15% discount for non-transferability measured after the leveraged impact {unchanged compared to 2012, the fair value per
subscribed share on June 28, 2013 was €2 23, compared to €3 09 per subscribed share on June 25, 2012

In 2013, the charge recognized with respect to employee stock purchase and leveraged plans amounted to €23 milon (compared to
€33 milion 1n 2012)

Stock purchase and leveraged plans resulted in a capital increase {including 1ssue premium) totaling €149 million on July 25, 2013, and
€127 mullhon on July 19, 2012

Cash-settled instruments

In 2006 and 2007, Vivend: granted specific Instruments to its US resident managers and employees, with economic features similar to those
granted ta non-US resident managers and employees, except that these equity instruments are settled n cash only The value of the cash-
settled instruments granted is initially estimated as of the grant date and 1s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment date
and the expense 1s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested nghts at each such reporting date All the nghts for these plans wers
definitively vested as of Apnl 2010

Stock appreciation right plans

When the instruments entitle the beneficiaries thereof to receive the appreciation in the value of the Vivend: share price, they are known as
"stock appreciation rnights” {SAR) which are the economic equivalent of stock options Under a SAR plan, the beneficiaries will receive a
cash payment upon exercise of their nghts based on the Vivend: share price equal to the difference between the Vivend: share price upon
exercise of the SAR and their strike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of a ten-year period The following table presents
the value of outstanding SAR plans measured as of December 31, 2013

2007 2006

Grant date April 23, Apnil 13,
Data at grant date

Strike price {in US dollars) 4134 3458

Number of instruments granted (in thousands) 1,281 1,250
Data at the valuation date ( December 31, 2013)

Expected term {in years) 16 1M

Share price (in US dollars) %29 2679

Expected volatility 29% 25%

Risk-free interest rate 0 26% 023%

Expected dwidend yield 575% 525%
Fair value of the granted option as of December 31, 2013 (in US dollars) 038 064
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2222 Information on outstanding Vivendi plans since January 1, 2012

Equity-settled instruments

Stack options Performance shares
Number of outstanding Weighted average strike Number of outstanding
price of outstanding stock
stock options perfoimance shares
opptions
{in thousands) {in euros} {in thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2011 49,907 215 2,961

Granted 2,650 137 1918

Exercised (479) 130 (981}

Cancelled (411) 184 1138}

Adjusted 1739 204 124
8alancae as of December 31, 2012 53.406 205 3,884

Granted - na 2782

Exercised (3,362} la) 133 (1409)

Farfeted {354) 129 -

Cancelled 194} 159 {199)

Adjusted 3,339 194 286
Balance as of December 3%, 2013 52,835 [h) 197 5344 (c
Exercisable as of December 31, 2013 47393 202 -
Acquired as of December 31, 2013 4741 202 518

na not applcable

a  The weighted average share price for Vivend shares at the dates of exercise for the options was €16 21 {compared to €16 70 far stock
options exercised in 2012)

b The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €64 million
¢t The weighted-average remaining period before 1ssuing shares was 1 2 years

Regarding the grant of 50 bonus shares in 2012, the remaining number of bonus shares was 663 thousand as of December 31, 2013
{697 thousand as of December 31, 2012} During 2013, 34 thousand shares were cancelled (32 thousand shares 1n 2012)

Please refer to Note 19 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivendi SA of the outstanding stock options, the performance shares
and bonus shares

Information on stock options as of December 31, 2013 15 as follows

Qutstanding stock options Vested stock options
Woeighted average
Range of strke prices Number Weighted average remaining Number Weighted average
strike price strike price
contractua! life
{in thousands} {in euros) {inyears) {in thousands) {in euros)

Under €15 2792 125 B3 8 124
£15-€17 12363 168 57 12,363 168
g17-€19 10,787 176 21 8147 175
€19-€21 7.868 00 13 7 868 200
€21-€23 6699 213 43 6699 213
€23-€25 6099 1 23 6099 241
€25-€27 6227 &1 33 6227 261
€27 and more - - - -
52,835 197 36 47,411 202

Cash-settled instruments

As of December 31, 2013, the remaining outstanding SAR amounted to 2,980 thousand {compared to 5064 thousand as of
December 31, 2012} Foltowing the sale of Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013, the payment obligations, incurred by Vivendi, with
respect to the 1,925 thousand SAR have been transferred to Activision Blizzard AN nghts related to SAR were vested and their total intrinsic
value amounted to $2 million As of December 31, 2013, the amount accrued for these instruments was €1 million {compared to €2 million as
of December 31, 2012}
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22.3 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG are awarded
phantom equity urts and phantom stock appreciation rights whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of UMG These units are simply
units of account and do not represent an actual ownership interest in erther UMG or Vivend! The equity units are notional grants of equity
that will be payable in cash upon settlement no later than 2015 or earlier under certain circumstances The stock appreciation nights are
essentially options on those notional shares that provide additional compensation tied to any increase in value of UMG over the term The
SAR's are also settled in cash only no later than 2014 or earlier under certain circumstances There 1s a guaranteed minimum payout of
$25 million

Payouts under the plan generally coincide with terms of employment, but can be accelerated or reduced under certain circumstances The
values for both payouts are based upon third party valuations While the participants’ nights vest at the end of a fixed vesting period,
compensation expense Is recognized aver the vesting period as services are rendered At each closing date, the expense 1s recognized hased
on the portion of the vesting period that has elapsed and the fair value of the units calculated using an appropnate grant date model 1n
accardance with IFRS 2

As of December 31 2013, the amount accrued under these arrangements was €26 millon (€22 million as of December 31, 2012) There have
been no payments made to date

Note 23 Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Note December 31, 2013 December 31 2012
{in millions of euros) Total Long-term Short-term Total Long-term Short-term
Bonds 231 1827 6,633 1,194 10,888 10183 700
Bank credit facilities [drawn confirmed) 232 2,075 2014 61 2423 2326 97
Commercial pager 1ssued 232 1906 - 1,908 3755 - 3255
Bank overdrafts 143 - 143 192 - 192
Other bank borrowings - . 625 34 591
Accrued interest to be paid 186 186 205 - 205
Other 73 53 20 126 BB 40
Nominal value of horrowings 12,210 8,700 3510 17,714 12634 5080
Cumulatrve effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due to
hedge accounting 8 8 . m 4 i)
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 22 22 - 8 8 -
Dervauve financial instruments 24 26 7 19 36 21 15
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 12,266 8,737 3.529 12,757 12,657 5090
231 Bonds
Interest rate (%) December Matuning during the following periods Oecember
Matun 31 After 3
fin milligns of euros) nominal  effective " 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2012
€750 milhon {July 2013) 2375% 251% Jan-19 750 {al - - - - 750 -
€700 millon {December 2012} 2 500% 7 65% Jan-20 700 - - - - - 00 700
$550 million {April 2012) 2 400% 250% Apr-15 - {h) - - - - - - 420
$650 mullion {Aprd 2012) 3 450% 356% Jan-18 69 (c) - - - - 69 - 491
$800 milhon {Apnl 2012) 4750% 4 31% Apr-27 189 (c - - - - - 189 604
£1,250 million [January 2012) 4125% 4 31% Jul-17 1,250 - - - 1,250 - - 1,250
€500 million {November 2011} 3875% 4 04% Nav-15 - (d - - - - - - 500
€500 miltion (November 2011) 4875% 500% Nov-18 500 - - - - 500 - 500
€1,000 million {July 2011) 3500% 368% Jul-15 (d} - - - - - - 1060
€1 050 million {July 2011} 4750% 467% Jul-21 1050 - - - - - 1050 1050
€750 mitlion (March 2010) 4000% 415% Mar-17 750 - - - 750 - - 750
£700 milhon (December 2008} 4 875% 4.95% Dec-19 700 - - - - - 700 700
£500 milhon {December 2009} 4 250% 4139% Dec-16 500 - - 500 - - - 500
€300 million - SFR {July 2009) 5 000% 505% Jul-14 300 30G - - - - - 300
£1 120 millian {January 2009} 7750% 769% Jan-14 894 (a) 894 - - - - - 894
$700 rrullion {Apnl 2008) 6625% 685% Apr-18 175 {c) - - - - 175 - 579
€700 milhon {October 2006} 4500% 547% 0ct-13 - (el - - - - - - 700
Nominal value of bonds 7827 1194 - 500 2000 744 3389 10,888

Financtal Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended Dacember 31 2013 Vivendr /106




Tuesday, February 29, 2014
a  OnJuly 9, 2013, Vivend: 1ssued a €750 milhon bond, maturing in January 2019 This transaction enabled the refinancing of the bond
issued in January 2009, maturing in January 2014

b A USD/EUR foreign currency hedge (cross-currency swap) was set up to hedge this tranche denommated 1n US dollar with a 1 3082
EUR/USD rate, or a €420 million counter value at matunty On November 15, 2013, Vivend: exercised the full make-whale call and early
redeemed this bond

¢ OnOctober 25, 2013, Vivend: early redeemed $1,555 million (€1,150 million} in bonds, through tender offers
- $555 million (€411 mullion) on the $650 milhion band 1ssued in April 2012, imitially maturing in January 2018,
- $541 million (€400 mulhon) on the $800 million bond 1ssued in April 2012, imtially maturing in April 2022, and
- $459 milion (€339 million) on the $700 million bond 1ssued in Apnil 2008, initially maturing in Aprl 2018

d OnNovember 11, 2013, Vivend: early redeemed {make-whole) the full amount of these twa bonds
e  This bond was redeemed in October 2013 upon 1ts contractual maturity date
The bends denominated in euro are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The bonds denominated in US dollar were converted into euro based on the closing rate, 1 e, 1 3730 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2013 (compared
to 1 3244 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2012)

Bonds 1ssued by the group contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and nghts of payment {pan-passu ranking) In
addition, bonds 1ssued by Vivend) SA contain an earty redemption clause  case of a change m control tngger if, as a result of any such event, the
long-term rating of Vivendi SA 1s downgraded below investment grade status {Baa3/BBB-)

23.2 Bank credit facilities

December Matuning during the following penods December
Maximum n Aftar 3

{in malhon of euros) Matunty amount 2013 2014 2015 2016 207 2018 2018 2012
€1 5 odlion revohang facility (March 204 3) Mar-138 1500 (a} 05 - - - 205
£1 5 bidlipn revglvmg facility {May 2012} May-17 1500 - - - -
€1 1 bdlion revohving facility {fanuary 2012) Jan-17 1100 . - -
€40 million revelving facility {January 2012) Jan-15 40 -
£€5 0 brllion revehang facility {May 2013}

tranche B €15 billion lal - - 725

tranche C €2 0 billron May-16 2000 979 - - a75 - - 419
€10 billion revebving facility {September 2010) Sep-15 1000 475 - 475 B 350
€1 2 million revolving facility - SFR {June 2010} - {b) - -
GVT BNDES 152 ki) 43 7 7 B0 51 B3 406
Marce Telecom  MAD 3 bilhon loan Juk14 - - . 94
Canakt Group VSTV 37 2 18 A - 29
Drawn confirmed bank credit facilities 2,075 61 563 1,052 60 56 a3 2423
Undrawn confirmed bank credit facilitias 6554 n 575 103% 2617 1306 16 6616
Taotal of group’s bank credi facilnies T 168 72 1.3 Z0W AN 162 95 5439
Commercial paper 1ssued ic} 1908 1906 3255

a  OnMarch 28, 2013, Vivend: completed the early refinancing of a €1 5 billion bank credit facility matuning in May 2014 by entering into a new
bank credit facility for the same amount with a five-year matunty

b The €1 2 bilhon revaiving facility of SFR was cancelled in October 2013

¢ The commercial paper is backed to confirned bank credit facilities It 1s recorded as short-term borrowing on the Consolidated Statement of
financial Position On February 20, 2013, Vivend) increased the maximumn amount authorized by the Bangue de France regarding Vivend SA's
commercial paper program from €4 to €5 billion

Vivend) SA bank credit facilities, when drawn, bear interest at floating rates

Vivend SA’s syndicated bank credit facilities (€7 1 bilhon as of December 31, 2013} contain customary provisions related to events of default
and covenants relating to negative pledge, divestiture and merger transactions In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivend: SA 15
required to comply with a financial covenant of Proportionate Financial Net Debt' to Proportionate EBITDA? over a twelve-menth rolling
peried not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loans Non-compliance with this covenant could result in the early redemption of the facilities
f they were drawn, or their canceliation As of December 31, 2013, Vivendi SA was in compliance with these financial covenants

! As of December 31, 2013 defined as Vivendi's Financial Net Debt adjusted for expected procesds {according to tha financial terms known to date) from the sale of Maroc
Telecom group

2 As of December 31 2013 defined as Vivend:'s modified EBITDA as pubhshed at that date (please refer to Note 3/ plus dividends recenved from unconsolidated compames
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The renewal of Vivendi SA’s confirmed bank credit facilities when they are drawn 1s contingent upon the 1ssuer reiterating certam
representations regarding its ability to comply with its financial obligations with respect to loan contracts

The credit facilities granted to GVT by the BNDES (€452 millian as of December 31, 2013) contatn a change in cantrol trigger and are subject
to certain financial covenants pursuant to which GVT s required to comply at the end of each half year wath at least three of the following
financial covenants {1} a ratio of equity to total assets equal to or higher than 0 40 {0 35 for the credit facilities granted s November 2011},
(1} a ratio of Financial Net Debt to EBITDA not exceeding 2 50, {11} a ratio of current financial habilities to EBITDA not exceeding 0 45, and
(v} a ratio of EBITDA to net financial expenses of at least 4 00 {3 50 for the credit facilities granted in November 2011} As of December 31,
2013, GVT was in compliance with its covenants

Moreover, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €375 milhion, maturing i March 2016, was 1ssued 1n connection with Vivend:'s appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment (please refer to Note 28) This off-balance sheet financial commitment has no impact on Vivendi's net
debt This letter of credit is guaranteed by a syndicate of fifteen international banks with which Vivendi has signed a Reimbursement Agreemant
which includes an undertaking by Vivendi to reimburse the banks for any amounis paid out under the letter of credit The Reimbursement
Agreement notably contains events of default and acceleration clauses similar to those contained in Vivend's credit facilites In certain
circumstances, these provisions could cause Vivendi to have to post cash collateral for the benefit of the banks In the same way, if one of the
fifteen banks defaults in respect of its ohligations and 1s not able to 1ssue a guarantee sufficient enough to provide comfort to Bank of Amerca,
Vivend: could be caused to substitute such bank with another bank or, as a last resort, be obligated to post cash collateral in the amount of such
bank's participation 1n the letter of credit As of December 31, 2013, Vivend! SA was incompliance with the terms of the letter of credit

23.3 Breakdown of the nominal value of borrowings by maturity, nature of the interest rate, and

currency
Breakdown by maturity
(in milhons of euros) December 31, 2013 December 31 2012
Maturity
< 1year{a) 3510 29% 5.080 28%
Between 1 and 2 years 588 5% 2057 2%
Between 2 and 3 years 1,562 13% 2 380 13%
Between 3 and 4 years 2,065 17% 1406 8%
Between 4 and 5 years 1005 8% 2073 12%
>Syears 3480 28% 4,718 26%
Nominal value of horrowings 12,210 100% 17,714 100%

a  As of December 31, 2013, short-term bomowings (with @ matuniy of less than one vear) notably included commercial paper for €1,906 million
{compared to £3,255 million as of December 31, 2012}, with a 17-day weighted-average remaining period as of December 31, 2013 as well as
Vivendi SA’s €894 million bond, matunng 'n January 2014, and SFR's €300 rullion bond, maturing in July 2014

As of December 31, 2013, the average “economic™ term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which all undrawn amounts on available medium-
term credit ines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest term was of 4 2 years {compared to 4 4 years at year-end 2012)

Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{in milhons of euros) Note December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Fixed interest rate 7830 64% 11 666 66%
Floating interest rate 4,380 6% 6 048 34%

Nomunal value of borrowings hefore hedging 12,210 100% 17,114 100%

Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450

Pay-floating interest rate swaps {2 600} {1,450

Net position at fixed interest rate 242 {2,150} {1,000
Fixed interest rate 5 680 7% 10 666 60%
Floating interest rate 6 530 53% 7,048 40%

Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 12,210 100% 17,114 100%

Please refer to Note 24 2 1 for a description of the group’s interest rate nsk management instruments
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Breakdown by currency

{in millions of euros) Note December 31 213 December 31 2012
Euro- EUR 11396 93% 14420 81%
US dollar - USD 433 4% 2,046 12%
Other (of which BRL and PLN} 381 3% 1,243 7%

Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 12210 100% 17,14 100%

f———— — ————————

Currency swaps USD 1468 1,303

Other currency swaps {199) {813) {a)

Net total of hedging mstruments 242 1.263 490
Euro - EUR 12665 104% 14,310 84%
US dollar - USD {1035} 9% 743 4%
Other {of whuch BRL and PLN} 580 5% 2 061 12%

Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 12,290 100% 17,114 100%

a  Notably ncluded a forward GBP/EUR contract for a nominal amount of £430 million, put into place 1n order to cover the proceeds from the
sale of certain assets of EMI Recorded Music Please refer to Nate 24 2 2 for a descniption of the group’s fereign currency nisk management

234 Credit ratings

As of February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2013, the credit ratings of Vivend were as follows

Rating agency Rating date Type of debt Ratings Outlock
Standard & Poor's July 27, 2005 (a) Long-term corporate debt BBB
Short-term corporate debt A-2 Negative {a)
Senior unsecured debt BBB
Moody's September 13, 2005 (b} Long-term senior unsecured debt Baa?2 Negative {b)
Fitch Ratings December 10, 2004 Long-term senior unsecured debt BEB Stable

a  OnAugustb, 2013, Standard & Poor's rating agency maintained Vivend:’'s rating and negative long-term corporate debt outlook

b On March 4, 2013, Moody's rating agency confirmed Vivendr's long-term senier unsecured debt at BaaZ and rewised its outlook to
negative
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Note 24  Financial instruments and management of financial risks
24.1 Fair value of financial instruments
Financial mstruments classified as habiliies under Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position inctude bonds and bank credit facilities, other
financial habihities (including commitments to purchase non-controlling interests), as well as trade accounts payable and other non-current
habilities As assets under Vivend!'s Statement of financial Positian, they include financial assets measured at fair value and at hustoncal
cost, trade accounts receivable and other, as well as cash and cash equivalents In addition, financial instruments include dervative

instruments (assets or liabilities) and assets available for sale

Accounting category and fair value of fimancial instruments

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 (a)
Carrying Fair value Carrying Far value

{in milfions of euros) Note valug value
Assets

Cash management financial assets - a1 301

Available-for-sale securities 360 J60 187 157

Dervative financral instruments 126 126 137 137

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ) 5 15 15

Financral assats at amortized cost 208 208 202 202
Financial assets 16 693 699 852 852
Trade accounts recewvable and other, at amortized cost 17 4898 4,898 6,587 6,587
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,041 1,041 3894 3894
Liabilities

Borrowings, at amortized cost 12218 12,721 17,713 18,637

Dervative financial instruments 26 26 36 35

Commitments to purchase non-controlfing mterests 22 22 8 8
Borrowings and other financial labihties 23 12,266 12,769 17,757 18 681
Other non-current lrabilities, at amortized cost 17 157 757 1,002 1,002
Trade accounts payable and other, at amortized cost 17 10416 10,416 14,196 14,196

a  Vivend applied from January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended 1AS 19 (Employee Benefits), whose
apphcation 1s mandatery in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012
Financial Statements were adjusted in accordance with the new standard {please refer to Note 33)

The carrying value of trade accounts recewvable and other, cash and cash equwalents, and trade accounts payable 15 a reasonable
approximation of fair value, due to the short maturity of these instruments

Valuation method for financial instruments at fair value

The following tables show the fair value method of financial instruments according to the three following levels
- Level 1 fair value measurement based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
- Level 2 fair value measurement based on ehservable market data (other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1}, and

- Level 3 fair value measurement based on valuation techniques that use inputs for the asset or hiability that are not based on
observable market data

As a reminder, the other financial instruments at amortized cost are not included n the following tables
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December 31 2013

O milhons of euros) Note Total Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Avarlable-for-sale secunties 16 360 - 304 56
Denvative financial instruments 242 126 - 126

Other financial assets at fair value through prafit or loss 5 5 - -
Cash and cash equwalents 18 1,041 108 - -
Liabilthes

Commitments to purchase non-controlling nterests 22 - - 22
Dervative financial instruments 242 26 - 6

December 31, 2012

{in millions of euros) Naote Total Level 1 Leval 2 Level 3
Assets

Cash management financial assets 16 i it} - -
Available-for-sale secunties 16 197 - 154 43
Denvative financial instruments 242 137 - 137

Other financial assets at farr value through profit or loss 15 9 - 6
Cash and cash equivalents 18 3894 389 - -
Liabilitres

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 8 - - B8
Denvative financial instruments 242 36 - 36 -

Available-for-sale securities valued at their level 2 far valee included securities held by UMG in Beats and Spotify for €161 million and
€143 million, respectively (E70 million and €84 milhion as of December 31, 2012) In 2013, the far value of these secunties was reassessed
following the entry of new investors to their capital

In 2013 and 2012, there was no transfer of financial instruments measured at fair value between level 1 and level 2 In addition, as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, financ:al instruments measured at level 3 fair value did not include any significant amount

24,2 Management of financial risks and derivative financial instruments

As part of its business, Vivendt 1s exposed to several types of financial nsks market risk, credit (or counterparty) risk, as well as liquicity nisk
Market nsks are defined as the nsks of fluctuation in future cash flows of financial instruments {receivables and pavables, as described in
Note 24 1 above} that depend on the changes (n financial markets For Vivend, market risks may therefore primanty impact (nterest rates
and foreign currency exchange positions, in the absence of significant mvestments in the markets for stocks and bonds Vivend:'s Financing
and Treasury Department centrally manages significant market risks, as well as its liquidity nisk within the group, reporting directly to
Vivendi's Chief Financial Officer The Department has the necessary expertise, resources {notably technical resources), and information
systems for this purpose However, the Maroc Telecom group’s cash and exposure to financial nisks was managed independently The
Treasury Committee momitors the hquidity positions in all business umits and the exposure to interest rate nsk and foreign currency exchange
rate nisk on a bi-monthly basis Short- and long-term financing activities are mainly performed at the group’s headquarters and are subject to
the prior approval of the Management Board and Supervisory Board, in accordance with the Vivend Internal Regufations However, m terms
of optimizing financing operations within the group's debt management framework within the |imits already approved by the Supervisary
Board, a simple natification 1s required

Vivends uses vanous denvatwe financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties All
derivative financial instruments are used for hedging purposes and speculative hedging 1s forbidden
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Denvative financial instrument values on the Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2013 December 31 2012

{in nullions of euros) Note  Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilitres
Interest rate risk management 2421 88 (7] 104 (104

Pay-fixed interest rate swaps - 7 {10}

Pay-floating interest rate swaps 88 - 104 -
Foreign currency nsk management 24212 17 119 13 (26)
QOther 244 21 - 20 -
Bernivative financial instruments 126 (26) 137 (36)
Deduction of current derivative financiak instruments {17) 19 {12} 15
Non-current denvatve financial instruments 109 7 125 (21

2421  Interestrate nsk management

Note As from the second quarter of 2013, in comphance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in
Vivendr's Consolidated Statements as discontinued operations Their financial Net Debt or net cash have been excluded form Vivendr's
Financial Net Debt This adjustment has been apphed (1) to all periods (2013 and 2012) and (i) to all data presented in this section to ensure
consistency of information

Interest rate risk management instruments are used by Vivendi to reduce net exposure to interest rate fluctuations, to adust the respective
praportion of fixed or floating interest rates in the total debt and to optimuze average net financing costs In addition, Vivendr's internal
procedures prohibit all speculative transactions

Average gross borrowings and average cost of borrowings

In 2013, average gross borrowings amounted to €16 3 billion {compared to €16 5 billion 1n 2012}, of which €9 2 billion was at fixed-rates and
€7 1 billhon at floating rates (compared to €3 7 and €6 8 lhon respectively, in 2012) After management, the average cost of barrowings
was 3 38%, with a fixed rate ratio of 57% {compared to 3 46%, with a fixed-rate ratio of 59% in 2012)

Interest rate hedges

Interest rate nisk management instruments used by Vivend include pay-floating and pay-fixed interest rate swaps Pay-floating swaps
effectively convert fixed rate borrowings to LIBOR and EURIBOR indexed ones Pay-fixed interest rate swaps convert floating rate barrowings
into fixed rate borrowings These instruments enable the group to manage and reduce vaolatihty in future cash flows required for interest
payments on borrowings

As of December 31, 2013, the portfolio of Vivendi's interest rate hedging instruments included the following swaps

* 3 pay-floating interest rate swap with a notional amount of €450 million, maturing 1n 2017, set up in 2012,
a pay-fixed interest rate swap with a notional amount of €450 million, maturing m 2017, set up in 2010 for €750 million
(€300 million was terminated early (n 2012),
a pay-fixed interest rate swap with a notional amount of £1,000 million, maturing 1n 2016, set up in 2011,
a pay-fixed interest rate swap with a notional amount of €750 million, maturing n 2019, set up in 2013 and backed by the bond
with the same notional amount and matunty, 1ssued in July 2013, and

+  apay-fixed interest rate swap with a notional amount of €400 millien, maturing in 2016, set up in 2013
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The tables below show the notional amounts of interest rate risk management instruments used by Vivend

December 31 2013

Notional amounts Fair value
ol 28 0% W6 2017 2018 After Assets  Liabiliies

{in millions of euros) 2018
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450 - 7
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {2 600) {1 400} (450} {750} 88 -
Net position at fixed interest rate 52,15(1! {1,400) - {a} {750} 88 {7)
Breakdown by accounting category of rate hedging instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - .

Fair Value Hedge (2150) {1 400} {750) 46 -

Economic Hadging (b} - - (a) 42 {7

December 31 2012
Notional amounts Fair value
After

{in millions of euros) Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 07 017 Assets Liatilitigs
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450 - (10}
Pay-floating enterest rate swaps {1,450} {1 000} (450) 104 -
Not position at fixed 1aterest rate (1,mo£ 1,000 - {a} 104 {10}
Bregkdown b ounting cateqory of rate hedging instrument:

Cash Flow Hedge - . -

Farr Value Hedge {1 000) {1 0o0) a9 -

Economic Hedging (b} - - {a} 55 {10)

a Includes pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 mill:on as well as pay-fixed swaps for a notional amount of
€450 rmillion, matuning in 2017, both of which qualified as economic hedges

b The economic hedging mstruments relate to derivative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39

Outstanding and average income from investments

In 2013, average cash and cash equivalents amounted to £0 9 billion {compared to €0 6 billion in 2012}, beanng interest at floating rates The
average Interest income rate amounted to 2 69% in 2013 (compared to 4 62 % in 2012}

Sensitivity to changes 1n interest rates

As of December 31, 2013, gven the relative weighting of the group’s fixed-rate and floating-rate positions, an increase of 100 basis points
in short-term nterest rates {or a 100 basis ponts decrease) would have resulted 1in a €56 million increase in interest expense {or a
£56 million decrease), compared to a €63 million increase/{decrease) as of December 31, 2012

2422 Foreign currency sk management

Exctuding Maroc Telecom group and GVT, the group’s foreign currency nsk management 1s centralized by Vivendr SA's Financing and
Treasury Departments and primarly seeks to hedge budget exposures (80%) resulting from monetary flows generated by activities
performed In currencies other than the suro as well as from external firm commitments (100%), primanly relating to the acquisiion of
editorial content {including sports, audiovisual and film nights) and certain capital expenditures {e g, set-top boxes), realized in currencies
other than the euro Most of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a matunity of less than one
year Considering the foreign currency hedge put into place, an unfavorable and unifarm euro change of 1% against all foreign currencies in
position as of December 31, 2013, would have a non-sigmificant cumulative impact on net eamings {below €1 million as of December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012} In addition, the group may hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-cerrency denominated
financial assets and liabilities Nevertheless, due to their non-significant nature, net exposures to subsidianes’ net warking capital {intesnal
flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are generally not hedged The relevant nisks are realized at the end of each month by
translating the sum into the functional currency of the relevant operating entities
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The principal currencies hedged by the group are the US dollar (USD) and the British pound {GBP)

o Inparticular, in 2012 and 2013, Vivendi converted tnto euros following US dollar transactions

- the 3550 million bond issued in April 2012, by setting up a USD-EUR foreign currency hedge (cross-currency swap) with a
13082 EUR/USD rate, or a €420 million counter value From an accounting perspective, these USD purchases were
considered as cash flow hedges This hedge was unwound on November 15, 2013 with the early redemption of this bond,

- partial hedge of the income from the sale of 88% of Vivend's interest in Activision Blizzard through the purchase of &
contingent forward contract, conditional on the effective sale for a notional amount of $2 billion, with a 1 3368 EUR/USD
rate, or a counter value of €1,436 million This hedge, considered as a cash flow hedge from an accounting perspective, was
urwound on October 11, 2013 at the finalization of the sale, generating a realized foreign exchange gain of €23 million

e In 2012 and 2013 as part of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music {please refer to Note 2 3), Vivendi hedged the GBP foreign
exchange risk as follows

- partial hedge of the acquisition prce through forward purchase contracts denominated in GBP for a notional amount of
£600 million, with a 0 8144 EUR/GBP rate From an accounting perspective, these GBP purchases were considered as cash
flow hedges On October 1. 2012, this hedge was unwound for €737 million at the complet:on of the acquisition, generating a
realized foreign exchange gawn of €19 million,

- partial hedge of the income from the sale of certain EMI Recorded Music assets, in accordance with commitments made by
Vivendi to the European Commussicn, through forward sale contracts denorminated in GBP for a notional amount of
£530 mullion, with an average rate of 0 8060 EUR/GBP From an accounting perspective, these GBP sales were considered as
net investment hedges This hedge was unwound for a counter value of €658 million, at the completion of the sale of
Parlophone Label Group and other labels, generating a realized foreign exchange gain of €39 million

»  Moreover, in 2013, to hedge against a possible depreciation of its net investment in certain subsidianes in the United Kingdom
due to an unfavorable change in GBP, Vivend: set up a hedge using put option instruments for a notional amount £692 million, or
€823 millon From an accounting perspective, these hedge instruments were considered as net investment hedges

Finally, the intercompany loan granted by Vivendi to GVT under market terms for a total ameunt of £1,000 milion as of December 31, 2013
{fully drawn as of that date} was not subject to any foreign currency hedging i GVT's Statement of Financial Position foreign exchange
losses incurred amounted to €186 millien 1n 2013 and to €76 medlion in 2012 n January 2014, the amount of this loan was ncreased to
€1.126 million This intercompany loan 1s mainly amed at financing the increase in GVT's capital expenditures program related to the
geographic expansion of 1ts telecommunication network
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The following tables present the notional amount of foreign currency nsk management instruments used by the graup, the positive amounts
relate to currencies to be received, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered

December 31 2013

Notional amounts Fairvalue
{in mihons of euros) Total usD PLN GBP QOther Assets Liabilities
Sales against the eure {1060) {49) {105) 1834} (72} 2 {10}
Purchases against the euro 2329 1330 21 888 90 1 {7}
Other - 187 181) 4 (102} 4 i2)
1,269 1,468 {165} 50 {84) 17 (19}

Breakdown by accounting category of foreign currency hedqing instruments
Cash How Hedpe

Sales against the euro {73) {11} (42 7 [13) - -
Purchases against the euro 85 85 - - - 1 {1)
QOther - 168 |75} - (93} 4 {2)
12 202 nz [F] {106) § 3
Faiwr Value Hedge

Sales against the euro {93) {38) (51} IEH - 1 {2)
Purchases against the euro 450 432 - 18 - - {6)
Other - g {6) {4} 2 - -
357 402 (57 10 2 1 (8)

Net Investment Hedge
Sales against the euro (823} - - (823} {a) - ]
Purchases against the euro - - - - - - -
(ther - - - - - -
{823} - - {823} - - 8

Economic Hedging (b}
Sales against the euro 71} - 12} - 59) 1 -
Purchases against the eurc 1,794 813 21 870 a0 10 -
Dther - 1 . - {11) - -
1,123 824 9 870 20 n -

December 31 2012

Notional amounts Fair value
{in milhons of euros) Total Usn PLN (GBP Qther Assets Liahtlities
Sales against the eurg {931) (59) (162 {586) (124) 12 {3
Purchases agamst the euro 1421 1257 37 15 112 1 {20)
Other - 105 {97) (8) - - {3)
490 1,303 (222) {579) (12 13 {26)
Breakdown by accounting categery of foreign currency hedging instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro a7 (6} {58} {8} {15 1 i
Purchases against the euro 448 446 {c} - - - 1 m)
Other - 92 {92} - - - (3)
59 532 {150} (8) {15) 2 {15)
Fair Value Hedge
Sales aganst the ewro {154) {33} {98) (3) - 1 {2)
Purchases against the euro 456 M - 15 - - (6)
Other - 20 {12} {8) - - -
302 408 {110} ) - 1 (8
Net Investmant Hadge
Sales against the euro {579} - - [575}) (d} - 10 -
Purchases against the euro - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - -
{575) . - {575} - 10 -
Economic Hedging {b)
Sales against the euro {115} - {6} - {108} - -
Purchases against the euro 519 3 37 . 12 - (3]
Other - {7} 7 - - -
[T ) 363 ] - 3 - (3}

a  Relates to the hedge of the net investment in certain subsidianes in the United Kingdom for a notional amount of GBP 692 mullian

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the Year Ended Oecember 31, 2013 Vivendi /115




Tuesday, February 25, 2014

b The economic hedging nstruments relate to derivative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to

IAS 39

C Notably includes the hedge associated with the $550 mullion bond issued n Apnil 2012, with a 1 3082 EUR/USD rate, unwound on
November 15, 2013 for a counter-value of €420 million

d Mainly includes the hedge associated with the sale of EMI Recorded Music

24.23 Liquidity risk management

Contractual matunity of the group’s Financial Net Debt future cash fiows

The table below shows the carrying value and the future undiscounted cash flows, as defined in the contractual matunity schedules, of

assets and liabilities that constitute Vivendt's Financiat Net Debt

{in millions of euros)

Nomunal value of borrowings (a)
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due to
hedge accounting
Interest to be pard (b)
Borrowings
Comrmiiments to purchase nan-controlting mierests
Berivative financial nstruments
Borrowings and other financial habilines

Denvative financial instruments
Cash depasits backing borrowings
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial Net Debt

{in millions of euros)

Nomunal value of borrowings faf
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due to
hedge accounting
Interest to be paid (b}
Borrowings
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests
Denvative financial instruments
Borrowings and ather financial iabilities

(Cash management financial assets
Dervative financial nstruments
Cash deposits backing borrowings
Cash and tash equivalents
financial Net Debt

Decernber 31, 2013

Carrying Contractual matunity of cash outflows / [inflows)
value Total 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 After 2018
12210 12210 3510 568 1562 2065 1,005 3480
g -
- 1,703 394 307 294 264 169 275
12,218 13913 3904 895 1856 239 1,174 3,755
2 2 4 6 12
26 32 21 4 3 4
12,266 13,967 3,925 899 1,863 2339 1174 3,767
(126) {178} (42) (34 {38) (22) {B) (36}
{2) ] 2
{1 041) (1,041) {1.041) _
11,087 12,746 2,840 #65 1,825 2317 1,168 3.7
Decermber 31 2012
Carrying Contractual matunity of cash cutflows / {inflows)
valug Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 After 2017
17714 17714 5080 2,057 2380 1406 2,073 4718
()
- 2588 534 502 402 331 302 515
17,7113 20 300 5,614 2559 2782 1,137 2375 5233
8 8 4 4
36 30 18 3 3 3 3
11,757 20,338 5,632 2562 2,785 1,730 2382 5237
{301) {301 {301
(137) (156} th] (29) {28) {28} {11) {20)
{6} {6} (B}
{3 894} {3 894} {3,854)
13,419 15,981 139 2,533 2,757 1,12 23N 5217

a  Future contractual undiscaunted cash flows related to the nominal value of currency borrowings are estimated based on the applicable
exchange rates as of Oecember 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively

b Interest to be paid on floating rate borrowings 1s estimated based on floating rates as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,

respectively

Moreover, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €975 mlion, maturing in March 2016, was 1ssued in connection with Vivend!’s appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment {please refer to Note 28) This off-balance sheet financial commitment has no impact on Vivend!'s net

debt
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Group financing policy

As part of the strategic review undertaken by the Supervisory Board and Management Board, Vivendr announced in July 2013 1ts plans to
sell 1ts interests in Actvision Bhizzard and Maroc Telecom, and in November 2013, the group’s planned demerger to form two separate
compantes (i} a meda group and {u} SFR, subject to information and consultation procedures wath the relevant French employee
representative bodies and approval by the relevant regulatory authonties, as well as, If appropnate, its approval by the General
Shareholders' Meeting In the meantime, Vivend: has pursued 1ts financing policy (n relation to expinng bank credit faclities or honds Thus,
Vivend early refinanced a €1 5 billion bank credit faciity, maturing in May 2014 with a new bank credit facility for the same amount,
maturing in March 2018, and 1ssued a new €750 million bond, with a coupon of 2 375%, which early refinances the £894 million residual
amount bond 1ssued 1n January 2009 with a coupon of 7 75%, maturing in January 2014

On October 11, 2013, Vivend! completed the sale of 88% of its mterest in Activision Blizzard for $8 2 billion {€6 billien) 1n cash Vivend: used cash
on hand to early redeem most of its US dollar-denominated bonds, as well as a portion of its eure-denominated bonds, having the shortest
maturity, for an aggregate amount of €3 bilfion {including $2 1 bullion and €1 5 bilhon), erther through a tender affer in October 2013 and a
make-whole redemption in November 2013 In addition, Vivend) used the available balance to redeem drawn bank credit facilities These
transactions were as follows
e 72% redemption of three US dollar-denominated bonds, following a tender offer
- $459 nuliion redeemed on the $700 million bond, maturing in April 2018,
- $541 milhon redeemed on the $800 million bond, maturng in Apnl 2022, and
- $555 million redeemed on the $650 million bond, maturing 1n January 2018,
» early full redemption of cne US dollar-denominated bond and two euro-denominated bonds
- $550 milhon, maturing 1 Apnil 2015,
- €500 midlion, maturing in November 2015, and
- £1,000 milhion, maturing in July 2015

In October 2013, Vivend: also redeemad. upon 1ts contractual maturity date, a €700 milien bond, refinanced in December 2012, by a bond for
the same amount, maturing in January 2020, and cancelled SFR’s €1 2 billion bank credit facility

Moreover, on Noverber 5, 2013, Vivend acquired the 20% non-controlling interest in Canal+ France held by Lagardére for £€1,020 million, i
cash

Finally, on Navember 26, 2013, the Supervisory Board approved the group's planned demerger to form two separate entiies (1} a media group
and {1} SFR Subject to information and consultation procedures with the relevant French employee representative bodies and approvals by
the relevant regulatory authorities, 1t could be submitted, #f appropriate to the General Shareholders' Meeting for approval on June 24,
2014 The potential impacts of this demerger on the group’s financing structure will become effective if and when a final decision to
implement such a transaction 1s taken

As of February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivend's Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013
e  Vivendi SA had available confirmed credit facilities in the aggregate amount of £7,140 mullion, of which €800 million was drawn
Given the amount of commercial paper 1ssued at that date, and backed to bank credit facilities for £4,143 million, these facilities
were avallable for an aggregate amount of €2,397 million, and

»  bonds amounted to €6 9 billion, following the redemption in January 2014 upon its contractual maturity, of the bond 1ssued n
January 2008, w:th a 7 75% coupon, for £894 million

Mareover, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €375 million was 1ssued in connection with Vivend!'s appeal against the Liberty Media
judgment This off-balance sheet financial commitment has no impact on Vivendi’s net debt

Contractual agreements in relation to credit facilities and letters of credit granted to Vivendi SA (notably the letter of credit 1ssued in
connection with the appeal against the Liberty Med.a judgment} do not include provisions that tie the conditions of the loan to its financial
strength ratings from rating agencies They contain custemary provisions related to events of default and, at the end of each half-year,
Vivend) SA 1s notably required to comply with a financial covenant (please refer to Note 23) The credit facilities granted to group companies
other than Vivend) SA are intended to finance esther the general needs of the borrowing subsidiary or a specific project

Group financing orgamzation

Excluding primarily Maroc Telecom group, Vivendi SA centralizes darly cash surpluses {cash poohng) of all controlled entities {a) that are not
subject ta focal regulations restricting the transfer of financial assets or (b} that are not subject to other contractual agreements

Taking into account the foregoing, Vivend: considers that the cash flows generated by its operating actvities its cash and cash equivalents,
as well as the amounts available through its current bank credit facilitres and the letter of credit 1ssued n connection with Vivendi's appeal
against the Liberty Med:a yudgment will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital expenditure, service 1ts debt {including the
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redemption of borrowings), pay its mcome taxes and dividends, as well as to fund its financial investment projects, if any, for the next
twelve months, subject to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the group’s change in scope

24.3 Credit and investment concentration risk and counterparty risk management

Vivendi’s nisk management policy aims at mimmizing the concentration of 1ts credit (bank credit faeilities, bonds, and dervatives) and
investment risks as well as counterparty nsk, as regards the setting-up of bank credit facilities, derivatives or iInvestments, by entering into
transactions with highly rated commercial banks only Moreover, regarding bond 1ssues, Vivendr distributes 1ts transactions among selected
financial investors

In addition, Vivendr's trade receivables do not represent a sigmificant concentration of credit nsk due to 1ts broad customer base, the broad
variety of customers and markets, and the gecgraphic diversity of Its business operations

244 Equity market risk management
As of December 31, 2013, Vivend) and 1ts subsidianes held shares in the following listed companies

e 83 million Activision Blizzard common shares classified as "Assets held for sale® in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, the value of which 1s £1,078 million as of December 31, 2013, at constant EUR/USD rate, a 10% decrease (or a 10%
increase} in Activision Blizzard's share price would have a negative impact of £108 million {or a positive impact of €108 million} on
Vivend:'s net income These shares are subject to a 15-month lock-up period, during which Vivendi cannet sell, transfer, hedge or
otherwise dispose of any Activision Blizzard shares directly or indirectly {please refer to Note 7), and

o 95 million TVN shares indirectly held by N-Vision, consolidated by Canal+ Group under the equity method {please refer to Note 15)

In addition, as of December 31, 2013, Vivend: holds call options and has granted put options on listed or unhsted shares Vivend: 1s thus
exposed to the nsk of fluctuation in therr values

Note 25 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

25.1 Adjustments

Year ended December 3%

{in millions of euros) Note 2013 2012
Items related to operating activities with no cash impact
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tang:ble assets 4 5,106 3.275%
Change in provision, net (168} 10
Other non-cash items from EBIT (2}
Other
Reserve accrual refated to the Liberty Media Corporation litigation m the United States 28 - 945
Other income from EBIT 4 {88} {19}
Other charges from EBIT 4 57 236
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 3 6 9
Adjustments 4911 4,456

25.2 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

In 2013, there was no significant investing of financing activity with no cash impact

In 2012, investing and finanging activities with no cash impact amounted to €596 million {of which €336 million due ta the share capital
increase (including premium} and €260 million due to the group’s retained earmings increase) and were mainly related to

o the grant of bonus shares to Vivend: SA shareowners by a €229 million withdrawal from additional paid-in capital {please refer to
Note 19),

s Vivend SA’'s share capital increase of 22,356 thousand shares which it paid in consideration for the contribution made by Bolloré
Media (the free-to-air channels Direct 8 and Direct Star), representing an enterprise value of €336 million, and

e the strategic partnership in Poland, finalized on November 30, 2012 This transaction generated an increase n consolidated
retained earnings from equity of €260 mullion (€114 million related to the gain on the dilutian of Cyfra+ and €131 milhion related to
the recognition of ITI Neowision’s non-controlling interests at fair value)
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Note 26 Transactions with related parties

26.1 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

On June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board terminated Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy's term of office as Chairman of the Management Board The
Supervisory Board also terminated the terms of office of the following members of the Management Board Mr Abdeslam Ahizoune, Mr
Amos Genish, Mr Lucian Grainge, and Mr Bertrand Meheut and appointed Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos as Chairman of the Management Board

Until December 31, 2013, the Management Board was composed of Mr Jean-Frangois Dubes and Mr Philippe Capron, who left his position as a
member of the Management Board as of that date

Since January 1, 2014, the Management Board 1s composed of Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos , Mr Jean-Yves Charlier {Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of SFR), and Mr Arnaud de Puyfontaine (Senior Executive Vice President, Media and Content actvities)

Compensation of corporate officers

+ The gross compensation, including benefits in kind, that the group paid in 2013, to the members of the Management Board in
office, amounted to €2 3 million This amount included the fixed and variable compensation components paid to the members of
the Management Board in office 1n 2013 for their 2012 mandate Moreover, in 2013, the members in office until Jene 28, 2012
received the prorated variable compensation component with respect to 2012, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February
22,2013, for a total amount of €4 6 million {excluding severance payment, If any, see below)

In 2012, the total gross compensation, including benefits i kind that the group paid to the members of the Management Board in
office, amounted to €25 milhon This amount included the fixed compensation component of the members of the Management
Board for the duration of thew mandate (€5 mullion), the vanable compensation component pad for their 2011 mandate
{€12 million), as well as the severance payments paid to Mr Jean-Bernard Levy and Mr Frank Esser {a member of Vivend's
Management Board and as SFR's Chief Executive Officer until March 26, 2012, 1 e, termination date of his term of office)

¢ In 2012, Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy, received a severance payment of €39 milhion, approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting
held on Apnil 30, 2013 In addition, Mr Frank Esser's received a severance payment, with respect to the termination of its
employment contract, for €3 9 million {of which €1 7 million received in January 2013}

Mr Philippe Capron, considering his resignation, 15 not entitled to benefit from the severance payment as included in the
amendment to its employment contract which was approved by the General Shareholders” Meeting held on Apn! 30, 2013

The Chawrman of the Management Board do not benefit fram any severance payment due to his position as a Corporate Officer

¢ The total charge recorded by the group with respect to share-hased compensation plans {performance shares, stock options, and
employee stock purchase) granted to the members of the Management Board, in office, amounted to £2 mullion 1n 2013 {compared
to €6 mullion 1n 2012}

e The amount of net pension plan obligations to the Management Board amounted to €7 8million as of December 31, 2013
{compared to €4 6 mullion for the members of the Management Board, in office as of December 31, 2012) Mr Phulippe Capron lost
his pension benefit nights with respect to the additional pension plan

»  The fixed compensation paid to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board amounted to €700,000 (before taxes and withholdings) in
2013 {unchanged since 2011} and the total amount of fess paid to the other members of the Supervisory Board amounted to
€1 2 million {before taxes and withholdings) with respect to 2013 (unchanged compared to 2012)

The Chapter 3 of the Annual Report contains a detalled description of the compensation policy and the compensation and benefits of
corporate officers of the group, 1n accordance with the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF amended in June 2013
Sale of Activision Blizzard

On October 11, 2013 Vivend: sold 88% of its interest in Activision Blizzard Mr Jean-Frangors Dubos was a member of Activision Bhizzard's
Board of Directors and of 1ts Compensation Committee and Mr Philippe Capron was Chairman of Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and
of 1ts Compensation Committee as well as a member of 1ts Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
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26.2 Other related parties

Excluding corporate officers, Vivendi's main related parties were those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive or joint
contral, and compan:es over which Vivend: exercises a significant influence (please refer to Note 29 for a list of its main subsidiaries, fully
consolidated or accounted for under the equity method), and non-controlling interests that exercise sigmificant influence on group affiliates
1 &, the Kingdom of Moracco, which owns 30% of Maroc Telecom group, and since November 30, 2012, TYN, which owns 32% of Canal+
Cyfrowy {a subsidiary of Canal+ Group)

Moreover, on November 5, 2013, Vivend! acquired from Lagardére Graup its 20% interest in Canal+ France {pleasa refer to Note 2} The
agreement entered into in 2006 with Lagardére Group which gave Canal+ France the nght to broadcast theu theme channets on s mult-
channel offer, was extended once until June 30, 2013 and has been extended a second time until June 30, 2016

Note 27 Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivend''s material contractual obligatiens and contingent assets and lrabilities include

e contracts entered into, which relate to the group’s business operations, such as content cammitments (please refer to Note 11 2},
contractual obhigations and commercial commitmenis recorded 1n the Statement of Fimanciat Posttion, including finance leases
{please refer to Note 13), off-balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as
long-term service contracts and purchase or investment commitments,

¢ commitments related to the group’s scope contracted through acquisitions or divestrtures such as share purchase or sale
comimitments, contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or acquisition
of shares, commitments resuluing from shareholders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over Vivend:’s
assets,

e commitments related to the group’s financing borrowings 1ssued and undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities as well as the
management of interest rate, forewgn currency and hguidity nisks {please refer to Notes 23 and 24), and

+ contingent assets and habilities refated to [itigation in which Vivend) and/or its subsidianies are either plaintiff or defendant (please
refer to Note 28}

21.1 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments

As of December 31 2013 Total as of
Total Payments dug in December 31
(in millions of euras} Nota 2014 2015-2018 After 2018 2012
Borrowings and other financial liabiities 423 13587 35925 6275 3767 20338
Content habilities 12 23% 2245 88 4 2283
Future mimimizm payments related to the consolidated statement of inancisl position ems 16,302 6,170 6363 3.769 261
Contractual content commitments 12 4799 118 2124 56 4939
Commercial commitments 2711 229 1057 806 36 26497
Operating leases and subleases 712 2700 454 1284 962 2735
ltems not recorded in the consalidated statement of financial position 5,207 3,629 4214 1,364 1031
Contractual obligations and commescial comm tments 25,509 9,79 10,577 5,113 32932
27.1.1  Off balance sheet commercial commitments
Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2013 Total sumimum future
Total Cue n payments as of
{in milhons of euros} 2014 2015-2018 After 2018 December 31_2012
Satelite transponders 696 102 345 239 845
Investment commitments 1078 802 194 122 1273
QOther 732 265 419 48 786
Given commitments 2.4% 1,169 918 409 2,905
Satellite transponders {159) 97 162) - [201)
Other {128} (15) (501 {63} 7
Received commitments (287) {112) {112} (63) {208)
Not total {a) 2209 1.057 806 346 2,697

a  The decrease in off bafance sheet commercial commitments was mainly related to Maroc Telecom group, whose sale by Vivend) 1s
underway (€316 million as of December 31, 2012) please refer to Note 7 2
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2712  Off balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Minimum future leases as of December 31 2013 Total - mimimem future
Total Due in leases as of December
{in millions of euros) 2014 25-2018 After 2018 31 2012
Buildings {a} 2695 427 1292 986 2,633
Other 221 67 103 51 212
Leases 2916 494 1385 1,037 2,845
Buildings {a} (216} (40) {101) {75} [110)
Subleases {216} (40) {101} (75) inn
Net total 2,100 454 1,284 96; 2,735

a Mainly relates to offices and technical premises

21.2 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Ref iContext !Charactenstics {nature and amount)
' '

Individual nghts to traming for French employees S T proxnma!elylsmnlmhours (ucacnmparedto ecmber311 1.

SFR s network coverage commitments related to telecom licenses Please refer 1o Note 14 -
{a) |GSM-R commitments Bank guarantee, Joint and several guarantees with Synérail for a total amount of -

€105 milion {compared to €32 million as of December 31 2012}
Obfigatians in connection with pension plans and post-retirement benefits:Please refer to Note 21

{b) ;0ther guarantees given Cumulated amount of €156 million (compared ta €130 million as of December 31 -
2012)

F Recevedlcommuting 1 31

Mimmum guarantees

{c) |Agreements on the digital distribution of music nghts
{d) {Other guaraniees received Cumulated amount of €1 million {cormpared to €134 million as of December 31,
2012)

a  On February 18, 2010, a group comprised of SFR, Vinci and AXA {30% each) and TOF {10%) entered into a contract with Réseau Ferré
de France regarding the public-private partnership GSM-R This 15-year contract, valued at approximately €1 billion, covers the
financing, building, operation and maintenance of the digital telecommunications network that enables conference mode
communications {voice and data) between train drivers and teams on the ground It will be rolled out gradually untl 2015 over
14,000 km of conventional and high-speed railway lines in France

b Vivend grants guarantees in varous forms to financial institutions on behalf of 1ts subsidianes in the course of their operations

¢ Manly relates to commrtments received by UMG from third parties in connection wath agreements subject to mimimum guarantees on
the digital distribution of music rights

d  The decrease in other guarantees received was notably related to the plan to sell Maroc Telecom group {please refer to Note 7 2)
21.3 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivend: has granted or received commitments to purchase or sell
secunties

On November 4, 2013, Vivend: notably committed to sell its interest in Maroc Telecom group {please refer to Note 7 2)

in connectian with the sale of a majonity of Vivendi’s interest in Activision Blizzard, complsted on October 11, 2013, Vivendi's remaining
interest in Activision Blizzard (83 million shares) 1s subject to lock-up provisions {please refer to Note 7 1)

The liquidity nights regarding the strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN are detailed in Note 27 5 below

Furthermore, Vivendi and «ts subsichanes have granted or received purchase or sale options related to shares in equity affiliates and
unconsolidated investments
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214 Contingent assets and liahilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the

divestiture or acquisition of shares

Ref _|Context Ghar { and amourt) | Expi
I Comtingent labilies DR S ]
(a) |NBC Unwversal transaction {May 2004) and subsequent amendments ¢ Breaches of tax representations -
(2005 - 2010 ; Obligation to cover the Most Favared Natien provisions and
{- Remedial actions 034
b} jAcquisition of Bolloré Group s channels (September 2012) iCommitments undertaken 1n connection with the authorizanon of the acquisiion with
- the French Competition Authoniy and 2017
- the French Broadcasting Authority s
Merger of Cyfra+ and "n platforms (November 2012) Reciprocal guarantees 1n favor of TVN
- PLN 1 belan 1n the event of a breach of any represantation or warranty or covenants and 2015
PLMN 300 million in the event of 3 breach of specific representation or warranty -
{c} [Canal+ Group s pay-TV activiies in France {Janyary 2007-July 2017} New approval of the acquisition of TPS and CanalSateliite subject to comphance with injunctians ordered by| 2017
the French Competiton Authonty
(d) Dwestiture of Canal+ Nordic [Dctober 2003} Distributien guarantees giver in favor of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadeast Helding by a former subsidiary -
{e} |Dwestiture of NC Numérnicable {March 2005) iSpecdic guarantees capped at €24+ million (including tax and social fisks) 2014
Dhwaestiture of PSG (June 2005) Unlimitad specific guarantees me
Dwvestiture of UMG manufactuning and distribuuon operatiens {May Vanous commitments for manufactunng and distnbution semices 2018
2005)
(ft  |Takeovar of Neuf Cegetel {Apri 2008} Commutments undertaken 1n connection with the autharization of tha take over by tha French Mimister of tha | 2013
Economy Industry and Employment expired 1n 2033
{g) iDwestiture of Sithe {December 2000) Specific guaranteos capped at $480 million
iy 1Sale of real estats assets {June 2002) Autonomous first demand guarantees capped at €150 milhion in total {tax and decennial guarantees) 2017
) jEarly settlement of rental quarantess related to the last three buildings  [Canceltation in Ogtober 2042 of guarantess of rental payments obligations followang the sale of the 2012
in Germany (November 2007} companies
{n}  {Dwestture of PTC shares {Decamber 2010} Commitments undertaken in order to end hitigation over the share ownership of PTC in Poland -
Sale of Activision Blizzard {October 2013) Commitments undertaken in connectian with the sale {please refer to Note 7)
unlimited general guarantees and -
fiscal guarantees capped at $200 mihion under certain circumstances -
Other cantingent liabthties Cumulated amount of £7millian {compared te €10 malhon as of December 31 2012}
L Continge sl asseLs,
(b} |Acqusition of Bolloré Group s chaanels {September 2012} Guarantees capped a1 €120 million 207
Acquisition of 40% of N-Vision (November 2012) Guarantees made by [Tl capped &1 approximately
- €28 mten for generat guaraniees and 2014
- €277 mullion for specific guarantees (including tax matters free and full ownership of shares sold
authorizations / approvals for the exertise of the actwvity)
Mearger of Cyfra+ and TVN's ‘n’ ptatform {November 2012) Reciprocal guarantaes in favor of TWH
PLN 1 tillion 1n the event of a breach of any representatien or waranty or cavenants 2015
PLN 300 million in the event of a breach of specific representation or warranty and -
PLN 145 million related to Meowiston's unutilized tax losses camad forward -
Acquisiton of Kmowelt {Apnl 2008} Specific guarantees notably on film nghts werg granted by the sellars
{8} {Dwvesuture of NC Numéricable {March 2005) €151 millipn counter guaranteed by Orange 2014
Acquisimon of EM) Recorded Music {September 2012) - Cornmitments relating to full penston cbligations in the trited Kingdom assumed oy City and -
- Guarantees relaung 10 losses stemming from taxes and litigation claims 1r particular those related to
pensian cbhigations in the Unrted Kingdom
{k} |Acquisrion of Tele2 France by SFR {July 2007) Cammitrents an the handling and disinbution of audio wsual content expired in July 2012 052
(1}  |Early settlement of rental guarantees related to the |asi three buildings  |Commutments expired in October 2012 2012
n Germany (November 2007) - Pledga over the cash of the divested compantes sold and
- Counter-guarantee provided by the purchaser in the amount of £200 million
() |Dwvestture of Xfera (2003} Guarantees amoynt to €71 mllian
Other contingent assets Cumulated amount of €70 million (compared to €58 million as of December 31 2012) .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and Liabilities described above

a

As part of the NBC Unwversal transaction which occurred in May 2004, Vivendi and General Electric (GE} gave certain reciprocal
commitments customary for this type of transacticn, and Vivendi retained certain habilites relating to taxes and excluded assets
Vivend! and GE undertook to (ndemnify each other against losses resulting from, among other things, any breach of their respactive
representations, warranties and covenants

Neither party will have any indemnification obligations for losses ansing as a result of any breach of representations and warranties
{1} for any individual 1tem where the loss 15 less than $10 million and {i1) in respect of each individual item where the loss s equal to or
greater than $10 million except where the aggregate amount of all losses exceeds $325 million In that event, the liable party will be
required to pay the amount of losses which exceeds $325 million, but in no event will the aggregate indemnification payable exceed
$2,088 million

In addition, Vivendi will have indemnification obligations fer 50% of every US dellar of toss up to $50 million and for all losses
excess of $50 mullion relating to liabihties ansing out of the Most Favored Nation provisions set forth in certain contracts As part of
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the unwinding of IACI's interest 1n VUE on June 7, 2005, Vivend:'s commitments with regard to environmental matters were amended
and Vivendi’s liability 1s now subject to a de mimimis exception of $10 million and a payment basket of $325 million

The representations and warranties given as part of the NBC Unwersal transaction other than those regarding authorization,
capitalization and tax representations terminated on August 11, 2005 Notices of environmental claims related to remediation must be
brought by May 11, 2014 Other claims, including those related to taxes, will be subject to applicable statutes of imitations

The sale of Vivendr’'s interest in NBE Universal to GE completed on January 25, 2011 did not modify these commitments

b As part of the French Competition Authonty’s approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed D8 and
D17, respectively) on July 23, 2012, Vivendi and Canal+ Group undertock certan commitments These commitments provide for
restiictions on the acguisiton of nghts for Amercan movies and television series from certain American studios and for French
movies, the separate negotiation of certain rights for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and televtsion series, imitations on the acquisition
by D8 and D17 of French catalog movies from Studiocanal, and the transfer of rights to broadcast major sports events on free-to-air
channels through a competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a 5-year penod, renewable once if the French
Competition Autharity, after having performed a competitive analysis, deems it necessary In addtion, on September 18, 2012, the
French Broadcasting Authenty (Consetl Supénieur de I'Audiovisuel} approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain
commitments relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfer nights, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the D8 shares for
a mimimum period of two and a half years
On December 23, 2013 the French Council of State annulled the decision of the French Competition Authority approving the acquisition
of the D8 and D17 channels, with a postponed effect as from July 1, 2014 The French Council of State raised an i1ssue regarding an
error of judgment n relation to a specific commitment on the second and third windows for free-to-air French films On January 15,
2014, Vivend: and Canal+ Group submitted a new notification to the French Competition Authonty in respect of the acquisition of the
free-to-air channels D8 and 017 However, the D8 and D17 channels continue to broadcast their programs as the decision of the
French Council of State did not challenge the acquisition of thase channels

) On August 30, 2008, the TPS/Canal+ Group merger was authorized, in accordance with the merger control regulations, pursuant to a
decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and Canal+ Group complying with certain
undertakings for a maximum period of six years, with the exception of those commitments concerning the availability of channels and
V0D, which could not exceed five years

On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authonty opened an enquiry regarding the implementatian of certain undertakings given
by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of CanalSatellite and TPS
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivend) and Canal + Group's filed motions requesting the annulment of
the French Competition Authonty's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 million fine
imposed on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 miflion Under the second motion, the transaction was cleared once aga:n subject to
compliance with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has implemented a number of these injunctions, some of which since July 23, 2012 and others since October 23, 2012,
mainfy focusing on
® Acquisition of movie nghts
- by limiting the duration of output deals to three years, requiring separate agreements for different types of nghts (1 pay-TV
window, 2" pay-TV window, series, etc) and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
- bydwesting its interest in Orange Cinema Series — 0CS SNC or by adopting measures himuting its inflvence on Orange Cinema
Senes — OCS SNC {please refer to Note 27 5 below)
« Distnbution of pay-TV channels
- by the distribution of a minimum number of independent channels, the distribution of any channel holding premium nghts, and
by drafting a mode! distribution deal relating to independent channets included in the CanalSat offer,
- by the obligation to promote, in a transparent and separate manner, the distribution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform serving more than 500,000 subscnbers, and
- by making aii 1ts own movie channels distributed by Canal+ Group (Cine+ channels} available to third-party distributors
{unbundling)
¢ Video on demand (VOD) and subscrption vides on demand (SY0D)
- by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SVOD nights on a non-exciusive basis, and not combining
them with rnghts purchased for [inear distribution on pay-TV,
- by offenng Studiocanal's VOD and SVYOD nghts to any interested operator, and
- by forbidding exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service Providers
platforms
These injunctions are imposed for a period of five years, renewable once At the end of the five-year period, the French Competition
Authority will review the competition situation to determine whether the injunctions should be kept in place If market conditions have
changed significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these injunctions be waived or partially or totally revised An
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independent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Campetition Authority on September 25, 2012, will be
responsible for monitoring the injunctions implementation

Moreover, Vivend granted a counter-guaranteg, in favor of TF1 and M6 to assume commitments and guarantees made by TF1 and MB
In connection with some of the contractual content commitments and other long term obligations of TPS and other obligations
recognized In the Statement of Financial Position of TPS As of December 31, 2012, the remaining amount of these commitments was
not significant and the counter-guarantee expired on January 4, 2013

In connection with the divestiture of Canal+ Nordic in October 2003, Canal+ Group has retained distribution guarantees given in favor
of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary, which guarantees are covered by a counter-guarantee given by
the buyers

As part of the destrture of NC Numéricable on March 31, 2005, the Canal+ Group granted specific guarantees with a €241 million
cap {including tax and social nsks} Specific nsks relating to cable networks used by NC Numéncable are included in this maximum
amount and are counter-guaranteed by Orange up to €151 million

As part of the takeover of Neuf Cegetel, the approval from the Ministry of Econamy, Industry and Employment, dated Apni 15, 2008,
resulted (n additional commitments from Vivendi and its subsidianes They address competiter access and new market entrants to
wholesale markets on SFR's fixed and mobile networks, acceptance on the fixed network of an independent television distributor if
such a player appears, as well as the availability, on a non-exclusive basis, of ADSL on eight new channels which are leaders in their
particular field (Pans Premiere, Teva, Jimmy, Ciné Cinéma Famiz, three M6 Music channels and Fun TV} All these commitments
expired in Apnl 2013

In connection with the sale of its 49 9% interest 1n Sithe to Exelon 1n December 2000, Vivend granted customary representations and
guarantees Claims, other than those made in relation to foreign subsidiary commitments, are capped at $480 million !n addition,
claims must exceed $15 million, except If they relate to foreign subsid:anes or the divestiture of certain electncal stations to Reliant in
February 2000 Some of these guarantees expired on December 18, 2005 Some environmental commitments stll exist and any
potential liabilities related to contamination risks will survive for an indefinite period of time

In connection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexity, Vivendi granted two autonomous first demand guarantees,
one for €40 million and one for €110 million, to several subsidiaries of Nexity [Nexim 1 to 6) The quarantees are effective until June
30,2017

After having sold the companies carrying credit lease commitments in relation to the Berlin buildings Lindencorso, Anthropalis and
Dhanapark [the “"Companies”}, in November 2007, Vivend: continued to guarantee certain lease payment obligations As a result of the
early exercise by the Companies of their call options on the buildings, Vivend's guarantees were terminated on Dctober 5, 2012 In
return, the counter-guarantee provided by the acquirors of the Companies to Vivend: (€200 million} was cancelled. as well as the
pledge over the cash of the divested companies to the benefit of Vivendi Vivendi has retained tax guarantees given at the time of the
disposal of the Companies

On December 14, 2010, Vivendi, Deutsche Telekom, Mr Solorz-Zak {Elektnm’s main shareholder) and Elektrim's creditors, including
the Polish State and Elektrm's bondholders, entered into various agreements to put an end to the litigation surrounding the share
capital ownership of Polska Telefonia Cyfrowa (PTC), a mobile telecommunication operator With respect to these agreements, Vivend
notably entered into the following commitments
+ Vivend granted to Deutsche Telekom a guarantee over Carcom that was capped at €600 million, which expired in August
2013,
+ Vivend committed to compensate Elektnm SA {Elektnm) for the tax consequences of the transaction, with a cap at
€20 million This commitment expired in July 2011 and the claims were settled in June 2012,
e Vivendi committed to compensate Law Debenture Trust Company {LDTC) against any recourse for damages that could be
brought against LOTC in connection with the completed transaction, for an amount up to 18 4% for the first €125 million,
46% between €125 million and €288 million, and 50% thereafter, and
* Vivend committed to compensate Elektnm’s administrator for the consequences of any action for damages that may be
taken against it, in connection with the decisions that were taken to end certain procedures

The Share Purchase Agreement dated as of October 2, 2006 between Tele2 Europe SA and SFR contains representations and
warranties which expired on January 20, 2009 and warranties relating to claims ansing with respect to tax and social matters, which
expired end of March 2012 On July 18, 2007, by way of implementation of the European Union antitrust regulation, the European
Commussron approved the purchase of the fixed and nternet activities of TeleZ France by SFR, subject to commitments on the handling
and distnibution of audio-visual content for a five-year penod All these commitments expired on July 18, 2012

Vivend: receved guarantees in respect of the repayment of amaunts paid in July 2007 {€71 million), in the event of a favourable
decision of the Spanish Courts concerning Xfera's tax htigation seeking to cance! the 2001, 2002 and 2003 radio spectrum fees These
guarantees Include a first demand bank guarantee relating to 2001 fees for an amount of €57 mullion
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Several guarantees given in 2013 and durning prior years m connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the time
penods or statute of hmitations of certan guarantees relabing, among other things, o employees, environment and tax liabilies, n
consideration of share ownership, or given in connection with the dissolution or winding-up of certain businesses are still in effect To the
best of Vivend!'s knowledge, no matenal claims for indemn:fication against such liabilities have been made to date

In addition, Vivend: regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and litigations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
typical 1n such transactions

215 Shareholders’ agreements

Under exsting shareholders’ or investors’ agreements (primanly those relating to Maroc Telecom group, and “nc+”), Vivendh holds certain
nghts (such as pre-emptive rights and prionty nights) that give tt control aver the capital structure of consalidated companies partially owned
by minority shareholders Conversely, Vivend: has granted similar nghts to these other shareholders in the event that it sells its interests to
third parties

In addition, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated interests Vivend)
and rts subsidianies have given or recerved certain nights {pre-emptive and other nghts) entitling them to maintain their shareholder’s nghts

Strategic agreements among Vivendi, Canal+ Group, Lagardére, and Lagardére Holding TV

The nights granted to Lagardére following the strategic agreements entered into on January 4, 2007, were ended on November 5, 2013,
followang the acquisition by Vivendi of Lagardére Group’s 20% interest in Canal+ France (please refer to Note 2)

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN
The key liquidity nghts provided under the strategic partnerstup formed in November 2012 conceming television in Poland are as follows

- At the level of N-Vision
¢ on December 18, 2013, ITl exercised its put option to sell 8 9% interest in N-Vision to Canal+ Group, and on the basis of a
value equal to Canak Group's imttial investment in N-Vision, 1 e , for a cash amount of €62 million, paid in February 2014,
e Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire ITI's remaining N-Vision shares, exercisable at any time during the two 3-month
penods beginning February 29, 2016 and February 28, 2017, at the then-prevailing market value,
s conversaly, in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option on [TI's interest in N-Vision, IT1 has a call option
to acquire Canal+ Group’s interest in N-Vision, exercisable at any time during the two 3-month periods beginning May 30,
2016 and May 29, 2017, and between November 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017 and between May 1, 2018 and June 30,
2018 at the then-prevailing market value, and
¢  Canah Group and IT| each has the liquidity right, fallewing the above call option periods, to sell its entire interest in N-
Vision
- Atthe level of "nc+”
e Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TVN's 32% interest in “nc+" at market value, which is exercisable during the two
3- month penods beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2016,
¢ if Canal+ Group exercises its call option, Canal+ Group will be required to acquire ITI's remaining interest in N-Vision, and
e in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise 1ts call option, TVN has hquidity nghts m the form of an Intial Public
Offenng of 1ts interest in "nc+”

Shareholders’ agreement between Orange Cinema Senes and Multithématiques

On February 4, 2013, the members of Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC' Board of Directors resigned from their positions at the request of
Multtthématiques and in order to comply with injunction 2(b} ordered by the French Competition Authonity an July 23, 2012 As a result,
Muluthématiques appointed, by letter with an effective date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affilation to
Multithématiques to the Board of Directers of Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC

In addition, in compliance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, it 15 stated that some nights and obligations of Vivend
resulting from shareholders’ agreements {Maroc Telecom group, and Canal+ Cyfrowy) may be amended or terminated in the event of a
change in controf of Vivend or a tender offer being made for Vivendi These shareholders” agreements are subject to confidentiality
provisions
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21.6 Collaterals and pledges
As of December 31, 2013, the amount of the group’s assets that were pledged or mortgaged for the benefit of third parties was £212 million

(compared to €209 million as of December 31, 2012) This amount primanly includes GVT's pledged assets with respect to judicial
guarantees for vanous litgations

{in milhions of euros) December 31, 2013 December 31 2012

0n intangible assets 4 8
On tangible assets 23 a7
On financial assets 177 146
On cash g 8
Total 212 209

Moreover, as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, Vivendt did not held any third-party guarantees in respect of any of its outstanding
receivables

Note 28 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivend 1s subject to various lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, admimistrative or other
proceedings (collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these praceedings are only recogrized as provisions when they are hkely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified of estimated, in winch case. the amount of the provision represents Yivend's best estimate of the
risk, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such nsk if events occur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2013, provisions
recorded by Vivend for all claims and htigations amounted to €1,379 million, compared to €1,357 million at December 31, 2012 {please refer
to Note 20)

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company's knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings in which 1t 1s a defendant, which may have or have had 1n the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company’s and on its group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 15 described as of February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

Securities Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed against Vivend, Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the Umited States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the Uruted States District Court for the Central District of Califernia On September 30, 2002, the New
York court decided to censolidate these claims under sts wnsdiction into a single action entitled o re Vivend: Universal S A Secunties
Litigation

The plaintiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Securities
Act of 1933 and US Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard te financial communications On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed a consol:dated class action surt that may benefit potential groups of sharehalders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class (“class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or Amencan Depositary
Receipts (ADRs) of Vivend) {formerly Vivendi Universal SA} between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Following the class certification decision of March 22, 2067, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivend an the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge issued an order consolidating the individual actions with the securities class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury returned its verdict It found that 57 statements made by Vivendi between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenally false or misleading and were made in violation of Section 10(b} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Plaintiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they failed to disclose the existence of an alleged “hguidity nisk” which
reached 1ts peak in December 2001 However, the jury concluded that nerther Mr Jean-Marne Messier nor Mr Guillaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendi's shares was artificially inflated on each
day of the class period in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class action
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The jury also concluded that the inflatron of the Vivend: share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Pans or New York markets (12 days) during the class periad

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Mormson v National Australia Bank case, that American
securities law only apphes to “the purchase or sale of a secunty listed on an Amenican stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other secunty in the United States

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the "Mornson” decision, confirmed Vivendi’s
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi’s ordinary shares en the Pans stock exchange and imited the case to claims of
French, Amencan, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi’s ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivendi's past-trial
motions challenging the jury's verdict The Court also dechined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiifs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plantiffs filed a petition before the Secend Circuit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Pans stock exchange

In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and 1ssued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Marrison decision, also dismissed the claims
of the indvidual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Pans stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice had untit August 7, 2013 to file a claim form and submit documentation evidencing the vahdity of therr claim These
claims are currently being processed and venfied by an independent claims administrator and by the parties Vivendi will then have the right
to challenge the merits of these claims At the end of this process, which should be completed during the first half of 2014, the judge will be
able to determine the total amount of damages and enter a final judgment, thereby enabling Vivendi to commence 1ts appeal

Moreaver, in connection with the Halliburten case under review by the Supreme Court of the United States, Vivend: filed an amicus curiae
brief This case addresses the conditions under which class actions are certified in the United States

Vivend: believes that 1t has solid grounds for an appeal at the approprate tmes Vivend: intends to challenge, among other 1ssues, the
plaintiffs’ theories of cavsation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the trial
Several aspects of the verdict will also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies spectahzing in the calculation of class action damages and n accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 131 {Use of Estimates} and 1 3 8 (Provisions) Vivend: made a prevision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €650 million 1n respect of the damages that Vivendi might have ta pay to plantiffs Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Secunities class action litigatton in the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court’s decision on June 24, 2010 in the Mornson case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve and set 1t at €100 million as of December 31,
2010, n respect of the damages, (f any, that Vivend might have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend: considers that this provision and the assumptions on which it is based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plaintifis could differ from the current estimate As s
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate 1s based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend)

Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivendh and Jsan-Mane Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo in the District Court for the Southern Distnict of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered into by Vivend: and
Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivend: Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants wiglated
certan provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consolidated with the secunties class action for pre-tnial purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2003 The judge
granted Liberty Media's request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class action jury with
respect to Vivend's hiability (theory of “collateral estappel”)

The Liberty Media jury returned its verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend hable to Liberty Media for making certarn false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 million Vivend: filed certain post-trial motions challenging the jury's verdict, ncluding motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury's verdict for lack of evidence and order a new trial
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On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury’s verdict It also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year U S Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment In the total amount of £945 milion, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while it considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which 1t believes it has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend! filed a motion in the Second Circuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment 1s entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultaneously On April 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals 1ssued an Order granting Vivendi’s motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action The appeal In
the Liberty Media case s stayed until Vivend: can appeal from the Class Action final judgment

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivendr maintamned as of December
31, 2013, the provision in the amount of €945 million recorded as of December 31, 2012

Trial of Vivendi's former officers in Paris

in October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor's office {Parquet de Pans) launched an investigation nto the
publication of allegedly false or misieading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of 1ts own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivendi joined the proceedings
as a civil party

The trial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tnbunal of First Instance (Tnbunal de Grande
Instance de Paris}, following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered 1ts judgment, in which 1t confirmed the previous recagnition of Vivendi as a civil party Messrs Jean Mane Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys received suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Mane Messier and
Guillaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivend)
officers as well as same civil parties appealed the decisian The appeal praceedings were held from Qctober 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Paris Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended prison sentence and a fing of €150,000 for Mr
Jean-Mare Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misleading infermation, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and a 10-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of
€5 mullion for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for nsider trading In the course of the trial, a number of civil parties have submitted an application to
the Panis Court af Appeal for a prionty preliminary ruling on constitutionality The application concerned the impossibihty, for a civil party, to
appeal a decision by a first instance court to drop charges Since the same guestion 1s currently pending before the Canstrtutional Council,
the Court of Appeal has stayed the proceedings with regard to the issues relating to the dropped charges, and postponed pleadings on these
issues until the heaning of Apnil 8 and 9, 2014 The Court will rule on these and the other 1ssues in a single judgment on Apri} 29, 2014

LBBW et al against Vivendi

On March 4, 2011, 26 nstututional nvestors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, lreland, ltaly, Sweden, Belgum and Austria filed a
complaint against Vivend) with the Panis Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a resuit of four
financial communications issued by Vivend: in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002 Then on Apni 5 and on April 23,
2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivend the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho
and the other by six German and British institutional investors Finally, on August 8, 2012, the British Columbia Investment Management
Corporation also filed a compla:nt against Vivend: on the same basis The cases are currently in the pretrial stage

Califormia State Teachers Retirement System et al against Vivendr and Jean-Marie Messier

On Apnl 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investors filed a complaint against Vivend and Jean-Marie Messier before the Panis Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend: and its former leader,
between 2000 and 2002 On September 6, 2012, 24 new plantffs joined these proceedings, however, in November 2012, two plamtiffs
withdrew from the proceedings The case 1s currently in the pretnal stage

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc., its Board of Directors, and Vivend

In August 2013, a dervative action was initiated in Los Angeles Supernior Court by an individual shareholder against Activision Blizzard, Inc
(“Actmsion Blizzard” or the “Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and aganst Vivendi The plaintiff alleges that
Activision Blizzard's Board of Dhrectors and Vivend) breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivend's share ownership
in the Company The plaintiff, Todd Miller, claims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that it
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Kotick and Brian Kelly, the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetied by Vivend:
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On September 11, 2013, a second denvative action based on essentially the same allegations was initiated 1n the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minonity shareholder of Activision Blizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minonty shareholder, Douglas Hayes, inttiated a similar actron and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Activision Blizzard’s shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
Court of Chancery granted the motion enjoining the closing of the transaction However, on October 10, 2013, the Detaware Supreme Court
overturned this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction The case will proceed on the merits

On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated the Pacchia and Hayes actions into a single action entitled /n Re
Actrision Blizzard Ine Secunties Litigation A decision on whether the "Miller” case should also be consolidated into this action 1s expected
soon

Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivendi) against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a bulldings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of
Appeal, which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berhin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the builldings and to pay
damages Vivend: delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the valicity of the reasoning of the judgment On April 23, 2008, the Regional Berlin Court 1ssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berlin Court in Apnl 2009, which decided in CGIS
BIM's favor and confirmed the invalidity of the reasoning of the |udgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase the
building and pay damages and interest This decision 1s now final In parallel, FIG filed a second claim for addrtronal damages m the Berlin
Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009 On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regronal Court ordered CGIS BIM to pay FIG
the sum of €3 8 million together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision

Lagardére against Vivendi, Canal+ Group, and Canal+ France

On February 12, 2013, Lagardére Holding TV, a 20% shareholder of Canal+ France, and Mr Dommique D'Hinnin and Mr Philippe Robert,
members of the Supervisary Board of Canal+ France, filed a complaint against Vivend, Canak Group and Canal+ France with the Pans
Commercial Court The Lagardére group 1s seeking nullification of the cash management agreement entered into between Canal+ France and
Canal+ Group on the grounds that it constitutes a related party agreement and hence, 1S seeking restitution, under penalty, from Canal+
Group, of the entire cash surplus given over by Canal+ France under the agreement The parties have agreed to the appointment of a
mediator to help find an amicable solution to the dispute between them On June 10, 2013, the Pans Commercial Court appointed Mr René
Ricol as the mediator Following the mediation process, which ended on October 14, 2013, the different parties entered into a settlement
agreement dated November 5, 2013, which put an end to the disputes between them

Compaiiia de Aguas de Aconquija and Vivend against the Republc of Argentina

On August 20, 2007, the International Center for Settlement of Investment Disputes (“ICSID °} 1ssued an arbitration award in favor of Vivend
and Compafia de Aguas de Aconguija {"CAA”"), its Argentinian subsidiary, relating to a dispute that arose in 1936 regarding the water
concession It held between 1995 and 1997, in the Argentinian Province of Tucuman The arbitration award held that the actions of the
provingial authorities had infringed the rights of Vivendi and its subsidiary, and were n breach of the provisions of the Franco-Argentine
Bilateral Investment Protection Treaty The arbitration tnbunal awarded Vivendi and 1ts subsidiary damages of US$105 million plus interest
and costs

On December 13, 2007, the Argentinian Government filed an apphication to vacate the arbitration award on the basis, among others, of an
alleged conflict of interest regarding one of the arbitrators The I1CSID appointed an ad hoc committee to rule on this application

On August 10, 2010, the ICSID rejected the Argentinian Government's application and the award of August 20, 2007 became final

On October 10, 2013, Vivend) and CAA entered into a settlement agreement with the Argentine government which terminated their dispute

Claim by Centenary Holdings Ill Ltd,

Centenary Holdings Il Ltd {CH Il}}, a former Seagram subsidiary, dvested 1n January 2004, was placed into iquidation in July 2005 On
January 9, 2009, the liquidator of CH 11 sued a number of its former directors, former auditors and Vivendi The hiquidator, acting on behalf of
CH lI's creditors, alleges that the defendants breached their fiduciary duties

On September 30, 2010, Vivend: and one of the former directors of CH Hll settled with the liquidator This settlement put an end te the legal
proceedings brought against them and assigned to Vivend! all clasms filed on behalf of the creditors
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Vivends, based on the ights of CH Ili obtained in the settlement, sued Stephen Bloch, a former director of CH Iil, and Murray Richards, the
purchaser of CH1ll The trial took place from June 12 through June 27, 2013, and on October 9, 2013, the High Coust in London ruled in favor
of Vivendi On October 25, 2013, Court entered a judgment requinng the defendants to pay the sum of £9,666.437

Vivendi's complaint against Orange before the Eurepean Commission for abuse of a deminant position

On March 2, 2009, Vivend: and Free jointly filed a complaint against Orange before the European Commussion (the “Commission”), for abuse
of & domunant positon Vivendi and Free allege that Orange imposes excessive tanffs on offers for access to its fixed network and on
telephone subscriptions [n July 2009, Bouygues Telecom joined in this complaint In a letter dated February 2, 2010, the Commission
informed the parties of its intention to dismiss the complaint On September 17, 2010, Vivend: filed an appea! before the Court of First
Instance of the European Union in Luxemburg On October 18, 2013, the Court demied Vivendi's appeal

Free against SFR

On May 21, 2012, Free filed a complaint against SFR with the Pans Commercial Court Free 1s challenging SFR's model of subsidizing mobile
phone purchases through what Free calls “concealed” consumer loans and claims this constitutes an unfair and deceptive trade practice On
January 15, 2013, the Court dismissed Free's claims and ordered 1t to pay to SFR €300,000 in damages for defamation and £100,000 for
costs Free appealed this decision

Orange aganst SFR

On August 10, 2011, Orange filed a claim against SFR before the Panis Commercial Court Qrange asked the Court to compel SFR to stop the
overflow traffic at the point of interconnection of their respective networks On December 10, 2013, SFR was ordered to pay €22,133.512 to
Orange On January 10, 2014, SFR appealed this decision

Complaint against Orange before the French Competition Authority

On August 9, 2010, SFR filed a complaint before the French Competition Authonty against Orange for anti-competitive practices on the
professional mobile market This case is under investigation

SFR against Orange

On April 24, 2012, SFR filed a complaint against Orange before the Pans Commercial Court for practices constitutng an abuse of its
dominant pasition in the secondary residence market On February 12, 2014, the Pans Commercial Court ordered Orange to pay €51 millien in
damages

Complaint [odged with the French Competition Authority by Orange Réunion, Orange Mayotte, and Outremer Télécom against
Société Réunionnaise du Radiotéléphone (SRR}

Orange Réunion, Orange Mayotte and Outremer Télécom notified the French Competition Authonty about alleged unfair price discrimination
practices implemented by SRR On September 16, 2009, the French Competition Authority tmposed protective measures on SRR, pending its
decision on the merits

SRR was required to end price differences that exceed the costs borne by SRR based on the network called (off-net/fon-net) The French
Competition Authonity found that SRR had not fully complied with the order it had imposed and, on January 24, 2012, ordered SRR to pay a
fine of €2 million With regard to the proceedings on the mer:ts, on July 31, 2013, SAR signed a statement of no contest to grievances and a
letter of commitments Accordingly, the Deputy Reporter General will propose to the College of the French Competition Authonity that the
fine incurred by SRR be reduced

Following the French Competition Authority’s decision of September 16, 2009, Outremer Télécom sued SRR on June 17, 2013, before the
Panis Commercial Court for damages 1t claims to have suffered as a result of SRR's practices On November 13, 2013, the Court stayed the
proceedings until the French Competition Authority 1ssues its decision on the menits of the case

Complaint of Bouygues Telecom against SFR and Orange 1n connection with the call termination and mobile markets

Bouygues Telecom brought a claim before the French Competition Council against SFR and Orange for certain alleged unfair trading
practices n the call termination and mobile markets ("price scissoring”) On May 15, 2009, the French Competition Authonty (the
“Authonty”} resolved to postpone 1ts decision on the issue and remanded the case for further investigation On December 13, 2010, SFR was
heard on these allegations by the mstructing mag:strate On August 18, 2011, SFR received a notification of grievances in which the
Authonty noted the existence of abusive price disenmination practices On December 13, 2012, the Authanty fined SFR €66 million SFR has
appealed this decision The case will be argued before the Panis Court of Appeal on February 20, 2014
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Following the decision of the French Competition Authority on December 13, 2012, Bouygues Telecom, OMEA and El Telecom {NRJ Mobile}
brought a claim before the Pans Commercial Court against SFR for damages suffered They are seeking damages of €623 6 million,
€67 9 million and €28 6 million, respectively SFR strongly disputes the validity and the amount, which Vivend: believes cannot, in any case,
exceed €250 million in total, of these claims Pending the decision of the Paris Court of Appeal, the mediation process underway in the Pans
Commercral Court between Bouygues Telecom and SFR has been suspended

UFC against SFR

On June 7, 2012, the French Federal Union of Consumers (UFC) filed a complaint against Orange before the Pans Court of First Instance
{Tribunal de Grande Instance de Pans) It alleges that the general conditions of use of SFR's La Carte offering contain abusive clauses, which
It 15 seeking to have removed

CLCV against SFR and others

On January 7, 2013, the French consumer protection association, CLCV {consumption, housing and quality of life] sued several French
telecom operators, including SFR, before the Paris Tnbunal of First Instance It 1s seeking the removal of certain clauses that rt cons:ders
abusive from subscription contracts

Employee litigation anising fram the transter of customer relations centers in Toulouse, Lyon, and Poitiers

Following the transfer of the customer relations centers located in Toulouse and Lyon to the company Infermobile, and the center in Poitiers
to a subsidiary of the Bertelsmann Group, former employees of these sites filed comptaints with the industnal tribunals (Conseils de
Prud'hommes) of each of these cities, claiming unfair execution of their employment contracts and fraudulent breach of Article L 1224-1 of
the French Labor Code and the legal provisions relating to dismissal on economic grounds The findings of the courts on this 1ssue 1in 2013
were not consistent, the Court of Appeal of Toulouse sanctioned the SFR and Teleperformance groups 1n half of the cases while the courts
of Poitiers and Lyon rendered judgments which were favorable to SFR The cases are at different stages of the appeal process

Disputes with independent hstnbutors

SFR. like other companies that use an indirect distribution mode!, faces complaints by its distnbutors and, almost systematically, by its
former distributors These recurring disputes concern the abrupt termination of the contractual relationship, the abuse of economic
dependence and/or requests for reclassification of a distributor as a commercial agent, and, more recently, apphcatiens for reclasstfication
of a manager as a branch manager and reclassification of the employment contracts of the employees warking at these points of sale as
employment contracts with SFR The French Court of Cassation rendered three judgments against SFR on the status of branch managers but
the vanious Courts of Appeal have decided in favor of SFR On the 1ssue of abrupt termination of contractual relationships and the request for
reclassification of employees of the distributor as employees of SFR, apart from a few rare exceptions the vanious courts have ruled in favor
of SFR

Parabole Réunron

In July 2007, the group Parabole Réunicn filed a legal action befare the Pans Tnbunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauribus Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prolwbited, under fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or those replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was again unsuccessful in its claims concerning the content
of the channels m question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2008, the
French Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole REunion In the context of this dispute, vanous junsdictions have taken the
opportumity to recall that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal+ Group must make available to Parabale Réunion a channel
of similar attractveness Non-compliance with this order would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réumon filed a claim

agamnst Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of Nanterre
{Trnbunal de grande Instance de Nanterre} seeking enforcement of this fine {a request for such enforcement having been previously rejected
by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appea! and the French Supreme Court) On November 6, 2012, Parabole
Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On Apnil 9, 2013, the enforcament magistrate
dismussed in part Parabole Réunion’s claim and declared the rest inadmissible He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no legal
obligation with respect to the content or the maintaintng of pragramming on channels made avaiiable to Parabole Réunion Parabole Réunion
filed an appeal agamnst this judgment

In parallel, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages
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On April 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distrbution before the Paris Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the Group to fulfill their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunion and thewr commitments to the Ministry of Economy

These two actions have been consolrdated into a single action

Action brought by the French Competition Authority regarding practices in the pay-TV sector

On January 9, 2009, further to 1ts voluntary investigation and a complaint by Qrange, the French Competition Authonty sent Vwvend and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations It alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant pesition 1n certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivend: and Canal+ Group colluded with TFT and M8, on the one hand, and with Lagardére, on the other Vivend and Canal+ Group have
gach denied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which it dismissed the allegations of collusion, n respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Canak Group The French Competition Authority requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distnbution nights on channels broadcast by the group and by
independent channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardere channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On
October 30, 2013, the French Competition Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case

Annelment of the decision authorizing the acquisition of Direct 8, Direct Star, Direct Productions, Direct Digital, and Bolloré
Intermedia

In November 20112 and January 2013, TF1 and M6 submitted to the French Council of State an action for annulment of the decisions taken by
the French Competition Authority and the CSA (French authority for media networks) authorizing the acquisition by Canal+ Group of Direct 8,
Direct Star, Direct Productions, Direct Digital and Bolloré Intermedia

Or December 23, 2013, the French Council of State annulled the French Competition Authonty's decision with effect from July 1, 2014, and
partially annulled the decision of the CSA On January 15, 2014, the transaction was re-notified to the French Competition Authonty

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6, and France Télévision

On December 8, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Télevision groups In the original French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption nghts into co-production
contracts, in such a way as 1o discourage competition

Canal+ Group against TF1, and TMC Régie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie in the television advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertising division and refusing to promote the D8 channel during its launch

Complaints against music industry majors i the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and Calfornia against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downloads These complaints have
been consohdated before the Federal Court in New York The metion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court, on
Cctober 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circurt Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court whith was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process 15 underway The Court has decided that the proceedings on class certification will be completed in the second half of 2014

Complaints against UMG regarding royalties for digital downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on line sales of music downloads and master ringtones UMG contests the
ments of these actions

Koninklijke Phmlips Electronics against UMG

On Apnl 30, 2008, Keminklike Philips Electronics filed suit against UMG in the District Court for the Southern District of New York claiming
breach of contract and patent infringement in connectron with a license to manufacture CDs On March 1, 2013, a jury rendered an
unfavaorable verdict against UMG On August 8, 2013, the parties entered into a settlement agreement that ended this dispute
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Telefonica against Vivend: in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP, Telefonica's Brazilian subsidiary, filed a claim against Vivend before the Civil Court of S4o Paulo {3° Vara Civel do
Foro Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de S3o Paulo) The company 15 seeking damages for having been blocked from acquiring
contrel of GVT and damages in the amount of 15 million Brazilian reals {currently approximately 4 7 million euros) corresponding to the
expenses incurred by TELESP in connection with its offer for GVT At the beginning of September, 2011, Vivend: filed an objection to
junsdiction, challenging the jurisdiction of the courts of Sao Paulo to hear a case involving parties from Curiiba This objection was
dismissed on February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on April 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeals

On Apnl 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefonica's claim for lack of sufficient and concrete ewvidence of Vivendi's responsibility for
Telefonica’s failing to acquire GVT The Court notably highlighted the mherently risky nature of operations in the financial markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivendi's counterclaim for compensation for the damage 1t suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carried out against 1t by Teleforuca On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court's deciston to the 5*
Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of Sdo Paulo

Dynamo against Vivend

On August 24, 2011, the Dyname investment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivendi before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
{S@o Paule stock exchange] According to Dynamo, a former sharehalder of GVT that sold the vast majonity of its stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 (the date on which Vivend: took control of GVT), the provision in GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold s crossed (the poison pill provision”) should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend:
Vivend:, noting that this poisan pill provesion was waived by a GVT General Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend
or Telefonica, demies all of Dynamo's allegations The arhitral tribunal has been constituted and a heanng before the Bovespa Arbitration
Chamber should be scheduled shortly In paraltel, on February 6, 2013, Dynamo filed an application with the 21 Federal Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janeiro to compel CVM and Bovespa to provide the arbitral trbunal with confidential information relating to the
acquisition of GVT by Vivendi This was rejected on November 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitral tribunal could make such an
application In late December, Dynamo requested that the arbitral tnbunat submit an apphcation for the confidential information from the
|udge

Hedging-Griffo against Vivendi

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Gnffo funds filed a complaint against Vivend before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa {S&o Paulo
Stock Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under wiich Vivend: completed the
acquisition of GYT 1n 2009 On December 16, 2013, the arhitral tnbunal was constrtuted and the plaintiffs submitied their intial briefs The
Hedging-Griffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold their GVT shares on the market and
125% of the price paid by Vivendi in cannection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the “poison pifl” provision in GVT's
bylaws Vivend believes that the decision taken by the Hedging-Gniffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stock market
battle that opposed Vivend: agarnst Telefonica was their own decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can in
no way be attributable to Vivend: |t also derves any appheation of the bylaw provision mentioned above, as it was waived by a GVT General
Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend or Telefonica

Actions related to the ICMS tax

GVT, hike all other telecommunications eperators, 1$ party in several Brazilian States to vanous proceedings concerning the application of the
“ICMS™ tax Impostors Sober Circulagdos de Mercadonas e Prestagdos de Servigos {ICMS) 1s a tax on operations relating to the circulation of
goads and the supply of transport, communication and electricity services

GVT 1s notably a party to liigation in various Braziban States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the 21 proceedings intiated by GYT, 19 have resulted in
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no longer subject to appeal

Action related to the FUST and FUNTTEL taxes in Brazil

The Brazilian tax authorities argue that the assessment of the taxes known as "FUST” {Fundo da Universalizagdos dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagds), a federaf tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whole Brazilian terntory, including in
areas that are not economically viable, and "FUNTTEL" (Fundo para Desenvolvimente Tecnolégioco das TelecomunicagBes), a federal tax to
finance technological vestments in Braziian telecommunications services, should be based on the company’s gross revenue without
deductron for price reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lead to part of that sum being subject to double
taxatron GVT s challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspenston of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authonty from the
federal judge
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Proceedings brought against telecommunications operators in Brazil regarding the application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were imitiated against all the telecommunications operators in Brazil, including GVT, seeking to prevent nvoices from
being increased by taxes known as “PIS” (Programa de Integragdos Social) and “COFINS” {Contribuigdo para Financiamento da Seguridade
Social), which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments in
Its defanse have a stronger basis than these of the histonc operators insofar as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible license that allows
It to set its own tanffs

Note29 Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity
method

As of December 31, 2013, approximately 630 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method {compared to
approximately 690 entities as of December 31, 2012)

December 31 2013 December 31 2012
C Accounting Votirg Ownership Accounting Voting Ownership
ountry

Note Method Interest Intergst Mathod Interast Interest

Vivendi S.A. France Parent company Parent company
Groupe Canak SA France [4 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Canal+ France S A. {a) 2 France - - - C 80% 80%
Société d'Edition de Canal Plus {b) France c 19% 439% C 19% 39%
Muluthématiques SA S France C 100% 100% c 100% 0%
Canal+ Overseas SAS France C 100% 100% C 100% 80%
Canak+ Thstrrbution S.AS () France C 100% 0%
D8 France C 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
Studiocanal § A France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Canai+ Cyfrowy SA [c) Paland C 51% 51% t 51% 51%
TVN (c) 15 Poland E 4% 26% E 40% 21%
VSTV {d) Vietnam C 49% 45% [N 499, 49%
Universal Music Group, Inc Unnted States M 100% T00% 4 100% 100%
PolyGram Holding Inc United States c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
UMG Recordings Ing United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Vevo i5 United States E 7% 47% E 50% 50%
SIG 104 France c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Unrversal Internaticnal Music B V Netherlands C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Unversal Entertainment GmbH Germany C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Mustc LLC Japan C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Unwersal Music France S A.S France C 100% 100% C 100% 160%
Unwversal Music Holdings Limited United Kingdom C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
EMI Group Worldwide Holding Ltd 2 United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Global Village Telecom S.A. Braznl [4 100% T00% |4 100% 100%
Glgbal Village Telecom Ltda {e) Brazl - c i00% 100%
POP Internet Ltda Braxal C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Innoweh Lida Braxl C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
SRS é Frang du Radiotélephone SA. France C 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
Société Réunionnaise du Radiotéléphone SC S France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Saciété Financidre de Distnbution S.A, France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
5sur5SA France C 100% 100% c 100% 160%
La Poste Telecom SA S France E 49% 43% E 49% 49%
Numergy SA S 15 France E 47% 47% E 47% 47%

Other operstions
See Tickets United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Digitick France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Wengo France C 100% 95% C 100% 95%
Watchever Group S A. France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Watchever GmbH Germany C 00% 100%

Elekinm Telekomunikacja Poland C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Maroc Telecom S.A. {f) 7 Morocco c 53% 53% [ 53% 53%
Maunzel SA Mauritania C 51% 22% c 51% 22%
Onatel $ A Butkina Faso c S51% 2% C 51% 27%
Gabon Telecom S.A, Gabon [ 51% 27% C 51% 27%
Sotelma SA Mal C 5i% 7% C 1% 7%
Activiston Bhzzard, Inc (g} 7 United States na 12% 12% c £1.5% 61 5%

C Consolidated, E Equity

a On November 5, 2013, Vivend acquired Lagardére Group's 20% interest in Canal+ France for £1,020 million in cash Thereafter, with
retroactive effect to January 1, 2013, Canal+ France S A and Canal+ Distrbution SA'S were merged with and into Canal+ Group S A,
pursuant to a simplified merger
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Vivendi consolidated Société d'Edition de Canal Plus because (1) Vivendi has majonity control over the board of directors, {1} no other
shareholder or shareholder group 1s 1n a position to exercise substantive participating nights that would allow them to veto or block
decisions taken by Vivendr and (in) Vivend: assumes the majority of nisks and benefits pursuant to an agreement with this company via
Canal+ Distribution SAS  Indeed, Canal+ Distribution, wholly-owned by Vivend), guarantees this company’s results in return for
exclusive commercial nghts to (ts subscriber base

e

Following the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy {Cyfra+'s platform) with ITI Neowsion (TVN's “n” platform} on November 30, 2012, Canal+
Group holds a 51% interest in Canal+ Cyfrowy, which owns 100% of [Tl Neovision and formed the new group “nc+” As Canal+ Group
has the majority on the Supervisory Board and the power to govern financial and operating policies of "nc+”, the latter 1s consolidated
by Canal+ Group

At the same time, Canal+ Group acquired a 40% interest in N-Vision, which indirectly helds a 52% interest in TN On December 18,
2013, 1Tl exercised rts put option to sell a 9% interest in N-Vision to Canal+ Group Canal+ Group's ownership interest in N-Viston thus
increased to 49% {please refer to Note 27}

VSTV (Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) 1s 49% held by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a VTV subsidiary (the
Vigtnamese public television company) This company has heen consclidated by Vivends given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial control over it due to a general delegation that was granted by the majority shareholder and to the company’s bylaws

In 2013, Vivend reorganized the legal chain of ownership of GVT's shares and notably merged Global Village Telecom Ltda's
operational activities with GVT's holding company Global Village Telecom SA

On November 4, 2013, Vivendl and Etisalat entered intc a defimitive agreement for the sale of Vivend's 53% interest 1n Maroc
Telecom group {please refer to Note 7)

On October 11, 2013, Vivend: deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest As of December 31, 2013,
Vivend retained 83 million Activisien Blizzard shares, representing 12% of Activision Blizzard's outstanding share capital This interest
was accounted for as an asset of discontinued business in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statement Position (please refer to Note
7)

Note 30  Statutory auditors fees

Fees paid by Vivend) SA to its statutory auditors and members of their firms in 2013 and 2012 were as follows

KPMG S A Ernst & Young et Autres

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Tatal
{in millions of euras} 2013 2012 23 2012 013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Statutery audtt, certification consolidated and
indivedual financial statements audit
{ssuer Q7 07 10% 1% 09 0% 13% 12% 16 16
Fully consolidated subsidianes 42 41 60% 42% 58 51 80% 69% 98 92
Other work and services directly related to the
statutory audit
{ssuer 04 06 6% 6% - 01 - 1% 04 07
Fully consolidated subsidiaries 07 27 10% 28% 0t 04 1% 5% 08 31
Subtotal 60 81 86% 83% 6.6 65 94% 87% 126 146
Other services provided by the network to fully
consalidated subsidianes
Lega! tax and social matters 07 12 10% 12% 03 09 5% 12% 10 21
Other 03 04 4% 5% 01 D1 1% 1% 04 05
Subtotal 1.0 16 18% 7% 04 1.0 6% 13% 14 25
Total 10 g7 100% 100% 70 15 _ 100% 100% 140 172

The 2012 fees included the non-recurming assignments undertaken by statutory audttors in relation to the transactions underway
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Note 31  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivend) S A has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidiaries, incorporated n England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, in order for them to claim exemptions from audit, with respect to fiscal year 2013, under section 479A of the UK Compames Act
2006

Name Company Number
BACKCITE LIMITED 2358972
BOILER ROOM MANAGEMENT LIMITED 07908059
CENTENARY UX LIMITED 03478918
DALMATIAN SONGS LIMITED 03506757
DECCA MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 718329
DUB DUB PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 3034298
EGW USD 8107589
EMI OVERSEAS HOLDINGS LIMITED 403200
EMI CATALOGUE INVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 303813
EMI GROUP AMERICA FINANCE LIMITED 2415597
EMI GRQUP DANISH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 2421891
EMI GROUP ELECTRONICS LIMITED 461611
EMI GROUP FINANCE DENMARK LIMITED 2422007
EMI GROUP HOLDINGS (UK) 3158108
EMI GROUP WORLDWIDE 3158106
EMIINVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3039307
EMI RECORDED MUSIC (CHILE) LIMITED 07934340
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS {ITALY) LIMITED 6420969
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS {UX} LIMITED 6407212
EMI RECORDS GERMANY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420927
EMI RECORDS ITALY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420934
Etvil RECORDS UK HOLDCO LIMITED 6388809
EMI UK HOLBINGS 255852
EMIG 4 LIMITED 3038275
FLU M MANAGEMENT LIMITED 07908238
GLOBE PRODUCTIONS LIMITED (05489649
JAYDONE LIMITED 4631083
LOUDCLOTHING COM LIMITED 06854812
MAWLAW 388 LIMITED 3590255
RELENTLESS 2006 LIMITED 3967906
UMGHATW) LIMITED 05103127
UNIVERSAL MUSIC (UK} HOLDINGS LIMITED 3383881
UNIVERSAL MUSIC ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 853087
UNIVERSAL MUSIC HOLDINGS {UK} LIMITED 337803
UNIVERSAL MUSIC LEISURE LIMITED 3384487
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING BL LIMITED 02037678
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING INTERNATIONAL MGB LIMITED 02200287
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING MGB HOLDING UK LIMITED 05092413
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING PGM LIMITED 371282
UNIVERSAL SRG (UB40) LIMITED 05158521
UNIVERSAL SRG (W AR} LIMITED 05221402
UNIVERSAL SRG ARTIST SERVICES LIMITED 01890289
UNIVERSAL SRG GROUP LIMITED 00284340
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING LIMITED (02898402
UNIVERSAL SRG STUDIOS UMITED (03050388
UNIVERSAL/ANXIOUS MUSIC LIMITED 01862328
UNIVERSAL/DICK JAMES MUSIC LIMITED 698804
UNIVERSAL/ISLAND MUSIC LIMITED 761597
UNIVERSAL/MCA MUSIC LIMITED 410065
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC 2 LIMITED 2850484
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC LIMITED 1946456
VIRGIN MUSIC GROUP 2259349
VIRGIN RECORDS OVERSEAS LIMITED 335444
V2 MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 03205625
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Note 32 Subsequent events

The main events that occurred between December 31, 2013 and February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board maeting that
approved the financial statements for fiscal year 2013 are as follows

on January 14, 2014 Canal+ Group won the exclusive broadcasting nghts to the national French Rugby Champienship “TOP 14" for
five seasons (2014-2015 to 2018-2019) These nghts relate to al! of the TOP 14 matches, across all media and all territonies,

on January 31, 2014, SFR and Bouygues Telecom entered into a strategic agreement to share a portion of their mobile access
networks, and

on February 13, 2014 Vivend: entered into exclusive negotiations with Belgacom to acquire 100% of its subsidiary Telindus France
Group, a leader on the French markets of telecommunication integration and networks Once signed, the transaction will be
submitted to the French competition authority approval

Note 33  Adjustment of comparative information

As from the second quarter of 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecorn group have been reported 1n Vivend's
Consolidated Statement of Earnings, Statement of Cash Flows, and Statement of Financial Position as discontinued operations In practice,
these two businesses have been reported as follows

ther contribution to each line of Vivend:'s Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-controlling interests} has been grouped
under the fine “Earnings from discontnued aperations™, until therr effective sale In accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments
have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of information, and

their contnbution to each line of Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped under the line “Cash flows
from discontinued operations” until their effective sale In accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all
penods presented to ensure consistency of information

Moareover, data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 was adjusted following the application of amended IAS 19, whose application is
mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1)

As a result, the 2012 and first quarter of 2013 Financial Statements were adjusted, as applicable
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33.1 Adjustments made to the main aggregates of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

2012
Three months Three months  Six months ended eng:;esmp:mh;
eptenbes
[ miltions of euros, except per share amounts) ended March 31~ ended June 30 dune 30 20
Earnings before nterest and income taxes (EBIT) (as previously published) 1433 1.082 2575 1,259
Reclassifications refated to the apphcation of IFRS 5 for Activision Blizzard 393 -178 - 568 -182
Reclassifications related to the apphication of IFRS 5 for Marac Telecom Group 266 -183 - 449 - 261
Adjustments refated to the applicatron of amended 1AS 19
Selling general and administrative expenses +2 +2 +4 +2
Eamings before mterest and income taxes (EBIT] (restated) 836 726 1,562 818
Earmings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shereowners (as previously published) &7 463 1,160 LL)]
Adjustments related to the application of amended 1AS 19
Selling general and admimstrative expenses +2 27 +4 +2
QOther financial charges +1 +7
Provisron for income taxes -
Eamings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners {restated) 693 166 1,165 19
Eamnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic (as previously
published) 05 0.36 0% 038
Eamings attnbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share - basic {restated) 0% 0.36 on 0.38
Fiy 2013
Nine months Three months Year anded Three manths
ended September  ended December o ber 31 ded March 31
{in mullions of euras except per share amounts) 30, 1 ecemuer efded Marc
Eamings before mnterest and income taxes {EBIT) {as previously published) 383 (956) 2878 1178
Reclassifications related to the apphication of IFRS 5 for Actvision Blizzard -750 -3m18 -1128 -440
Reclassificateons related 1o the apphcation of IFRS 5 for Maroc Telecom Group -710 -252 - 962 - 266
Adjustments related to the application of amended IAS 19
Selling general and admimistrative expenses +6 +11 +17 na
Earnings before interest and income taxes {(EBIT) {restated) 2,380 1,575) 805 472
Eamings sttnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners (as previously published) 1,651 (1,487} 164 534
Adjustments related to the apphication of amended IAS 19
Selling general and admmstrative expenses +6 +1 +17 na
Other financial charges +1 - +1 na
Prowision for income taxes 3 3 na
Eamings attnbutable to Vivends SA shareowners (restated) 1,658 (1479) 179 534
Earmings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners paor share - basic (as previously
published} 128 {112} 013 040
Eamnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic (restated) 128 (112} 0.14 b0

33.2 Adjustments related to charges and income directly recogmzed in equity
Year ended December 31 2012

Application
of amended
{in mithions of euros) Published JAS 19 Restated
Eamings 949 +15 964
Actuanal gans/llosses) related to employee defined benefit plans net - - 61 {61)
hems not reclassified to profit or loss - 61 {61)
Foretgn currency translation adpustments {605} - 1605}
Unrealized gains/{losses) net 103 - 103
of which  Cash flow hedge mstruments 27 22
Net investment hedge instruments 7 17
Tax 7 -
Hedging instruments net 40 - 40
Assets avarlable for sala net 63 - 83
Other mpacts net - -
keins to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss (502} - {502}
Charges and income directly recognezed in aquity (502[ =61 (563!
Total comprehensive income 447 - 46 M
of which
Total comprehensive income attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners {317) - 45 1362}
Total comprehensive inceme attnbutable to non-centrolling interests 764 -1 763
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33.3 Adjustments made to the Statements of Financial Position

{in miliions of euros} December 31 202 Applcationof  December 31 2012 December 31 2011 Application of ~ January 1st 2012
Published amended IAS 19 Restated Published amended IAS 19 Restated
ASSETS
Goodwill 24656 24656 25029 - 25029
Non-current content assets 3327 3327 2485 - 2485
Other intangible assets 5190 5190 43289 - 4329
Property plant and equipment 5426 9926 9001 - 900
Investments in equity affikiates 388 388 135 - 135
Non-current financial assets 514 -26 488 i 15 39
Deferred tax assets 1400 +45 1445 1421 +26 1447
Non-currant assets 45,4 +19 45420 42,79 + 1N 42,805
Inventones 738 738 805 805
Current tax tecevables 819 - 819 542 542
Current content assets 1044 - 1044 1086 - 1066
Trade accounts recervable and other 6587 6587 6730 - 6730
Current financial assets 364 364 474 - 478
Cash and cash equivalents 1894 - 3894 33 - 3304
13,446 - 13,446 12,925 - 12,925
Assets held for sale 667 667 -
Current assets ALA LK) - 14,113 12925 - 12,925
TOTAL ASSETS 59,514 +19 59,533 519 + N 55,730
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 7282 - 7282 6 660 - 6 860
Addivsonal paid in capital a2 - B271 BH5 - 8225
Treasury shares {25) - 125} 28) . (28)
Retained eamings and other 2937 -140 2797 4390 -95 4 295
Vivandi SA shareownoers® squity 18,465 -140 18,325 19,447 - 95 19,352
Mon controfling interests 29N -b 2 966 2623 4 2619
Total equity 21,436 - 145 2.9 2470 -99 21,971
Non-current pravisions 3094 +164 3258 1 569 +110 1679
Long-term borrowings and other financial labilities 12 667 . 12 667 12409 - 12909
Deferred tax liabiities 99 - 9 728 - 128
Gther non-current hiabilities 1002 - 1002 864 - B64
Noan-current habilities 17,754 +164 17913 15,570 +110 15,680
Currer provisions m m 586 - 586
Short-term borrowings and other financia! liabilitres 5090 - 5090 KELI - 33
Trade accounts payable and other 14195 - 14196 13987 - 13987
Current tax payables k¥4 - 321 25 - 205
20,318 . 20318 18,079 - 18.079
Liabilities associated with asseis held for sale 5 - B . - -
Current halnlities 20,324 - 20,324 18,079 - 18,079
Total habiimes 38,078 + 164 38242 13,649 +110 33,759
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 59,514 +19 59,533 55,719 +11 55,730
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33.4 Adjustments made to the Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended Becember 31 2012
Reclassifications Application of

related to amended
{in malltons of euros) Pubhished IFRS S () 1AS19 Restatad
Operating activities
EBIT 2678 -2080 +17 805
Adjustments 5189 - 126 -17 4456
Including amartization and depreciation of tangibla and intangible assats 3929 -654 - 3275
reserve accrugl regarding the Liberty Med:a Corporation htigation i the United States 943 945
other incoma from EBIT {2z} +3 {19)
other charges from EBIT 235 ! 236
Content mvestments net {269) +154 - {145)
Gross cash provided by operating activities before income tax pard 7778 - Z662 - 5115
QOther changes n net working capital 90 - 21 - 63
Nat cash provided by operating activities before incoms tax paid 7.868 -2683 - 5185
Income tax paid net {762) +409 {353}
Net cash provided by operating activities of contiauing operstions 7,106 2274 - 4852
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations - + 2278 - 2274
Not cash prowded by operating activities 7.106 . - 1106
Investing activities
Capital expendtures {4 516) +517 - {3 999)
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash (1374) - - {1374)
Investments in equity affiliates {3221 - - {322}
increase i fingncial assets 99 +64 - 135)
Investments 5318 +581 . 15,730}
Proceeds from sales of property plant, equipment and intangible assets 26 -3 - 23
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies after divested cash 13 - 13
Disposal of equity affiliates " - - tt
Decrease in financial assets 215 -35 . 80
Divestitures 5 -38 - 227
Dmidends receved fram equity affiliates 3 - k]
Dmidends received from unconsohdated companies 1 - 1
Net cash provided byf{usaed for) investing activities of continuing operations 16.042) +543 - (5,499}
Net cash provided by/f{usad for) investing activities of discontinued operations - - 543 - {543)
Net cash provided by/{usad for} investing activities {6,042) - - (6,042}
Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares th connection with Vivendi SA's share based
compensation plans 131 - - K]
Sales/{purchases) of Vivend! SA’s treasury shares {19} - - 18
Drvidends paid by Vivendi SA to its shareowners {1245) - - {1245)
Other transactions with shareowners [229) +228 m
Dmdends paid by consolidated companies to their non-controlling interests 483 +450 (33)
Transactions with shareowners {1.844) + 678 - 1,166}
Setting up of long term borrowings and increase i other long-term fimancial habilities 5859 - 26 - 5833
Principal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease m other long-term financial habilites 4y +6 {4,211}
Principal payment on short-term bormowings (2615) +121 - (2499
Other changes in short-term borrowings and other financial kabilities 3056 -248 - 2808
Interest paid net (568} +24 - {544}
Other cash items related to financeal activities {98} +2 - {96}
Transactions on borrowings and ather financial liabiiitres 1417 -121 - 1.296
Net cash provided by/used for) financing actviies of continuing operations {427} + 557 - 130
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing actwities of discontinged operations - -557 - 557)
Net cash provided by/{used for} financing activibes 1427} - - [a27)
Foreign currency tzanslation adjustments of continuing operations 47} +18 - 129)
Foreign currency translation adjustments of discontinued operations - -18 - {18)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 590 - - 590
Reclassification of cash and cash equivalents from discontinued oparations - - . -
Cash and cash equivalents —_—
At beginning of the penod 330 - - 3,304
At end of the perod 389 - - 3,894

a  Includes Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group {please refer to Note 7}
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